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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Directors of Interloop Limited are pleased to present the annual report of the Company together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

TEXTILE & APPAREL SECTOR AND ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Financial year 2019 was a tough year for Pakistan due to challenges to the macro-economy. Consolidation measures to tackle the 
challenges brought a lot of pressure on performance of business and industry. After entering the IMF program Pakistan is now on the 
path of consolidation to tackle sizeable fiscal and current account deficits but the imbalances are expected to diminish slowly. The 
World Bank estimates the country’s GDP growth rate to deteriorate to 2.7% in 2019-20. However, the consolidation measures, 
coupled with other macroeconomic improvements, are likely to lead to an increase in the economic growth to 4% in the beginning in 
fiscal year 2020-21. 

Textile & Apparel industry contributes 57% percent of total export volumes and 8.50% of the GDP of Pakistan. Annual Export during 
FY18 stood at $25.0 billion out of which $13.53 billion was from Textiles & Apparel. According to Textile Policy 2014-2019, Textile 
exports were to double i.e. from $13.0 billion to $26.0 billion, which could have created some 3.0 million additional jobs. Due to 
unfavorable economic conditions, inconsistent government policies, shortage of energy and lack of investment to modernize and 
enhance capacity, Textile and Apparel exports have stagnated. 

Despite all these challenges, your company, by the grace of God Almighty, has been able to achieve a record Sales Turnover of Rs. 
37.478 billion (FY18: PKR 31.139 billion). At the same time, Net Profit for the year has increased by 33.69% over the corresponding 
year. 

OPERATING RESULTS

The summary of operating results for the year and appropriation of divisible profits is given below:
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During the year under review, the Board of Directors approved 300% Interim Bonus Shares in the proportion of 3 share(s) for every 1 
share(s) held followed by 12.5% Interim Cash Dividend and allotted/paid to the shareholders within stipulated time period in accord-
ance with the applicable laws & regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 23rd September 2019 have proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 1.75 
per share (i.e. 17.5%). This is in addition to Rs. 1.25 per share (i.e. 12.5%) first interim cash dividend already distributed; which make 
a total cash distribution of Rs. 3.0 per share (i.e. 30%) for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The proposed final cash dividend is subject to the approval of members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 14, 
2019. These financial statements do not include the effect of above proposal which will be accounted for in the period it is approved 
by the members.

2019 2018 
(R*. In Million*) 

Sales-net 37.47832 31.138.74 
Gross proTit 11.954.71 9.144.50 
FRITOA 7,960.92 5,903.89 
Profit before Tax 5,420.98 4.005.77 
Less; Tax Expense 22632 119.95 
Profit jlterTax 5,194.77 3.88551 
Un,ipptp;»nale(l profit brought forward 7,14257 12.522.99 
Profit available for Approprialions 5,001.94 3.794.50 
Apprapnaiions 

• inteom dividend 2017 950.55 
- payment under swap arrangement 8.224.37 
• Bonus Shares 2018 5.688.06 

Interim dividend 2018 1,090.25 

Unappropriated profit carried forward 536631 7,142.57 
Earnings per share - Basic (Rs.) 6.67 5.10 
Earnings per share - Diluted (Rs.) 6.67 5.10 
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

By the grace of God Almighty, the year has ended on a positive note for the Company with better performances both operationally as 
well as financially. Machinery has been added with the prime objective of reducing imbalance and inefficiencies, reducing utilities and 
maintenance requirements and produce additional value-added material and finished products. Performance of the Company during 
the year remained good in spite of all the challenges like pressure on export selling prices, shortage of gas, increase in minimum 
wages, lack of timely sales tax refunds by Government etc. At the same time, adjustment of exchange rate had a favorable impact on 
Company’s profits. During the year under review, Company sales suffered a slight set back due to filling of Bankruptcy by one of the 
customers namely Payless Shoe Source Inc. While financial loss was prevented as receivables from this company were insured 
through a factoring company, sales revenue suffered a slight set back. Company’s sales and marketing teams have worked hard and 
secured two other customers to fill the gap during next year. 

Operational results show that the Company achieved revenue growth of +20.36% for the year ended June 30, 2019 compared to 
preceding year. Sales revenue stood at Rs. 37.478 billion (FY18: Rs. 31.139 billion). Gross profit for the year stood at Rs. 11.954 
billion (FY18: Rs. 9.144 billion) whereas profit before taxation stood at Rs. 5.421 billion (FY18: Rs. 4.006 billion). The after tax for the 
year under review was Rs. 5.195 billion (FY18: Rs. 3.886 billion) whereas earning per share (EPS) stood at Rs. 6.67 per share (FY18: 
Rs. 5.10) per share.
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Despite the factors stated earlier, the Company performed with great resilience and maintained its position in the foreign markets. In 
the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the said financial year were not substantially affected 
by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than what has been mentioned in this report. Directors believe 
that the Company will be able to achieve even better results in the next financial year.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The management of the Company has determined the operating segments based on the information that is presented to the Board of 
Directors of the Company for allocation of resources and assessment of performance. Segment performance is generally evaluated 
based on certain key performance indicators including business volume and gross profit.

Based on internal management reporting structure and products produced and sold, the Company is organized into the following 
operating segments:

 a) Hosiery- This segment relates to the sale of socks & tights.
 b) Spinning- This segment relates to the sale of yarn.
 c) Other operating segments- This represent various segments of the Company which currently do not meet the minimum  
  reporting threshold mention in international financial reporting standards. These mainly includes domestic sales, energy,  
  yarn dyeing, denim and active-wear.

FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 – AT A GLANCE

 1 INTERLOOP’S LISTING ON THE PAKISTAN STOCK EXCHANGE (PSX)

 Interloop Limited (ILP) was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) at a prestigious Gong Ceremony, held on April 5, 2019  
 at PSX, Karachi. In the process of Interloop Limited’s Initial Public Offering (IPO), your Company received wide-spread participation  
 from investment community ranging from major commercial banks, insurance companies, local and foreign institutions, asset  
 management companies, TREC holders and high net worth individuals.

 Interloop Limited successfully raised Rs. 5,025 million through the largest private sector Initial Public Offering (IPO), placing it  
 amongst the top 50 companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange by market capitalization. Book building portion of the IPO  
 took place on the 13th and 14th of March, 2019 and was oversubscribed by 1.37 times. The general public was offered shares  
 on March 21 - 22, 2019 at Rs. 46.10 per share. Despite tough market conditions, the IPO was oversubscribed by 1.5 times.
 We are confident that, God willing, the Denim segment will turn out be even bigger for us than the Hosiery sector. World’s top  
 brands and retailers are our customers and consider us a responsible manufacturing company. We’ll move forward with them in  
 our Hosiery business and believe that many of them will become our Denim customers. 

 2 DENIM PROJECT

 As part of business diversification & expansion, Interloop is entering into the Denim Apparel Segment and has envisioned a  
 production facility which will have minimal environmental impact, prioritise worker well-being and will maintain a very high stand 
 ard for operational and cost efficiency, ensuring that Interloop continues to serve its customers effectively. 

 The production facility will be LEED Platinum Certified and will be the most technologically advanced and sustainable denim  
 apparel production facility in this part of the world, underpinning Interloop’s Mission. The plant has gone into trial production in  
 Q3, 2019 and has been conceived with a planned output exceeding one million garments per month. A fully operational develop 
 ment/sampling center, with 125 sewing machines from Italy and Japan, with an approx. capacity of 3,400 pieces per day is  
 operating successfully already. 

As our commitment to environmental conservation, the production facility will:
 • Focus on women empowerment with the target to engage females as 50% of the total workforce 
 • Plan initiatives such as in-house day care to enable women to continue work after childbirth, if they wish to do so 
 • Plan at least 30% of the area as green space
 • Discharge ZERO hazardous material and waste
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 • Reduce the carbon footprint by up to 50% by maximising use of daylight, solar energy, insulation, bio-mass boilers, heat  
  recovery and energy efficient systems 
 • Introduce technology and redesign traditional processes to save 35 litres of water per garment – approximately 35m litres of  
  water a month 
 • Implement new technology aimed at enhancing worker safety, boosting labour productivity and minimising risk of work-related  
  accidents or long term illness  

A budget of PKR 3.90 billion approx. was allocated for plant and machinery. About 57% of this budget has already been consumed in 
the form of LCs retired, LCs which have been opened but are yet to be retired and machinery purchased locally.

We have successfully secured the financing of PKR 2.80 billion from Habib Bank Limited- Islamic Banking Division at a very competi-
tive rate. Negotiations for a further financing of PKR 1.00 billion are in process with Allied Bank Limited- Islamic Banking Division.

 3 PILOT PROJECT OF PLANT 5

 The Hosiery Plant 5 Pilot Project became operational on January 22, 2019 with 94 Modern Italian Knitting Machines. This Plant  
 is distinct from the existing facilities because of the New Team Organogram concept.  The new structure is designed to remove  
 extra supervision layers, the management working in shifts and Knitting Technical and Knitting Operations teams merged as one  
 team. 

 With the current production of 900,000 pairs of socks monthly, the Pilot project will be scaled up into a vertically integrated  
 sustainable manufacturing facility with installed capacity of 1280 knitting machines producing approx. 17.28 million pairs of socks  
 per month. 

 At present, Land measuring 76 acres has been successfully procured, at an Ideal location on Khurrianwala Jaranwala bypass.  
 The location is well planned as our power supply lines from Interloop energy division are passing right near to the location of the  
 land so we will be able to supply energy to our newly planned division from our own energy division.

 As this unit will be one of Its kind, supplying to major brands in the world, layout planning and structural design is of paramount  
 Importance. Meetings are being held with top notch architectures and internationally renowned lean and layout experts to design  
 the building and layout for machines. It will be LEED certified (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) and will be a  
 state of the art structure in textile industry in Pakistan.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Company has also annexed consolidated financial statements along with separate financial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and Companies Act, 2017.

Following is a brief description of the subsidiary company of Interloop Limited:

 IL Apparel (Private) Limited

 This is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which looks after the Knitwear & Active-wear business of the Company.  
 The Knitwear Pilot Project at Faisalabad, a Cut to Pack garment manufacturing facility, is spread over 6 acres and   
 commenced operations in January, 2019 and has exported the first shipment in March 2019. IL Apparel plans to put up a  
 state of the art vertically integrated Knitwear garments manufacturing plant in the new Interloop Apparel Park near the  
 Interloop Industrial Park. 

Production (Units) / Day
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

We consider our employees to be our most important stakeholder and to get their commitment and efforts, we firmly believe in provid-
ing them conducive environment and making them feel a sense of security. The Company operates an equity settled stock option 
scheme called ‘Interloop Limited - Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2016’ duly approved by the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion of Pakistan (SECP). The compensation committee evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and recommends 
to the Board for grant of options. The Board on the recommendation of the committee, on its discretion, grants recommended options 
to employees. These options vest after a specified period subject to fulfillment of certain conditions as defined in the scheme. Annual 
Performance Report on Offer and Administration of the Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) - Interloop Limited as at June 30, 
2019 along with the summary of the options granted till date is annexed with this report.

It is pertinent to mention here that the scheme is not in operation since listing of the Company on PSX primarily due to the fact that 
the terms of the scheme require to be consistent with the increased legal compliance for a listed entity. The proposal for subject 
updation in the Existing scheme is under review and pending approval from shareholders of the Company and SECP respectively. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors are pleased to state that the Company is compliant with the provision of the Code of Corporate Governance as required 
by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Board of Direc-
tors review the Company’s strategic decisions and it is committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance. A formal 
statement of compliance as required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 is annexed 
which forms part of this Annual Report.

Following is the Directors’ statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting framework:

 1 The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its  
  operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
 2 Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
 3 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and accounting  
  estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
 4 International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial  
  statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.
 5 A mission statement, vision and overall corporate strategy for the company is prepared, adopted and reviewed as and when  
  deemed appropriate by the Board.
 6 The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
 7 There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 8 There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Interloop Limited has seven-member (6 Male & 1 Female) Board of Directors which comprises of individuals with diverse backgrounds 
having core competencies, knowledge and expertise relevant to the business of the Company. The Board is assisted by its sub-com-
mittees i.e., Audit Committee, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and Nomination committee. These sub-committees 
held meetings and reported to the Board as per stipulations of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2017.  The diverse mix of gender, knowledge, expertise and skill sets of the members enhances the effectiveness of our Board. Our 
Board composition represents the interests of all categories of shareholders and it consists of:

 • Independent Director  2
 • Other non-executive Directors 3
 • Executive Director   2

in order to adopt and adhere to the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance regulations, the Company prior to the filing 
of listing application with the PSX, appointed Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan and Mr. Saeed Ahmad Jabal as an Independent Directors of the 
Company followed by appointment of Mr. Jahan Zeb Khan Banth, as Non-Executive Director in place of the casual vacancy created 
by the outgoing Directors of the Company. Furthermore, during the period under consideration, Mr. Navid Fazil was appointed as the 
Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.e.f. September 8, 2018 to fill up the casual vacancy caused by resignation of Mr. Musadaq 
Zulqarnain.  

 Meetings of the Board of Directors & Committees

 Since Interloop Limited became listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange on April 5, 2019, the information on the meetings of  
 the Board of Directors of the Company is being shared from date of formal listing. Two meetings of Board of Directors and  
 one each meeting of Audit Committee and HR & Remuneration Committee were respectively held during the year after  
 listing on PSX. Attendance by the directors/members is given below;
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 Board of Directors:

 Mr. Musadaq Zulqarnain (Chairman)  2
 Mr. Navid Fazil (Chief Executive Officer) 2
 Mr. Jahan Zeb Khan Banth   2
 Mr. Muhammad Maqsood   2
 Mrs. Shereen Aftab   0
 Mr. Saeed Ahmad Jabal   2
 Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan   2

 Audit Committee:

 Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan (Chairman)  1
 Mr. Saeed Ahmad Jabal    1
 Mr. Jahan Zeb Khan Banth    1

 HR & Remuneration Committee: 

 Mr. Saeed Ahmad Jabal  (Chairman)  1
 Mr. Navid Fazil      1
 Mr. Jahan Zeb Khan Banth    1

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND TRANSFER PRICING 

It is the policy of the company to ensure that all transactions entered with related parties must be at arm’s length. The Company has 
fully complied with best practices on Transfer Pricing as contained in the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange while 
executing all transactions with related party.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has established an effective and efficient system of internal and financial controls to safeguard the assets of the 
Company, prevent and detect fraud and ensure compliance with all statutory and legal requirements. The internal control structure is 
regularly reviewed and monitored by the Internal Audit function duly established by the Board. Audit Committee reviews the internal 
control system on quarterly basis in accordance with the term of its reference.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Two statements of the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2019, for Ordinary Shares & Non-Voting Ordinary Shares respectively, 
which are required to be disclosed under the reporting framework, are annexed to this report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the code of corporate govern-
ance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-ex-
ecutive directors except fee for attending the meetings. 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS 

The present auditors’ M/s. Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Company, Chartered Accountants, are retiring and being eligible, offer themselves 
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors proposes the re-appointment of M/s. Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the auditors until the next Annual General Meeting.

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

Health, Safety & Environment is our core value, we take pride in our practices and will ensure that we run safe operations and are not 
a source of environmental degradation.  The health and safety of our employees, the safety of our assets, the security of our opera-
tions and healthy environment always remain among the top priorities of the Company. Safety is an all-encompassing priority for the 
Company, from the Board down to the business units. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The company is committed towards accomplishing its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and actively takes part in social work 
programs. During the year under review as part of CSR program, substantial contribution was made in the sectors of education, 
health, culture and sports.

MATERIAL CHANGES 

There have been no material changes since June 30, 2019 to date of the report and the Company has not entered into any commit-
ment during this period, which would have an adverse impact on the financial position of the Company.

DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

We expect no principal risks & uncertainties as at the closing period of June 30, 2019.
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BUSINESS RISKS, CHALLENGES AND FUTURE OUTLOOK 

While observing the rise in immense global competition in textiles, including speed to market requirements by retailers and brands, 
Company has to keep an eye on the shift in sourcing patterns. This can be effectively mitigated through efficiency improvements & 
interventions in supply chain, thus reducing lead times.

With the present economic conditions that are expected to prevail for foreseeable period, the company aims to develop and implement 
measures that will enable the company to minimize the adverse effect. We feel, in today's highly competitive global environment, the 
textile sector in Pakistan needs to upgrade its supply chain, improve productivity, and maximize value-addition to be able to survive in 
the global market. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

Consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2019 of the Company and its subsidiary IL Apparel (Private) Limited 
are annexed. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Directors would like to thank all stakeholders of the Company including, customers, shareholders, vendors, government 
agencies, bankers & all other business associates for their continued support during the year. We place on record our appreciation for 
the contributions made by the employees at all levels. 

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors
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Faisalabad, September 23, 2019

Sd/-
(Navid Fazil)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Sd/-
(Jahan Zeb Khan Banth)
(Director)
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INTERIOOPIIMITFO 
Pjttcfn of Sha'Choldrnj 

At onun^lO,^Qn ^ 

1 10 100 2.472 
101 10 500 084,967 
SOI lo 1000 1,345.440 
1001 to 5000 2,8/2,841 
S001 lo 10000 1.308,254 
10001 10 ISOOO 794,662 
1S001 10 20000 434,648 
JOOOl 10 25000 196.491 
25001 lo 30000 378.563 
10001 lo 35000 1,054.858 
JS001 10 40000 416,302 
40001 10 45000 127.517 
d'jOOl 10 50000 94,36/ 
50001 10 55000 152.879 
55001 lo 60000 115.631 
60001 to 65000 125.718 
05001 10 70000 408.942 
20001 lo 75000 509,004 
75001 10 80000 461.094 
ftOOOl lo 85000 81,717 
95001 10 100000 192,682 
100001 lo 105000 203.603 
105001 lo 110000 105,918 
115001 10 120000 240,000 
120001 lo 125000 487,971 
125001 lo 130000 125.719 
U0001 lo 135000 134,005 
140001 10 145000 143,319 
I4S001 10 ISOOOO 797,375 
100001 10 165000 486,92/ 
105001 lo 170000 339.235 
195001 lo 200000 394.000 
200001 10 205000 401,786 
220001 10 225000 224.500 
250001 10 255000 254.000 
275001 10 280000 277,313 
285001 to 290000 286.129 
310001 10 315000 310,250 
315001 lo 320000 319.148 
345001 10 350000 345.727 
360001 to 365000 363,303 
385001 lo 390000 385,250 
395001 lo 400000 400,000 

1 400001 10 405000 401.438 
1 410001 lo 415000 413,829 
2 450001 lo 455000 903.500 
1 700001 lo 705000 701,250 
1 720001 lo 725000 724,712 
I 725001 10 730000 726,503 
2 755001 lo 760000 1,511,642 
1 760001 to 765000 761,377 
1 770001 lo 775000 772.672 
I 880001 10 885000 883 382 
1 915001 lo 920000 915,520 
1 945001 lo 950000 946.662 
1 1120031 10 1125000 1,125.000 
1 1260001 lo 1265000 1,264,500 
1 1435001 10 1440000 1,438.222 
1 I440O31 10 1445000 1,442.415 
1 I49S001 lo 1500000 1,500,000 
1 1575001 lo 1580000 1,577,750 
1 1695031 lo 1/03000 1,690,970 
1 I970O31 lo 197S000 1,970,328 
I 2130001 10 2135000 2,133,000 
1 2170001 lo 2175000 2.174,000 
1 2270001 lo 2275000 2,272,500 
1 2710001 lo 2715000 2,713.500 
1 3020001 10 3025000 3,020,110 
I 3605001 10 3610000 3,606,000 
1 3730001 10 3735000 3,735,000 
1 3745031 lo 37SOOOO 3.746,250 
1 3880031 10 3885000 3.884.420 
2 3995001 lo 40W3000 8,000,000 
2 4340031 10 4345000 8,681.396 
2 7195001 10 7200000 14,400.000 
1 7660001 lo 7665000 7,664,062 
1 7810001 lo 7815000 7,812,500 
1 809CO31 lo 8095000 8,095.000 
1 10773001 10 10780000 10,776.172 
I 13865001 lo 13870000 13,867,560 
1 14635001 IO 14640000 14,639.500 
1 16680001 to 1S585000 16.681.396 
1 37225001 10 37230000 37.229.040 
I 73005001 IO 73010000 73.008.720 
1 282495001 10 282530000 282,498,838 
1 298495001 10 298530000 298,498,840 

5131 869,400,000 
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INTERLOOP LIMITED 
Pattern of Shareholding 

As of June 30, 2019 
Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children 
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 
Executives 
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies, 
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 
Mutual Funds 
General Public a. Local 

b. Foreign 
Foreign Companies 
Others 

10 709,326,004 81.59 
- - 

8 23,611,384 2.72 

18 51,257,548 5.90 
43 32,463,723 3.73 

4998 42,998,995 4.95 
3 153,515 0.02 

- 

51 9,588,831 1.10 
Totals 5131 869,400,000 100 

Shareholders Shares Held Percentage 
Share holders holding 10% or more 2 596,997,680 68.66 
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
Pattern Of Shareholding5 

Security Symbol : IILNV XNTEBLOOP LiKITED - Page# : 1 of 1 
rinonciol Year End Incornttlon as on : 30/06/2019 H0N-V0T3KG ORDIHARV Oser : C0064901 

SHARES Date : 02/00/2019 
Time : 0<:14:17 

Kioibef q£ Shareholders Sharehold ings Prom - TO Total Huirber of Shares Held 

9 101 - 500 2,767 

7 501 - 1,000 5,305 

162 1,001 - 5,000 451,588 

114 5,001 - 10,000 015,891 

33 10,001 - 15,090 410.536 

10 IS,001 - 20,000 171.237 

7 20,001 - 25,090 155,944 

1 2S,001 - 30,000 20,594 

3 30,001 - 35,000 99,150 

1 35,001 - 40.000 39,074 

2 <0,001 - 45,000 33,549 

1 <5,001 - 50,000 47,507 

50,001 - 55,000 103,547 

1 55,001 - 60,000 56,064 

1 75,001 - 60,000 76,462 

1 95,001 - 100,040 97,142 

1 150,001 - 155,000 150,087 

35& 2,797,450 

snorc^otdce'e category vnuibec of Sliatfehoiaera Nuxi&ec of Sliaeee Keio Percentage 

InOividuals 356 

356 

2,797,<50 i00-00 

2.797,<50 J.00.0 



INTERLOOP LIMITED

Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

INTERLOOP LIMITED 

Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 



-e KRESTON
% UYOTR BHIMJI & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report To the members of Interloop Limited
Report on the Audit of Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Interloop Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30,

20'19, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the unconsolidated financial
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated the statement of profit or
loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the international Financial Reporting Standard IFRSsJ as

applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Act,2017 (XIX of
201,7), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
company's affairs as at June 30, 201,9 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs) as

applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan fthe CodeJ and we have fulfilled our.'other ethica]
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Following are the Key Audit Matter(s)r

S. No Key Audit Matter(s) How the Matter was addressed in audit

L. Adoption of IFRS g "Financial instruments":
(Refer notes 3.1 and 6.1 to the unconsolidated financial statementsJ

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'is effective

for the Company for the first time during
We reviewed and understood the

requirements of the IFRS 9, Our audit
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Independent Auditor's Report To the members oflnterloop Limited 
Report on the Audit of Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements oflnterloop Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 
2019, the unconsolidated statement of profit or toss, the unconsolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the unconsolidated financial 
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained ail the information and explanations which, to 
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated the statement of profit or 
loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of 
changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the international Financial Reporting Standard (IFRSs) as 
applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 
company's affairs as at June 30,2019 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan [the Code) and we have fulfilled our'Other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Following are the Key Audit Matter(s): 

S. No Key Audit Matter(s) (low the Matter was addressed in audit 

1. Adoption of !FRS 9 "Financial instruments": 

(Refer notes 3.1 and 6.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements) 

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' is effective 

for the Company for the first time during 

We reviewed and understood the 
requirements of the IFRS 9. Our audit 
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the current year and replaces the financial
instruments standard IAS 39 'Financial

Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement'.

In relation to financial assets, IFRS 9
requires the recognition of expected

credit losses ('ECL'J rather than incurred
credit losses under IAS 39 and is therefore
a fundamentally different approach,

Management is required to determine the
expected credit loss that may occur over
either a 12-month period or the

remaining life of an asset, depending on

the categorization ofthe individual asset.

In accordance with IFRS 9, the
measurement of ECL reflect a range of
unbiased and probability-weighted

outcomes, time value of money,

reasonable and supportable information
based on the consideration of historical
events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. The

calculation of ECLs in accordance with
IFRS 9 is therefore complex and involves a

number of judgmental assumptions.

We considered this as key audit matter

due to the significant amounts involved

and significant judgments made by

management regarding the matter.

procedures included the following:

Considered the management's

process to assess the impact of
adoption of IFRS 9 on the Company's

unconsolidated financial statements.

Reviewed the appropriateness of the

assumptions used [future and

historicalJ, the methodology and

policies applied to assess the ECL in
respect of financial assets of the

Company.

We reviewed and assessed the impact
and disclosures made in the

unconsolidated financial statements

with regard to the effect of adoption

of IFRS 9.

2. Adoption of IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers":

fRefer notes 3.1 and 6.2 to the unconsolidated financial statements)

The International Financial Reporting
Standard 15 "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers" (IFRS 15J became
applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Company's annual
unconsolidated financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2019,

Under the aforesaid standard the revenue
from sale of goods is recognized when the

We reviewed and understood the

requirements of the IFRS 15. Our audit
procedures included the following:

o Considering the appropriateness of
revenue recognition policy, including

recognition and classification criteria
for trade and other discounts and
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the current year and replaces the financial 

instruments standard IAS 39 'Financial 

Instruments; Recognition and 
Measurement'. 

In relation to financial assets, IFRS 9 

requires the recognition of expected 

credit losses ('ECL') rather than incurred 

credit losses under IAS 39 and is therefore 

a fundamentally different approach, 

Management is required to determine the 

expected credit loss that may occur over 

either a 12-month period or the 

remaining life of an asset, depending on 

the categorization of the individual asset. 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the 

measurement of ECL reflect a range of 

unbiased and probability-weighted 

outcomes, time value of money, 

reasonable and supportable information 

based on the consideration of historical 

events, current conditions and forecasts of 

future economic conditions. The 

calculation of ECLs in accordance with 

IFRS 9 is therefore complex and involves a 

number of judgmental assumptions. 

We considered this as key audit matter 

due to the significant amounts involved 

and significant judgments made by 

management regarding the matter. 

procedures included the following: 

• Considered the management's 

process to assess the impact of 
adoption of IFRS 9 on the Company's 

unconsolidated financial statements. 

• Reviewed the appropriateness of the 

assumptions used (future and 
historical), the methodology and 

policies applied to assess the ECL in 
respect of financial assets of the 

Company, 

• We reviewed and assessed the impact 

and disclosures made in the 

unconsolidated financial statements 

with regard to the effect of adoption 

of IFRS 9, 

2. Adoption of IFRS IS "Revenue from contracts with customers": 

(Refer notes 3.1 and 6.2 to the unconsolidated financial statements) 

The International Financial Reporting 
Standard 15 "Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers" (IFRS 15) became 
applicable for the first time for the 
preparation of the Company's annual 
unconsolidated financial statements for 
the year ended June 30,2019, 

Under the aforesaid standard the revenue 
from sale of goods is recognized when the 

We reviewed and understood the 

requirements of the IFRS 15. Our audit 

procedures included the following: 

• Considering the appropriateness of 

revenue recognition policy, including 
recognition and classification criteria 

for trade and other discounts and 
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Company satisfies its performance
obligation by transferring the promised
goods to customer under the contract
with customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is measured
at transaction price net oftrade discounts.

As a result of application of the aforesaid
standard the management has performed
extensive evaluation of its contractual
arrangement with its customers,

We considered this as key audit matter

due to the significant amounts involved

and significant judgments made bY

management regarding the matter.

comparing it with the applicable

accounting standards,

Testing the effectiveness of

Company's controls over the

classification of trade discounts and

correct timing of revenue recognition.

Reviewing a sample of contractual

arrangement entered into bY the

Company with its customers and

checked the appropriateness of

classification of trade discounts,

Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure

as required under applicable financial

reporting framework.

3. Listing on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)

fRefer note ],.2 and 45 to the unconsolidated financial statements]
During the year, the Company gets itself
listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)

and issued 109 million ordinary shares of
Rs. 1"0 each.

We considered this as key audit matter
due to the significant amount involved,
requirements to disclose utilization of
proceeds from IPO and disclosure
requirements of 4th Schedule of the
Companies Act,20'1.7.

Our audit procedures in relation to listing
of Company is Pakistan Stock Exchange

IPSXJ included the following:

o Reviewed the management working

of utilization of proceeds from IPO'

o Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure

as required under applica,ble financial

reporting framework and

requirements of the ComPanies Act,

2017.

4. Property, plant and equipment
The Company has made significant
expenditure on expansion of
manufacturing facilities and new projects.

During the year, the Company has also

reclassified some categories of its
operating fixed assets and resultantly
comparative figures of those categories of
assets are also reclassified to reflect better
presentation.

Our audit procedures in relation to
capitalization of property, plant and
equipmen! amongst others included the
following:

o Understanding the design and

implementation of management

controls over caPitalization and

performing tests of control over

authorization of capital expenditure
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Company satisfies its performance 
obligation by transferring the promised 
goods to customer under the contract 
with customer. 

Revenue from sale of goods is measured 
at transaction price net of trade discounts. 

As a result of application of the aforesaid 
standard the management has performed 
extensive evaluation of its contractual 
arrangement with its customers, 

We considered this as key audit matter 

due to the significant amounts involved 

and significant judgments made by 
management regarding the matter. 

comparing it with the applicable 

accounting standards. 

• Testing the effectiveness of 

Company's controls over the 

classification of trade discounts and 

correct timing of revenue recognition. 

• Reviewing a sample of contractual 

arrangement entered into by the 

Company with its customers and 

checked the appropriateness of 

classification of trade discounts, 

• Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure 

as required under applicable financial 
reporting framework. 

3. Listing on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) 
fRefcr note 1,2 and 45 to the unconsolidated financial statements] 
During the year, the Company gets itself 
listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) 
and issued 109 million ordinary shares of 
Rs. 10 each. 

We considered this as key audit matter 
due to the significant amount involved, 
requirements to disclose utilization of 
proceeds from IPO and disclosure 
requirements of 4th Schedule of the 
Companies Act, 2017. 

Our audit procedures in relation to listing 
of Company is Pakistan Stock Exchange 
(PSX) included the following: 

• Reviewed the management working 

of utilization of proceeds from IPO. 

• Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure 

as required under applicable financial 

reporting framework and 

requirements of the Companies Act, 

2017. 

4. Property, plant and equipment 

The Company has made significant 
expenditure on expansion of 
manufacturing facilities and new projects. 

During the year, the Company has also 
reclassified some categories of its 
operating fixed assets and resultantly 
comparative figures of those categories of 
assets are also reclassified to reflect better 
presentation. 

Our audit procedures in relation to 
capitalization of property, plant and 
equipment, amongst others included the 
following; 

• Understanding the design and 
implementation of management 

controls over capitalization and 

performing tests of control over 
authorization of capital expenditure 
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We identified capitalization of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because there is a risk that amounts being
capitalized may not meet the
capitalization criteria with related
implications on depreciation charge for
the year and reclassification of categories
of assets.

and accuracy of its recording in
system,

Testing, on sample basis, the costs

incurred on projects with supporting

documents and contracts.

Assessing the nature ofcosts incurred

for capital projects through testing,

on sample basis, of amounts recorded

and considering whether the

expenditure meets the criteria for
capitalization as per the accounting

policy and applicable accounting

standards.

Checked the reasonableness of
management's assessment of
categories of assets and working of

reclassification in categories of assets

including impact of reclassification on

both cost of assets and accumulated

depreciation in each category.

Inspecting supporting documents for
the date of capitalization when

project was ready for its intended use

to assess whether depreciation

commenced and further
capitalization of costs ceased from

that date and assessing the useful life

assigned by management including

testing the calculation of related

depreciation,

5. Inventories
The company has significant levels of
inventories amounting to Rs. 7,1,70.15

million as at the reporting date, being

18% ofthe total assets ofthe company.

There is a risk in estimating the eventual

NRV of items held, as well as assessing

which items may be slow-moving or

Our audit focused on whether the valuation

of year-end inventory was in line with IAS

2. This included challenging judgments

taken regarding obsolescence and net

realizable value provisions.

We obtained assurance over the

appropriateness of management's

KRESTON 

, HYDER BHIMJI & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

We identified capitalization of property, 
plant and equipment as a key audit matter 
because there is a risk that amounts being 
capitalized may not meet the 
capitalization criteria with related 
implications on depreciation charge for 
the year and reclassification of categories 
of assets. 

and accuracy of its recording in the 
system. 

• Testing, on sample basis, the costs 

incurred on projects with supporting 

documents and contracts. 

• Assessing the nature of costs incurred 
for capital projects through testing, 

on sample basis, of amounts recorded 
and considering whether the 

expenditure meets the criteria for 

capitalization as per the accounting 

policy and applicable accounting 

standards. 

• Checked the reasonableness of 

management's assessment of 

categories of assets and working of 

reclassification in categories of assets 

including impact of reclassification on 

both cost of assets and accumulated 

depreciation in each category. 

• Inspecting supporting documents for 

the date of" capitalization when 

project was ready for its intended use 

to assess whether depreciation 
commenced and further 

capitalization of costs ceased from 

Chat date and assessing the useful life 

assigned by management including 

testing the calculation of related 

depreciation. 

5. Inventories 

The company has significant levels of 

inventories amounting to Rs, 7,170.15 

million as at the reporting date, being 

18% of the total assets of the company. 

There is a risk in estimating the eventual 

NRV of items held, as well as assessing 

which items may be slow-moving or 

Our audit focused on whether the valuation 

of year-end inventory was in line with IAS 

2. This included challenging judgments 

taken regarding obsolescence and net 

realizable value provisions. 

We obtained assurance over the 

appropriateness of management's 
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obsolete.

The Company's principal accounting

policy on stores and spares and stock in

trade are disclosed in notes - 5.6 and 5'7

to the unconsolidated financial

statements

The significance of the balance coupled

with the judgments and estimates

involved on their valuation has resulted

in the inventories being considered as a

key audit matter.

assumptions applied in calculating the

value of inventories bY:

. Attending the year end stock take to

gain comfort over the existence and

condition of inventories and internai

controls designed bY the comPany.

r Obtaining the final valuation sheets of

the inventories and tracing quantities

from working papers of observation of

physical stock taking.

o Obtaining understanding of internal

controls designed bY the company

over recording of Purchases and

valuation of the inventories, and

testing their operating elfectiveness

on sample basis.

o Assessing historical costs recorded in

the inventory valuation by performing

test ofdetails on purchases, Evaluating

that the valuation basis used are

appropriate and consistent, including

analysis of costing of different items

on sample basis.

. Assessing the management's

determination of the net realizable

values and intended use of the

inventories including performing tests

on the sales Prices fetched bY the

company before and after Year end.

o Performing analytical and other

relevant audit Procedures'

. Considering the adequacY of the

company's disclosures in respect of

inventories.
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obsolete. 

The Company's principal accounting 

policy on stores and spares and stock in 

trade are disclosed in notes - 5.6 and 5.7 

to the unconsolidated financial 

statements 

The significance of the balance coupled 

with the judgments and estimates 
involved on their valuation has resulted 

in the inventories being considered as a 

key audit matter, 

assumptions applied in calculating the 

value of inventories by: 

• Attending the year end stock take to 

gain comfort over the existence and 

condition of inventories and internal 

controls designed by the company. 

• Obtaining the final valuation sheets of 

the inventories and tracing quantities 
from working papers of observation of 

physical stock taking. 

• Obtaining understanding of internal 

controls designed by the company 
over recording of purchases and 

valuation of the inventories, and 

testing their operating effectiveness 
on sample basis. 

• Assessing historical costs recorded in 

the inventory valuation by performing 
test of details on purchases. Evaluating 

that the valuation basis used are 
appropriate and consistent, including 

analysis of costing of different items 

on sample basis. 

• Assessing the management's 
determination of the net realizable 

values and intended use of the 

inventories including performing tests 

on the sales prices fetched by the 
company before and after year end. 

• Performing analytical and other 

relevant audit procedures. 

• Considering the adequacy of the 
company's disclosures in respect of 

inventories. 
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the

[information included in the Director's report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial
statements and auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, the requirements of the Companies Act, 20L7 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditors'Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and

to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable
in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
[information included in the Director's report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial 
statements and auditor's report thereon). 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard, 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so, 

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable 
in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also; 

■ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher Chan for one 
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

I Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusioris are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books ofaccount have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
4ct,2017 IXIX of 2017);

bl the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of' profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

" Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

■ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

■ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 

applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b] the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of 
profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
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Date: September 23,20L9
Place: Faisalabad

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash

flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act,20t7 IXIX of 2077) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
in accordance with for the purpose of the Company's business; and

dl zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 IXUII of 1980),
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established
under section 7 ofthat Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Khan
Muhammad - FCA,
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unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash 
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017} and are in agreement with the books of account and 
returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
in accordance with for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 [XVII1 of 1980), 
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established 
under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Khan 
Muhammad - FCA. 

Date: September 23,2019 
Place: Faisalabad 



INTERTOOP LIMITED

UNCONSOIIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT IUNE 30,2019

20L9 2018
--- Rupees in'000 ---

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Long term investments
Long term loans
Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposit, prepayment and other receivables
Tax refunds due from Government
Short term investments
Deferred employee share option compensation expense
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Reserves

Unappropriated profit

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Dividend payable
Accrued mark up
Short term borrowings
Current portion of non current liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

7

B

9
10
LL

T2

13
L4
15
L6
L7
1B

'.,
L9

18,256,474
66,L6L

1,008,73 5

65,762
28,Ot9

L5,451,,969
42,41,0

380,549
60,7 47
2 5,05 5

15,960,7 30t9,425,151

20

2t
22

40,782,622

__19p9!JA_q_
4,72L,975
3,791,602
s,366,2O7

L7,479,784

2a 750 L93

__*______il_a!,0!q_

t,901,,1,04
38,863

7 ,L42,57 0

9,082,537

23
2,4

25

26

27
2B
29

30

3,628,745

2,482,623
6,tLl,368

2,247,936
615

1,925,612
4,1,7 4,1,63

3,576,a6L
130,93 5

LLO,4A3
Lt,726,O00
L,247,Lgl

L6,79L,470

2,730,41,4
475,27 6

1,37,856
15,180,93 7

969,01,0
t9,493,493

TOTAT EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

______19Js2,622_ 32,750,193
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487,659
6,2A2,49L
8,247,7 40
L,063,342

204,985
L,925,439
L,207,25r

1,538.564
21,357,47L

779,1,98

5,r21,71,8
7,293,008

617 ,7 43
1,79,864

2,45I,806
L47,425

5,014
193.687

L6,789,463

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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I.NTERLOOP L!>JITED 

UNCONSOLEDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30. 2019 

ASSETS 
NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible asset 
Long term investments 
Long term loans 
Long term deposits 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Stores and spares 
Stock in trade 
Trade debts 
Loans and advances 
Deposit prepayment and other receivables 
Tax refunds due from Government 
Short term Investments 
Deferred employee share option compensation expense 
Cash and bank balances 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

Authorized share capital 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 
Reserves 
Unappropriated profit 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long term financing 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
Deferred liabilities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 
Dividend payable 
Accrued markup 
Short term borrowings 
Current portion of non current liabilities 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Note 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
22 
19 

20 

21 
22 

23 
24 
25 

26 

27 
28 
29 

30 

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in '000 — 

18,256,474 
66,161 

1,008,735 
65,762 
28,019 

19,425.151 

887,659 
6,282,491 
8,247.740 
1,063,342 

204,985 
1,925,439 
1,207,251 

1,538,564 
21,357,471 

40,782.622 

10,000,000 

8,721,975 
3,791,602 
5,366,207 

17,879,784 

3,628,745 

2,482,623 
6,111,368 

3,576,861 
130,935 
110,483 

11,726,000 
1,247,191 

15,451,969 
42,410 

380,549 
60,747 
25,055 

15,960,730 

779,198 
5,121,718 
7,293,008 

617,743 
179,864 

2,451,806 
147,425 

5,014 
193,687 

16,789,463 

32,750,193 

3,000,000 

1,901,104 
38,863 

7,142,570 
9,082,537 

2,247,936 
615 

1,925,612 
4,174,163 

2,730,414 
475,276 
137,856 

15,180,937 
969,010 

16,791,470 19,493,493 

40,782,622 32,750,193 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

V 
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INTERTOOP LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2019

Note
2019 20LA

--- Rupees in'000 ---

37,478,32L

{25,523,607)

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Distribution cost

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Other income

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

3l
32

31,t38,736

{2L,994,237)

33

34

35

36

LL,954,7L4

(2,783,719)

(L,eB4,z0e)

(784,54O)

14,444

(5,538,024)

9,L44,499

(2,641,013)

(1,se7,804)

(425,42e)

9,164

[4,6s5,082)

6,4L6,690

(995,707)

4,489,417

(483,654)37

3B

39.L

39.2

5,420,983

(226,216)

4,005,763

(119,9541

5,L94,767 3,BB5,BO9

Earnings per share - basic (Rupees)

Earnings per share - diluted [Rupees)

The annexed notes l- to 52 form an integral part ofthese financial statements.

6.6706 5.10 07

6.6706 5.10 0 3
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INTERLOOP LIMITED 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2019 

2019 2018 
Note — Rupees in '000 — 

Sales - not 31 37,478,321 31,138,736 

Cost of sales 32 (25,523,607) (21,994,237) 

Gross profit 11,954,714 9,144,499 

Operating expenses 

Distribution cost 33 (2,783,719) (2,641,013) 

Administrative expenses 34 (1,984,209) (1,597,804) 

Other operating expenses 35 (784,540) (425,429) 

Other income 36 14,444 9,164 

(5,538,024) (4,655,082) 

Profit from operations 6,416,690 4,489,417 

Finance cost 37 (995,707) (483,654) 

Profit before taxation 5,420,983 4,005,763 

Taxation 38 (226,216) (119,954) 

Profit for the year 5,194,767 3,885,809 

Earnings per share - basic (Rupees) 39.1 6.6706 5.100? 

Earnings per share - diluted (Rupees) 39.2 6.6706 5-1003 

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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INTERLOOP LIMITED

UNCONSOTIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20L9

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of post retirement benefits obligation

Total comprehensive income for the year

20L9 20LB
Note --- Rupees in'000 ---

5,194,767 3,885,809

25.5 (L92,A25) [e1,30s)

5,00L,942 3,794,504

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part ofthese financial statements.

WYPnt'

{l-
DIRECTOR

QrYcrALoFF'[cER

INTERLOOP LIMITED 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2019 

Note 
2019 2018 

— Rupees in'000 — 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive loss: 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 

Remeasurement of post retirement benefits obligation 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

25.5 

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

5,194,767 

(192,825) 

5,001,942 

3,885,809 

(91,305) 

3,794,504 

V 

CHI EX DIRECTOR 
... J 
A 

w 

NC1AL OFFICER 



INTERLOOP LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2019

capital Reseroe

share CaDital' Share Premium

Revenue Reseryes

Employee
ShareOption ljnappropriated
Compensation Profit

Reserue

Balance as at fuly 01, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

Employee share option scheme [ESOS]

Shares issued under the ESOS

Transferred to Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Ltd pursuant
to Scheme of Arrangement

Transactions with ownersi

Dividend to ordinary shareholders

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

Employee share option scheme [ESOSJ

Shares issued under the ESOS

lssuance of ordinary shares

Transaction cost on issuance of shares

Issuance of bonus shares

Transactions with owners:

Dividend to ordinary shareholders

Balance as at lune 30, 2019

3.885,809 3,885,809

- 191.3051 f91,305

1,899,385

7,558

1,095,000

5,718,3 13

L9,+24 r,629

8,234

(7,2ss)

72,522,990

3,794,504

(8,224,372)

(950,ss21

t4,443,428

3,794,50+

8,23+

1r,295

(8,224,372)

Ies0,ss2)

10,831L,719

L,90',104 8,608

- 5,194,767 5,194,',167

, (152,A251 (|92,AZS

30,2 55

27,522

3,934,900

(170,820)

(30,2s s)

1B

(a,626')

7,742,570

s,oot,942

(5,688,0s8)

(7,Oeo,247)

9,O42,537

s,o0t,94?

18

26,454

5,029,900

(1,7O,820)

(7,O9O,247)

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part ofthese financial statements
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INTERLDOP LIMITED 

UNCONSOL1 DATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 1UNE 3 Q. 2019 

Balance as at June 30,2019 8,721,975 3,791,602 5,360,207 

Capital Reserve Revenue Reserves 

Share Capital Share Premium 
Employee 

Share Option 
Compensarlon 

Reserve 

Unappropriated 
Profit 

Total 

Balance as at July 01,2017 1,099,385 19,424 1,629 12,522,990 14,443.423 

ProtUfor the year - - - 3,895,809 3,385,809 
Other comprehensive loss 
Total comprehensive Income for the year 

- . (91.305) (91,305) 
- 3,794,504 3,794,504 

Employee share option scheme (ESOS) • 0,234 8.234 
Shares issued under the ESOS 1,719 [1,255} 11,295 

Transferred to Tnterloop Holdings (Pvt) Ltd pursuant 
to Scheme of Arrangement - • [8,224,372) [8,224,372} 

Transactions with owners? 
Dividend to ordinary shareholders " [950,552) [950,552) 

Balance as at June 30, 2018 1,901,104 30,255 8,608 7.142,570 9.082,537 

Profit for the year - - 5,194,767 5,194,767 
Other comprehensive luss . [192,825) (192,825) 
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 5,001,942 5,001,942 

Employee share option scheme [ESOS) - - 18 - 1« 
Shares issued under the ESOS 7,558 27,522 [8,626) 26,454 

Issuance of ordinary shares 1,095,000 3,934,900 - 5,029,900 

Transaction cost on Issuance of shares - (170,021)) - - (170,820) 

Issuance of bonus shares 5,718,313 (30,255) - (5,688,058) 
Transactions with owners: 
Dividend to ordinary shareholders (1,090,247) (1,090.247) 

17.079,7R4 

The annexed noies 1 ti> 52 form an integral pan of these financial'slat em en is. 
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INTERLOOP LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

2019
Note

a) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adiustments for:

Depreciation
Amortization
Workers' profit participation fund
Staff retirement gratuity
Employee share option compensation expense
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Remeasurement loss on investment in mutual funds

Profit on TDRs

Interest on loan to Metis International [Pvt) Ltd
Interest income on long term loan to SNGPL

Provision for impairment loss

Interest on receivables from IL Bangla Limited
Finance cost

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in current assets

Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposit, prepayment and other receivables

Tax refunds due from government
Short term investment in mutual funds - net

(Decrease)/Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Finance cost paid
Income tax paid
Staff retirement gratuity paid
Workers' profit participation fund paid

Long term loans paid
Long term deposits [paidJ/received
Profit on TDRs received
Interest on loan to Metis International (Pvt) Ltd received

Interest income on loan to SNGPL received
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions in:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Advance for purchase of land
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long term investments
Net cash used in investing activities

20lB
--- Rupees in'000 ---

s,420,943 +,005,763

L,47L,535
10,371

210,830
4L4,543

4,788
38,694
10,908

(225)

lB,e23)

!tu,

483,654
6,647,322

[82,4s5)
[1,s5s,837)
(2,478,788)

309,805
303,043

[310,85 2)

(5,447,Bs3)

855,174
(t,529;607) 18,407,763)

1,64L,234
9,047

285,3L5
522,833

5,031
47,OgL
20,747

(rB2)
(7,?_L1)

70,814
(s,796)

995,707
9,005,653

(108,461)
(t,760,773)

(954,732)
(436,56s)
(L2,lL4)
403,246

(4,2s8)

744.L50

7,476,L46

(1,001,655)
(238,L95)
(t3L,021)
(232,069)

(74,049)
(3,202)

Laz

(7,766,44I)

(422,7 66)
(zge,2Br)
(152,7e4)
(156,373)
(14,7el)

4,377
225

6,522
76

5,856,137 (2,790,766)

b)

(4,632,2e5)
(32,7_98)

t39,466
(699,000)

(5,224,627)

(3,478,451)
(s,s7 6)

(23,8e7)
65,507

(7,084,864)
(4,467,281.)

INTERLOOP LIMITED 

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 

a) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before taxation 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Workers' profit participation fund 
Staff retirement gratuity 
Employee share option compensation expense 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Remeasurement loss on investment in mutual funds 
Profit on TDRs 
Interest on loan to Metis International (Pvt) Ltd 
Interest income on long term loan to SNGPL 
Provision for impairment loss 
Interest on receivables from IL Bangla Limited 
Finance cost 
Operating cash Hows before working capital changes 

2019 2018 
--- Rupees in '000   

5,420,983 4,005,763 

1,641,234 1,471,535 
9,047 10,371 

285,315 210,830 
522,833 414,543 

5,031 4,180 
47,091 38,694 
20,787 10,908 

(182) (225) 
(7,211) (8,923) 

• (16) 
70,814 - 
(5,796) - 

995,707 483,654 
9,005,653 6,641,322 

Changes in working capital 

Stores and spares (108,461) (82,455) 
Stock in trade (1,160,773) (1,555,837) 
Trade debts (954,732) (2.478,788) 
Loans and advances (436,565) 309,805 
Deposit, prepayment and other receivables (12,114) 303,043 
Tax refunds due from government 403,246 (310,852) 
Short term investment in mutual funds - net (4,258) (5,447,853) 

(DecreaseJ/Incrcase in current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 744,150 855,174 

(1,529,507) (8,407,763) 
Cash generated froin/(used in) operations 7,476,146 (1,766,441) 

Finance cost paid (1,001,655) (422,766) 
Income tax paid (238,195) (289,281) 
Staff retirement gratuity paid (131,021) (152,194) 
Workers' profit participation fund paid (232,069) (156,373) 
Long term loans paid (14,049) (14,791) 
Long term deposits (paid)/received (3,202) 4,317 
Profit on TDRs received 132 225 
interest on loan to Metis International (Pvt) Ltd received - 6,522 
Interest income on loan to SNGPL received - 16 

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 5,856,137 (2,790,766) 

b) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Additions in; 
Property, plant and equipment (4,632,295) (3,418,451) 
Intangible asset (32,798) (5,576) 

Advance for purchase of land - (23,897) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 139,466 65,507 

Long term investments (699,000) (1,084,864) 
Net cash used in investing activities (5,224,627) (4,467,281) 



2079 20LB
--- Rupees in'000 ---

c) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term financing obtained
Repayment oflong term financing
Payment ofliabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Short term borrowings - net
Share capital issued

Share premium net oftransaction cost

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year

Note

(a+b+c)

40

2,286,L32
L93,687

111,085

82,602

4,228,002
(2,568,542)

(847)
(3,454,937)
1,102,558
3,782,976

(1,434,588)
7,654,622

1,300,000

[1,010,816)
(43s)

7,544,364

L,719

9,57 6

(47 s,27 6)

7,369,132

2,479,819 193,687

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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Note 
2019 2018 

— Rupees in '000 — 

c) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Long term financing obtained 
Repayment of long term financing 
Payment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
Short term borrowings - net 
Share capital issued 
Share premium net of transaction cost 
Dividend paid 
Net cash generated from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

(a+b+c) 

40 

4,228,002 1,300,000 
(2,568,542) (1,010,816) 

(847) (435) 
(3,454,937) 7,544.364 
1,102,558 1,719 
3,782,976 9,576 

(1,434,588) (475,276) 
1,654,622 7,369,132 

2,286,132 111,085 
193,687 82,602 

2,479,819 193,687 

The annexed notes 1 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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INTERLOOP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F'OR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2019

1. LEGALSTATUSAND OPERATIONS

1.1 lnterloop Limited [the Company] was incorporated in Pakistan on 25th April, 1992 as a private limited company and subsequently it
was converted into public limited company on 18th fuly, 2008. The Company was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on Sth April,
2019. The Company is engaged in the business ofmanufacturing and selling ofsocks, leggies, denim and yarn, providing yarn dyeing
services and to generate electricity for its own use.

The geographical locations and addresses ofthe Company's business units, including production facilities are as under:

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157 , Railway Road, Faisalabad.

1-KM, Khurrianwala - Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad-Pakistan.

7-KM, Khurrianwala - Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad-Pakistan.

6-KM, Khurrianwala - faranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad-Pakistan.

B-KM, Manga- Raiwind Road, Raiwind, Dist. Kasur, Lahore-Pakistan.

1.2 The Board of Directors of the Company decided to initiate the proceedings for enlisting of the Company on the Pakistan Stock

Exchange Limited to finance hosiery division - V and denim projects. Hence, the Company issued the prospectus for lnitial Public Offer

(IPOJ of 109 million ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each at a floor price of Rupees 45 per share including share premium of Rupees 35

per share as on 05 March 2019. Details regarding utilization oflPO proceeds for denim project and plant expansion have been fully
explained in the prospectus. Before the date of the reporting period, 81.750 million ordinary shares were offered and successfully

subscribed through book building process by Institutional Investors and High Net Worth Individuals IHNWI] at a strike price of
Rupees 46.10 per share while the remaining 27.250 million ordinary shares were offered to general public for subscription at strike

price ofRupees 46.10 per share. Ordinary shares offered to general public were fully subscribed and shares have been duly allotted to

all shareholders. As on 05 April 2019, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited has approved the Company's application for formal listing and

quotation ofthe shares on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

2. BASISOFPREPARATION

2.t Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- lnternational Financial Reporting Standards flFRS StandardsJ issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASBJ as

notified under the Companies Act, 2077; and

- Provisions ofand directives issuedunderthe Companies Act,201,7.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and

directives issued under the Companies Act,2077 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in

respective policy notes.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the Company's functional currency.

3, NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

3.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year

Amendment to IAS 40 'Investment Property':

Transfers of investment property clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only

when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investnlent

property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for the use of a property does

not provide evidence ofa change in use. The amendment does not have any impact on Company's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarifying how to account for certain types of share-based payments:

The amendments are intended to eliminate diversity in practice in three main areas:

- The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;

- The classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations;

- The accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its

classifi cation from cash-settled to equity-settled.
The amendment does not have a significant impact on these unconsolidated financial statements.

- Registered office:
- Corporate office & Plant 1:

- Plant 2, Plant 4 & Spinning:
- Plant 5:
- Plant3&Denim:

1NTEUL00P LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 

1.1 Interloop Limited (the Company] was incorporated in Pakistan on 25th April, 1992 as a private limited company and subsequently it 
was converted Into public limited company on 18th [uly, 2008. The Company was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on 5th April, 
2019, The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of socks, leggies, denim and yarn, providing yarn dyeing 
services and to generate electricity for Its own use. 

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company's business units, including production facilities are as under: 

- Registered office: Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-i57, Railway Road, Faisalabad. 
- Corporate office & Plant I: 1-KM, Khurrianwala - Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad-Pakistan. 
- Plant 2, Plant 4 & Spinning: 7-KM, Khurrianwala - Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad-Pakistan. 
• Plant 5: 6-KM, Khurrianwala - Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad-Pakistan. 
- Plant 3 & Denim: 8-KM, Manga- Raiwind Road, Raiwind, Disl. Kasur, Lahore-Pakistan. 

1.2 The Board of Directors of the Company decided to initiate the proceedings for enlisting of the Company on the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited to finance hosiery division - V and denim projects. Hence, the Company issued the prospectus for Initial Public Offer 
[IPO] of 109 million ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each at a floor price of Rupees 45 per share including share premium of Rupees 35 
per share as on 05 March 2019, Details regarding utilization of IPO proceeds for denim project and plant expansion have been fully 
explained In the prospectus. Before the date of the reporting period, 81.750 million ordinary shares were offered and suecessfuily 
subscribed through book building process by Institutional Investors and High Net Worth Individuals (HNWf) at a strike price of 
Rupees 46.10 per share while the remaining 27.250 million ordinary shares were offered to general public for subscription at strike 
price ofRupees 46.10 per share. Ordinary shares offered to general publicwere fully subscribed and shares have been duly allotted to 
all shareholders. As on OS April 2019, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited has approved the Company's application for formal listing and 
quotation of the shares on Pakistan Stock Exchange, 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

These unconsoildated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards] issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB] as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise staled hi 
respective policy notes. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the Company's functional currency. 

3. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND PRONOUNCEMENTS 
3.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year 

• Amendment to IAS 40 "Investment Property': 

Transfers of investment property clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only 
when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the properly meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment 
property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for the use of a property does 
not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendment does not have any impact on Company's financial statements. 

• Amendments to IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment' - Clarifying how to account for certain types of share-based payments: 

The amendments are intended to eiiminate diversity in practice in three main areas: 
- The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction: 
- The classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; 
- The accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its 
classification from cash-settled to equity-settied. 

The amendment does not have a significant Impact on these unconsolidated financial statements. 



3.2

. Amendment to IFRS 4 'Insurance Contract'- Applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' with IFRS 4:

The amendment address issue arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contract
standard IFRS 17'Insurance Contracts'. The amendments introduce two alternative options for entities issuing contracts within the
scope of IFRS 4, notably a temporary exemption and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to
defer the implementation date of IFRS 9. The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 from )uly 01, 2018 onwards to
remove from profit or loss the effects ofsome ofthe accounting mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is

applied. The amendment does not have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

. IFRS 9'Financial instruments':

IFRS 9 is a replacement for IAS 39 'Financial Instruments' and covers three distinct areas. Phase 1 contains new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. Phase 2 relates to the impairment of financial assets and

requires the calculation ofimpairment on an expected loss basis rather than the current incurred loss basis. Phase 3 relates to less

stringent requirements for general hedge accounting. Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 is disclosed in Note. 6.1 of the unconsolidated
financial statements.

- IFRS 15,'Revenue from Contracts with Customers':

This standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entify's contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the abiliqz to direct the use

and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction contracts' and IFRIC

13, 'Customer Loyalty Programmes'. Impact of adoption of IFRS 15 is disclosed in Note. 6.2 of the unconsolidated financial
statements.

- IFRIC 22,'Foreign cunency transactions and advance consideration':

IFRIC 22 clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves piyment or receipt in
advance ofthe item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is

received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date ofthe transaction for the purpose ofdetermining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income [or part of it) would remain the date on

which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the

entity shall determine a date ofthe transaction for each payment or receipt ofadvance consideration. The interpretation does not

have a significant impact on these unconsolidated financial statements.

- Annual improvements to IFRS standards 20t4-2lt6 cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 'lnvestments in Associates and Joint
Ventures']:

Amendments to IAS 2B clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in
associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial
recognition ofinvestment. Furthermore, similar election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or

ioint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that
investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This

election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments do not have any impact on these

unconsolidated financial statements.

The other amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year are considered not to be

relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's financial reporting and operations and.are therefore not disclosed in

these unconsolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are issued but not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Company

- Amendment to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits, - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement' [effective for annual period
beginning on or after fanuary 01,2O19)t

The amendments to IAS 1,9 speciSr that an entity must;

ti) determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using

the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset] reflecting the benefits offered under

the plan and the plan assets after that event and determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan

amendment, curtailment or settlement using:

[a] the net defined benefit liability [asset] reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after

that event; and

[bJ the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability [asset].

(iD determine any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This

amount is to be recognized in profit or loss. An entity then determine the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan

amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in net interest, is

recognized in other comprehensive income.

The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the amendment,

Ameniiment to IFRS 4 'Insurance Contract"- Applying IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments' with IFRS 4: 

The amendment address issue arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contract 
standard IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts'. The amendments introduce two alternative options for entities issuing contracts within the 
scope of IFRS 4, notably a temporary exemption and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to 
defer the implementation date of IFRS 9, The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 from July 01, 2018 onwards to 
remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is 
applied. The amendment does not have any impact on the Company's financial statements. 

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments': 

IFRS 9 is a replacement for IAS 39 'Financial Instruments' and covers three distinct areas. Phase 1 contains new requirements for 
the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. Phase 2 relates to the impairment of financial assets and 
requires the calculation of impairment on an expected loss basis rather than the current incurred loss basis. Phase 3 relates to less 
stringent requirements for genera! hedge accounting. Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 is disclosed in Note. 6.1 of the unconsolidated 
financial statements. 

- IFRS IS, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers': 

This standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial 
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity's contracts with 
customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use 
and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18 'Revenue', IAS 11 'Construction contracts' and IFRiC 
13. 'Customer Loyalty Programmes'. Impact of adoption of IFRS 15 is disclosed in Note. 6.2 of the unconsolidated financial 
statements. 

- IFRIC 22, 'Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration': 

IFRIC 22 clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt In 
advance of the item it relates to. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is 
received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining 
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income [or part of it] would remain the date on 
which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are multiple paj'ments or receipts in advance, the 
entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation does not 
have a significant Impact on these unconsolidated financial statements. 

- Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2014-2016 cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures'): 

Amendments to IAS 28 clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in 
associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture separately at the lime of initial 
recognition of investment Furthermore, similar election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or 
joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that 
investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This 
election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments do not have any impact on these 
unconsolidated financial statements. ; 

The other amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year are considered not to be 
relevant or to have any significant impact on the Company's financial reporting and operations and are therefore not disclosed in 
these unconsolidated financial statements. 

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are issued but not yet effective and have 
not been early adopted by the Company 

- Amendment to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits, - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement' (effective for annual period 
beginning on or after January 01, 2019): 

The amendments to IAS 19 specify that an entity must; 

(i) determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using 
the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under 
the plan and the plan assets after that event and determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement using; 
(a) the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after 

that event; and 
(b) the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset). 

(ii) determine any past service cost or a gain or loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This 
amount is to be recognized In profit or loss. An entity then determine the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in net interest, is 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 

The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the amendment. 



Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and foint Ventures' - Long term investment in Associates and foint
Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after fanuary Ol,2O19):

The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not
expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or'LTI'J. The amendment and accompanying example state
that LTI are in the scope ofboth IFRS 9 and IAS 2B and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The

amendment is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instrument'- prepayment Features with Negative Compensation and modifications of
financial liabilities (effective for annual period beginning on or after fanuary O1,2O19):

The amendment allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment features to be measured at amortized cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income. The amendment also clarified that gains and losses arising on modifications of
financial liabilities that do not result in derecognition should be recognized in profit or loss,

IFRS 16, 'Leases' (effective for periods beginning on or after fanuary 01, 2019):

IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a

term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset

representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The full impact of the future adoption is currently under review.

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after fanuary 0l,2O1.9):

IFRIC 23 clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 'lncome taxes', are applied where there is

uncertainty over income tax treatments. An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is

uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. For example, a decision to claim a deduction for a

specific expense or not to include a specific item of income in a tax return is an uncertain tax treatment if its acceptability is

uncertain under tax law. IFRIC 23 applies to all aspects of income tax accounting where there is an uncertainty regarding the

treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. The

interpretation is not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

' Amendments to IAS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements', and IAS 8, 'Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors' (effective for the Company's annual period beginning on fanuary 1,2O79):

These amendments and consequential amendments to other IFRSs:

[iJ use a consistent definition of materiality throughout IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting;

[ii) clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and

fiiiJ incorporate some of the guidance in IAS ]- about immaterial information.
These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's future financial statements.

. Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 fanuary 2020):

The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a

business or a group of assets. The amendments clari$r that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must

include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The

amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore

would not have an impact on past financial statements.

' Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 20tS-2O77 Cycle. The new cycle of improvements addresses improvements to
following approved accounting standards (effective for annual period beginning on or after fanuary 1,2019)t

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11. loint Arrangements. The amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment
when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures

its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control ofthe business. A company does not remeasure

its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains ioint control of the business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on

financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the

distributable profits.

- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The amendment clarify that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are

yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purposes of their applicability in
Pakistan:

IFRS - 1 'First time adoption of lnternational Financial Reporting Standards"

IFRS - 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'.

IFRS - 17'lnsurance Contracts'.

Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long term investment In Associates and Joint 
Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2019): 

The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not 
expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or 'LTI'). The amendment and accompanying example state 
that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The 
amendment is not likely to have an Impact on the Company's financial statements. 

Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instrument'- prepayment Features with Negative Compcnsalion and modifications of 
financial liabilities (effective for annual period beginning on or after January 01,2019): 

The amendment allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment features to be measured at amortized cost or fair 
value through other comprehensive Income, The amendment also clarified that gains and losses arising on modifications of 
financial liabilities that do not result In derecognltion should be recognized in profit or loss. 

IFRS 16, 'Leases' (effective for periods beginning on or after January 01,2019): 

!FRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for ail leases with a 
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value, A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. 
The full impact of the future adoption is currently under review. 

IFR1C 23 'Uncertainly over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01,2019): 

IFRIC 23 clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 'Income taxes', are applied where there is 
uncertainty over income tax treatments. An uncertain tax treatment Is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is 
uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. For example, a decision to claim a deduction for a 
specific expense or not to include a specific item of income in a tax return is an uncertain tax treatment if its acceptability is 
uncertain under tax law. IFRiC 23 applies to all aspects of income tax accounting where there is an uncertainty regarding the 
treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. The 
interpretation is not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements. 

• Amendments to IAS I, 'Presentation of financial statements', and IAS 8, 'Accounting policies, changes in accounting 
estimates and errors' (effective for the Company's annual period beginning on January 1,2019): 

These amendments and consequential amendments to other iFRSs: 
(1) use a consistent definition of materiality throughout IFRSs and Che Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting; 
(ii) clarify the explanation of the definition of material; and 
(ili) incorporate some of the guidance in iAS 1 about immaterial information. 
These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's future Financial statements. 

■ Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which 
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020): 

The IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a 
business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must 
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The 
amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore 
would not have an impact on past financial statements. 

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle. The new cycle of improvements addresses improvements to 
following approved accounting standards (effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1,2019): 

• !FRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS II Joint Arrangements, The amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment 
when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures 
its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure 
its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business. 

IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment ciarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on 
financial Instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the 
distributable profits. 

- !AS 23 Borrowing Costs, The amendment clarify that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing 
originally mads to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale- 

Further, the following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which arc 
yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the purposes of their applicability In 
Pakistan: 

IFRS -1 'First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'. 
IFRS -14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts'. 
IFRS -17 'Insurance Contracts'. 



4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards require management to mal<e judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and

expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period

in which the estimates are revised ifthe revision affects only that period, or in the period ofthe revision and future periods. fudgments made

by management in application ofthe approved accounting standards that have significant effect on the unconsolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in respective policy notes. The areas where
various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:

. Estimate ofuseful life ofoperating fixed assets - note 5.1

. Impairment of non-financial assets - note 5.5

. Stores and spares - note 5.6

' Stock-in-trade - note 5.7

' Staff retirement benefits - note 5.10
. Provisions - note 5.13
. Contingencies - note 5.14

' Taxation - note 5.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Operating fixed assets and depreciation

Operating fixed assets, except freehold land which is stated at cost, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

identified accumulated impairment loss. Cost comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs.

Depreciation is calculated at the rates stated in note 7.1 applying reducing balance method. The useful life and residual value of
major components of operating fixed assets are reviewed annually to determine that expectations are not significantly different
from the previous estimates. Adjustment in depreciation rate for current and future periods is made if expectations are

significantly different from the previous estimates. Depreciation is charged from the month when an asset becomes available for
use, whereas no depreciation is charged in the month of its disposal. Gain and loss on disposal of fixed assets is included in
statement ofprofit or loss.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of operating fixed assets beyond its original specification and its useful

life, is recognized as a capital expenditure and is added to the cost ofthe operating fixed assets. These are depreciated on reducing

balance method at the rate mentioned in the relevant note.

5.2 Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and represents direct cost of material, labour,

applicable overheads and borrowing costs on qualifuing assets. Transfers are made to relevant property, plant and equipment

category as and when assets are available for its intended use.

5.3 Leases

Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating

leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor] are charged to the income statement

on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

Finance leases

Leases in terms of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.

Assets subiect to finance lease are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and

the fair value of the assets, less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment Ioss.

The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term liability depending upon the timing of the

payment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding.

The interest element of the rental is charged to statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset on a reducing balance method at

the rates given in note 7.1, Depreciation ofleased assets is charged to statement ofprofit or loss.

Residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.

Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired, while no depreciation is

charged for the month in which the asset is disposed ofl

5.

4. CR!T)CAl ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards require management to make Judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period 
in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods. Judgments made 
by management in application of the approved accounting standards that have significant effect on the unconsolidated financial statements 
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in respective policy notes. The areas where 
various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of 
accounting policies are as follows: 

• Estimate of useful life of operating fixed assets - note 5,1 
• Impairment of non-financial assets - note 5,5 
• Stores and spares - note 5.6 
• Stock-in-trade - note 5.7 
• Staff retirement benefits - note 5,10 
• Provisions - note 5,13 
■ Contingencies - note 5.14 
• Taxation - note 5.15 

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

5.1 Operating fixed assets and depreciation 

Operating fixed assets, except freehold land which is stated at cost, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 
Identified accumulated impairment loss. Cost comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs. 

Depreciation Is calculated at the rates stated in note 7.1 applying reducing balance method. The useful life and residual value of 
major components of operating fixed assets are reviewed annually to determine that expectations are not significantly different 
from the previous estimates. Adjustment in depreciation rate for current and future periods is made if expectations are 
significantly different from the previous estimates. Depreciation is charged from the month when an asset becomes available for 
use, whereas no depreciation Is charged in the month of its disposal. Gain and loss on disposal of fixed assets is Included In 
statement of profit or loss. 

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of operating fixed assets beyond its original specification and its useful 
life, Is recognized as a capital expenditure and is added to the cost of the operating fixed assets. These are depreciated on reducing 
balance method at the rate mentioned in the relevant note. 

5.2 Capital work In progress 

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified Impairment loss and represents direct cost of material, labour, 
applicable overheads and borrowing costs on qualifying assets. Transfers are made to relevant properly, plant and equipment 
category as and when assets are available for its Intended use. 

5.3 Leases , 

Operating leases 

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating 
leases. Payments made under operating leases [net of any incentives received from the lessor] are charged to the income statement 
on a straight-line basis over the period of lease. 

Finance leases 

Leases in terms of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 
Assets subject to finance lease are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and 
the fair value of the assets, less accumulated depreciation and any identified Impairment loss. 

The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as airrent and long term liability depending upon the timing of the 
payment 

Each lease payment Is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rale on the balance outstanding. 
The interest element of the rental Is charged to statement of profit or loss over the lease term. 

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset on a reducing balance method at 
the rates given in note 7.1. Depreciation of leased assets is charged to statement of profit or loss. 

Residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. 

Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired, while no depreciation is 
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. 
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(a)

Intangible asset - Computer software

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified accumulated impairment loss, These are
amortized using the reducing balance method at the rates given in note B. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in
which an intangible asset is acquired, while no amortization is charged for the month in which intangible asset is disposed off,

Costs associated with maintaining computer software program are recognized as an expense as and when incurred. Costs that are

directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognized as an

intangible asset at the time of initial recognition. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overhead costs.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification and useful life, is

recognized as a capital expenditure and added to the cost ofthe software. These are amortized on reducing balance method at the

rate mentioned in the relevant note.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts ofthe Company's non-financial assets, other than stock in trade and stores and spares, are reviewed at each

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists then the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use,

recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A
cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other
assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated

first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other

assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses on goodwill shall not be reversed.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Prior impairments of non-

financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Stores and spares

Stores and spares are carried at moving average cost. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete store items when so

identified. Stores and spares held for capital expenditure are included in capital work in progress.

Stock-in-trade

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value [NRV]. The methods used for the calculation of cost are as follows:

Raw material - At factory

- In transit
Work in process and finished goods

Wastes are valued at net realizable value

Moving average cost

Invoice value plus direct charges in respect thereof.
Prime cost including a proportion ofproduction overheads.

5.8

5.9

Stock-in-trade is regularly reviewed by the management and any obsolete items are brought down to their net realizable value Net

realizable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness less costs necessary to beincurred to affect such sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cheques in hand/cheques overdrawn, balances with banks and include short

term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The cash and cash equivalents are readily

convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groupsJ are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered

principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. lmpairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent

gains or losses on re-measurements are recognized in the statement ofprofit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, are no longer amortized or depreciated.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees accoiding to the terms of employment, subject to a

minimum qualifuing period of service, Annual provision is made on the basis of actuarial valuation to cover obligations under the

scheme for all employees eligible to gratuity benefits.

5.4 Intangible asset - Computer software 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified accumulated impairment loss. These are 
amortized using the reducing balance method at the rates given in note 8. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in 
which an intangible asset is acquired, while no amortization is charged For the month in which intangible asset is disposed off. 

Costs associated with maintaining computer software program are recognized as an expense as and when incurred. Costs that are 
directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognized as an 
intangible asset at the time of initial recognition. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overhead costs. 

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification and useful life, is 
recognized as a capital expenditure and added to the cost of the software. These are amortized on reducing balance method at the 
rate mentioned in the relevant note. 

5.5 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stock in trade and scores and spares, are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, 
recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount A 
cash-generating unit Is the smallest identifiabie asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other 
assets and groups. 

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated 
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other 
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses on goodwill shall not be reversed. 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Prior Impairments of non- 
financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date. 

5.6 Stores and spares 

Stores and spares are carried at moving average cost. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete store items when so 
identified. Stores and spares held for capital expenditure are included in capital work in progress. 

5.7 Stock-in-trade 

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). The methods used for the calculation of cost are as follows: 

Raw material - At factory M oving average cost 

- In transit Invoice value plus direct charges in respect thereof. 
Work in process and finished goods Prime cost Including a proportion of production overheads. 
Wastes are valued at net realizable value. 

Stock-in-trade is regularly reviewed by the management and any obsolete items are brought down to their net realizable value. Met 
realizable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred to affect such sale, 

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cheques in hand/cheques overdrawn, balances with banks and include short 
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The cash and cash equivalents are readily 
convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. 

5.9 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets [or disposal groups} are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the 
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent 
gains or losses on re-tncasurements are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, are no longer amortized or depreciated. 

5.10 Staff retirement benedts 

(a) Defined Benefit Plan 

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees according to the terras of employment, subject to a 
minimum qualifying period of service. Annual provision Is made on the basis of actuarial valuation to cover obligations under the 
scheme for all employees eligible to gratuity benefits. 



(b)

The cost ofproviding benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at
each balance sheet date. Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses i,e, experience
adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The

Company determines net interest expense/(incor-ne] on the defined benefit obligation for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to then-net defined benefil taking into
account any change in the net defined benefit obligation during the period as a result ofcontributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses e.g. current service cost, related to defined benefit plans are recognized in statement of profit
or loss.

Defined Contribution Plan

There is a contributory provident fund for executive staff of the Company for which contributions are charged to profit or loss as

and when incurred.

The Company makes monthly contribution to the fund at the rate of 7.5o/o whereas employees of the Company make monthly
contributions to the fund at the rates ranging from7.5o/o to 72.5o/o of basic salary. The assets of the fund are held separately under

the control of trustees.

(c) Employees'Share Option Scheme (ESOS)

The Company operates an equity settled stock option scheme to be called 'lnterloop Limited - Employees Stock Option Scheme,

2076'. The compensation committee ["committee"J of the Board of directors ("Board"J evaluates the performance and other
criteria of employees and recommends to the Board for grant of options. The Board on the recommendation of the committee, on

its discretion, grants recommended options to employees. These options vest after a specified period subject to fulfillment of
certain conditions as defined in the scheme. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Company's

shares at a pre-determined price on the date of grant of options.

The fair value ofthe share option is measured at grant date as difference of fair value ofshare and exercise price and is recognized

as an employee compensation expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, on the straight line basis over the vesting period.

The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that
meet the related service and non- market performance conditions at the vesting date.

When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to share capital (nominal value]

and share premium.

5.11 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using effective interest rate

method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of Iiabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying

amount of the respective liabilities.

5,12 Ijarah

Ijarah payments under an Ijarah are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

Ijarah term.

5.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events and it is probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate ofthe amount

can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. lf it is no longer probable

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provisions are reversed.

5.14 Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events

cannot be predicted with certainty. The company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of

contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence ofthe uncertain future events.

5.15 Taxation

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits, rebates

and exemptions available, if any. However, for income covered under Final Taxation Regime IFTRJ, taxation is based on the

applicable tax rates under such Regime after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax basis

used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax is calculated by using the tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. In

this regard, the effect on deferred taxation ofthe portion ofincome subjected to Final Tax Regime is adjusted in accordance with

the requirements of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, if considered material.

The cost of providing benefits Is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at 
each balance sheet date. Remeasuremcnt of net dellned benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses i.e. experience 
adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The 
Company determines net interest expense/fin come) on the defined benefit obligation for the period by applying the discount rate 
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to then-net defined benefit, taking into 
account any change in the net defined benefit obligation during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net 
interest expense and other expenses e.g. current service cost, related to defined benefit plans are recognized in statement of profit 
or loss. 

(bj Defined Contribution Plan 

There is a contributory provident fund for executive staff of the Company for whicli contributions are charged to profit or loss as 
and when incurred. 

The Company makes monthly contribution to the fund at the rate of 7.5% whereas employees of the Company make monthly 
contributions to the fund at the rates ranging from 7.5% to 12.5% of basic salary. The assets of the fund are held separately under 
the contro! of trustees, 

{c) Employees' Share Option Scheme (KSOS) 

The Company operates an equity settled stock option scheme to be called Tnterioop Limited - Employees Stock Option Scheme, 
2016", The compensation committee ("committee") of the Board of directors ("Board") evaluates the performance and other 
criteria of employees and recommends to the Board for grant of options. The Board on the recommendation of the committee, on 
its discretion, grants recommended options to employees. These options vest after a specified period subject to fulnilmenl of 
certain conditions as defined in the scheme. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Company's 
shares at a pre-determlned price on the date of grant of options. 

The fair value of the share option is measured at grant date as difference of fair value of share and exercise price and is recognized 
as an employee compensation expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, on the straight line basis over the vesting period. 
The amount recognized as an expense Is adjusted to reflect the number-of awards for which the related service and non-market 
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that 
meet the related service and non- market performance conditions at the vesting date. 

When share options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction costs, are credited to siiare capital (nominal value) 
and share premium. 

5.11 Trade and other payablcs 

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using effective interest rate 
method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying 
amount of the respective liabilities, 

5.12 Ijarah 

Ijarah payments under an ijarah are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
Ijarah term. 

5.13 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount 
can be made. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provisions are reversed. 

5.14 Contingencies 

The assessment of the contingencies inherently Involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events 
cannot be predicted with certainty. The company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of 
contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events. 

5.15 Taxation 

Current 

The charge for current taxation Is based on taxable income at current rales of taxation after taking into account tax credits, rebates 
and exemptions available, if any. However, for income covered under Final Taxation Regime (FTR), taxation is based on the 
applicable tax rates under such Regime after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. 

Deferred 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences 
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax basis 
used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax is calculated by using the tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. In 
this regard, the effect on deferred taxation of the portion of income subjected to Final Tax Regime is adjusted in accordance with 
the requirements of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, if considered material 
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Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which these can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Foreign currency translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet

date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into rupees at

exchange rates prevailing atthe date oftransaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are

stated at fair value are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined. Exchange
gains and losses are included in the statement of profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period oftime to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost ofthose assets, until
such time when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit or loss in the period of as and when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that entity will comply with the conditions attached to it
and grant will be received.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share [EPS] for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit by weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's unconsolidated financial
statements in the period in which dividends are approved.

Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (businessJ segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the
Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses

that relate to the transactions with any of the Company's other components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed
regularly by the chief operating decision maker ['CODM'J to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and

assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance ofthe operating segments, has been identified as the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company that
makes the strategic decisions.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be

allocated on a reasonable basis. Those incomes, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which cannot be allocated to a

particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated.

Transaction among the business segments are recorded at cost. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

Investment in subsidiary and associate

Investments in subsidiary and associate are recognized at cost less impairment loss, if any. At each balance sheet date, the
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are

adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying
amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of
investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The profits and losses of subsidiary and associated entities are carried forward in their financial statements and not dealt within
these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiary and associate. Gains and losses on disposal of
investments are included in other income.

Related.party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out at agreed terms and conditions and on arm's length basis.

s.24

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences and carry forward of unused lax losses and unused tax credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which these can be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Significant 
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely 
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

5.16 Foreign currency translation 

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet 
date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non- 
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into rupees at 
exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are 
stated at fair value are translated Into rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined. Exchange 
gains and losses are included in the statement of profit or loss immcdiatoly. 

5.17 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until 
such time when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement 
of profit or loss in the period of as and when incurred. 

5.1B Government grants 

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that entity will comply with the conditions attached to il 
and grant will be received, 

S.1V Earnings per share 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 
profit by weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting for the effects of 
all dilative potential ordinary shares. 

5.20 Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. 

5.21 Dividend 

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability In the Company's unconsolidated financial 
statements in the period in which dividends are approved. 

5.22 Segment reporting 

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the 
Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses 
that relate to the transactions with any of the Company's other components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the chief operating decision maker ('CODM') to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and 
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that 
makes the strategic decisions. 

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Those incomes, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which cannot be allocated to a 
particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated. 

Transaction among the business segments are recorded at cost. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total. 

5.23 Investment in subsidiary and associate 

Investments in subsidiary and associate are recognized at cost lass impairment loss, if any. At each balance sheet date, the 
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are 
adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying 
amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of 
investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

The profits and losses of subsidiary and associated entities are carried forward in their financial statements and not dealt within 
these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiary and associate. Cains and losses on disposal of 
investments are included in other income. 

5.24 Related party transactions 

All transactions with related parties are carried out at agreed terms and conditions and on arm's length basis. 



6. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES DUE TO APPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAT REPORTING STANDARDS
(rFRS)

6,1 IFRS9,'FinancialInstruments':

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

6.1.1 Financial assets

The standard introduced new classification and measurement models for financial assets, A financial asset shall be measured at
amortized cost if it is held in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are 'solely payment of
principal and interest ISPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. A debt investment shall be measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income if it is held in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates that are solely principal and

interest and as well as selling the asset on the basis ofits fair value. All other financial assets are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss unless the Company makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity

instruments in other comprehensive income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured

at fair value through profit or loss to reduce the effect ol or eliminate, an accounting mismatch.

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9

A. Classification and measurement of financial instruments

Investments and other financial assets

Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- thosetobemeasuredsubsequentlyatfairvalue[eitherthroughothercomprehensiveincome,orthroughprofitorloss],and

- those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows. In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCl, it needs to give

rise to cash flows that are'solely payments ofprincipal and interest ISPPI]' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment

is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company's business model for managing financial assets

refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For

investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity

instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments

when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the finaneial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely

payment of principal and interest.

il Detrt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow

characteristics ofthe asset, There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal

and interest are measured at amortized cost. lnterest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the

effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in

other income / (other expensesJ together with foreign exchange gains and losses. lmpairment losses are presented as separate line

item in the statement ofprofit or Ioss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through

other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses {and reversal of impairment losses), interest income

and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES DUE TO APPLICABILITY OF CERTAIN INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 
(IFRS) 

6.1 IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments': 

A financial Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. 

6.1.1 Financial assets 

The standard Introduced new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall be measured at 
amortized cost if it is held In order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are 'solely payment of 
principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. A debt investment shall be measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income if it is held in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates that are solely principal and 
interest and as well as selling the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other financial assets are classified and measured at fair value 
through profit or loss unless the Company makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity 
instruments in other comprehensive income, Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured 
at fair value through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch. 

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 

A. Classification and measurement of financial instruments 

iln.ve?tmg.nLs.Aii.d.p.thqr.finan.ci.al-itssp.ts 

Classification: 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss], and 

- those to be measured at amortized cost 

The classification depends on the Company's business ntodel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
cash flows. In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured al amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give 
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment 
is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company's business model for managing financial assets 
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the Investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to 
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investnienis 
when and only when Its business mode! for managing those assets changes. 

Measurement: 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of 
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered In their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely 
payment of principal and interest. 

i) Debt, instruments 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow 
characteristics of the asset There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments: 

Amortized cost 

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash Rows where those cash Hows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on dereeognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in 
other income / (other expenses] together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line 
item in the statement of profit or loss. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash Rows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses], interest income 
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reciassified from equity to profit or loss and 



recognized in other income / (other expenses]. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the

effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/ fother expenses] and impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial

recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value Financial

assets are classified as held for tracting if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial

assets with cash flows that are not solely payments ofprincipal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit

or loss, irrespective ofthe business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at

fair value through OCl, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial

recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement offinancial position at fair value with net changes in

fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

B, Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assetsJ is primarily

derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash

flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a] the Company has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or [bJ the Company has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, buthas transferred control ofthe asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates il and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all ofthe risks and rewards ofthe asset, nor transferred control ofthe

asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the

Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that

reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original

carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

C. Impairment

The adoption of IFRS t has fundamentally changed the Company's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by

replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the

Company to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL'

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that

the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate.

For trade and other receivables, the Company has applied the standard's simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on

lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit

loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment However, in certain

cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the

Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements

held by the Company.

D, Hedgeaccounting

IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply a

more qualitative and forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.

There is no impact ofthe said change on these unconsolidated financial statements as there is no hedge activity carried on by the

Company during the year ended June 30,201'9.

recognized in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these fmancial assets is Included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented In other income/ (other expenses) and impairment 
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. 

Fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include fmancial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or (inancial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial 
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial 
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit 
or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at 
fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial 
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of fmancial position at fair value with net changes in 
fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

B. Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar fmancial assets) is primarily 
derecognized when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in that case, the 
Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

C. Impairment 

The adoption of 1FRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by 
replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit-loss (ECh) approach. 1FRS 9 requires the 
Company to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL, 

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash (lows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 
the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate. 

For trade and other receivables, the Company has applied the standard's simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. However, in certain 
cases, the Company may also consider a fmancial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the 
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements 
held by the Company. 

D. Hedge accounting 

IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply a 
more qualitative and forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness. 

There is no impact of the said change on these unconsolidated fmancial statements as there is no hedge activity carried on by the 
Company during the year ended (une 30, 2019. 



6.1.2 Financial liabilities

A. Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated

upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the

unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or

loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated

any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

ii) Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement ofprofit or loss

when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral

part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

B. Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires When an existing

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability

are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the

recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of

profit or loss.

6,1.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial statements when

there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

6.1.4 Impacts ofadoption ofIFRS 9 on these unconsolidated financial statements

At transition date to IFRS 9, the Company has financial assets measured at amortized cost and investments in mutual funds at fair

value through profit or loss. The new classification and measurement of the Company's financial assets are, as follows:

Debt instruments at amortized cost for financial assets that are held within a business model with the objective to hold the financial

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion

lnvestments in mutual funds that are held for trading in near term and has recognized initially and subsequently at fair value through

profit or loss. On application of IFRS , 9 the Company has not opted to recognize investments in mutual funds at fair value through

other comprehensive income IFVTOCI). These are recognized as fair value through profit or loss.

Further all financial assets previously classified under the head 'loans and receivables' are now classified as 'amortized cost''

The accounting for the Company's financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39.

Accordingly, the adoption ofIFRS t has not had a significant effect on the Company's accounting policies related to financial assets and

liabilities.

IFRS 15,'Revenue from Contracts with Customers':

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the Company is not required

to restate the prior year results.

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15

6.2.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for

transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a customer;

identifies the perfbrmance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates ofvariable

consideration and the time value ofmoney; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis ofthe

relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognizes revenue when or as each

performance obligation is sitisfied in a manner thatdepicts the transfer to the customer ofthe goods or services promised'

6.2

6,1.2 financial liabilities 

A. Classification and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized Initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized In the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit or 
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in 1FRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated 
any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss. 

ii) Loans and borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the KIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
when the liabilities are derecognlzed as well as through the E1R amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

B. Dorecogntlion 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced.by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of 
profit or loss. 

6.1.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial statements when 
there Is a legally enforceable right to set off and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle 
the liabilities simultaneously. 

6.1.4 Impacts of adoption of IFRS 9 on these unconsolidated financial statements 

At transition date to IFRS 9, the Company has financial assets measured at amortized cost and investments in mutual funds at fair 
value through profit or loss. The new classification and measurement of the Company's financial assets are, as follows; 

Debt instruments at amortized cost for financial assets that are held within a business model with the objective to hold the financial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that meet the SPPi criterion. 

Investments in mutual funds that are held for trading in near term and has recognized initially and subsequently at fair value through 
profit or loss. On application of IFRS - 9 the Company has not opted to recognize investments in mutual funds at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCl], These are recognized as fair value through profit or loss. 

Further all financial assets previously classified under the head 'loans and receivables' are now classified as amortized cost. 

The accounting for the Company's financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39. 

Accordingly, the adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company's accounting policies related to financial assets and 
liabilities. 

6.2 IFRS IS, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers': 

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the Company is not required 
to restate the prior year results- 

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS IS 

6.2.1 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized at an amount that refiects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a customer; 
identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable 
consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the 
relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognizes revenue when or as each 
performance obligation Is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised. 



Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates

and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined
using either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a

constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount ofcumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially
recognized as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability.

a) Sale ofgoods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is

generally at the time of delivery. Otherwise, control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized over time by reference to

the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company

performs;

- the Company's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Company performs; or

- the Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

b) Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized over time as the services are rendered.

c) Interest income

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortized

cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

d) other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

6,2,2 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

6,2.3 Impacts of adoption of IFRS 15 on these unconsolidated financial statements

The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of goods should be recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the

timing of revenue recognition and the amount of revenue recognized.

The Company provides sales discounts to certain customers which is not in the nature ofvolume rebates (discounts]. The Company

estimates provision for discounts and revenue is reduced by the amount of provision. This is also in alignment with the requirements

of IFRS 15 and did not have an impact on the revenue of the Company. Therefore, the application of the constraint on variable

consideration did not have any further impact on the revenue recognized by the Company.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates 
and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined 
using either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a 
constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the 
amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with 
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially 
recognized as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability. 

a) Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is 
generally at the time of delivery. Otherwise, control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized over time by reference to 
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met: 

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company 
performs; 

- the Company's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Company performs; or 

- the Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable 
right to payment for performance completed to date. 

b) Rendering of services 

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized over time as the services are rendered. 

c) Interest income 

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortized 
cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net canying amount of 
the financial asset 

d) Other revenue 

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 

6.2.2 Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are Initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. 

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. 
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue. 

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses. 

6.2.3 Impacts of adoption of 1FRS 15 on Ihese unconsolidated financial statements 

The Company has concluded that revenue from sale of goods should be recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is 
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Therefore, the adoption of 1FRS 15 did not have an impact on Ihe 
timing of revenue recognition and the amount of revenue recognized. 

The Company provides sales discounts to certain customers which is not in the nature of volume rebates fdiscounts). The Company 
estimates provision for discounts and revenue is reduced by the amount of provision. This is also in alignment with the requirements 
of IFRS IS and did not have an Impact on the revenue of the Company. Therefore, the application of the constraint on variable 
consideration did not have any further impact on the revenue recognized by the Company. 
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2019 2018
--- Rupees in'000 --

7 .!.2 Depreciation expense for the year has been allocated as under;

Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Plant and machinery
Capital stores
Advances to suppliers

Note

7.2.1
aaa

7.2.3

\494,464
r50,770

1,3 3 8,143
133,392

7.2

t,641,234 1,477,535

653,047 1.78,203

135,550 32,696
3,913 87,200

425,524 r.326

______Je1BJf.!_ _-J22A2t_
7.2.1 CivilworksincludeborrowingcostamountingtoRs. 16millioncalculatedattheratesrangingfrom2.33o/olo4.92a/operannum.

7,2,2 PlantandmachineryincludesamountofRs.L24.68millioninrespectoftrialproductioncostofdenimsamplingunit.

7,2.3 Capital stores include factory tools and equipments, office equipments, electric installations and furniture and fixtures that are held in store

for future use and capitalization.

Details of immovable property in the name of the Company:7.3

Usage Location Area

Plant 1

{
Chak # 7 6 RB. 1 - KM, jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad.

Chak # 194 RB. 1 - KM, faranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad.

Chak # 108 RB. 1 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad.

19 Acres 7 Kanals 12 Marlas

2 Acres B Kanals 13 Marlas

9 Marlas

Interloop Industrial
Park - (Plant 2, Plant 4
& SpinningJ

l"

t

Chak # 103 RB, 7 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad.

Chak # 106 RB, 6 - KM, By Pass Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad.

Chak # 103 RB, 7 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad.

97 Acres 19 Kanals 9 Marlas 5 Sars

14 Acres 3 Kanals 1.2 Marlas

38 Acres 15 Kanals 15 Marlas

Plant 3 8 - KM, Manga Raiwind Road, Distt. Kasur, Lahore. 41 Acres 3 Kanals B Marlas

Denim Division B - KM, Manga Raiwind Road, Distt. Kasur, Lahore 26 Acres 7 Kanals 14 Marlas

Plant 5 Chak # 106 RB, 6 - KM, By Pass Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. 75 Acres 13 Kanals 13 Marlas

Office Block Chak # 200 RB, Near Toll Plaza Gatwala, Lathianwala, Faisalabad. 2 Acres 13 Marlas 5 Sarsai

Note8. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Computer Software

Cost:

Opening balance

Addition during the year

Amortization:
0pening balance

For the year amortization

Net book value

Amortization rate

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Unquoted - at cost

Associated company

IL Bangla Limited

Subsidiary company

IL Apparel fPvtl Limited

2019 20ta
--- Rupees in'000 ---

98,r96

64,833

________s9,r91_ ______--!2,4J9-_

______2!%-_ ___2!%--

308,735 379,549

700,000 1,000

____1p9B,Zr5_ _____9_q-Q,5 4e_

t ,8,1171f---sr,6zo I

I szJga ll s,szu I

t30,994

f-- ssts6lt- 4s,4fF]
I g,o+t ll ro,szr I

55,786

9.

9.1

9.1 IL Bangla Limited

Cost of investment
Provision for impairment loss

9.2

9.L.L 379,549
(7o,814)

379,5-49

-__-__-3!9195- ---------312'sl2-
g.LL 3I.825 million [2018: 31.825 millionJ ordinary shares of BD Takas L0/- each amounting to BD Takas 318.250 million (2018: BD Takas

318.250 millionJ. Equity held 31.61-0/o (2078:43.75%). 
_

50 million (2018: 0.1 millionJ ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each amountingto Rs. 500 million [2018: Rs. 1 millionJ and Rs.200 million as share

deposit money. Equity held 100%.
9.2

Note 
20X9 2018 

— Uupccs in '000 — 
7,1.2 Depreciation expense for the year has been allocated as under: 

Cost of sales 
Administrative expenses 

7,2 Capital work-in-proEress 
Civil works 
Plant and machinery 
Capital stores 
Advances to suppliers 

1,490,464 
150,770 

1,338,143 
133,392 

1,641,234 1,471,535 

7.2.1 
7.2.2 
7.2.3 

653,047 
135,550 

3,913 
425,524 

178,203 
32,696 
87,200 

1,326 
1,218,034 299,425 

7.2.1 Civil works include borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 16 million calculated at the rates ranging from 2.33% to 4.92% per annum. 

7.2.2 Plant and machinery includes amount of Rs. 124,68 million in respect of trial production cost of denim sampling unit. 

7.2.3 Capital stores include factory tools and equipments, office equipments, electric installations and furniture and fixtures that are held in store 
for future use and capitalization. 

7.3 Details of immovable property in the name of the Company: 

Usage Location Area 

Plant 1 Chak if 76 RB. 1 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. 
Chak# 194 RB. 1 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad., 
Chak # 108 RB. 1 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. 

19 Acres 7 Kanals 12 Marias 
2 Acres 8 Kanals 13 Marias 
9 Marias 

Interloop Industrial r Chak #103 RB, 7 - KM, Jaranwala Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. 
Park - (Plant Z, Plant 4 Chak #106 RB, 6 - KM, By Pass Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad, 
& Spinning] - chak # 103 RB, 7 - KM, Jaranwala Road. Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. 

97 Acres 19 Kanals 9 Marias 5 Sars. 
14 Acres 3 Kanals 12 Marias 
38 Acres 15 Kanals 15 Marias 

Plants t - KM, Manga Raiwind Road, Distt. Kasur, Lahore. 41 Acres 3 Kanals 8 Marias 

Denim Division 8 - KM, Manga Raiwind Road, DistL Kasur, Lahore. 26 Acres 7 Kanals 14 Marias 

Plant 5 Chak # 106 R6,6 - KM, By Pass Road, Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. 75 Acres 13 Kanals 13 Marias 

Office Block Chak # 200 RB, Near Toll Plaza Gatwala, Lathianwala, Faisalabad, 2 Acres 13 Marias 5 Sarsal 

INTANGIBLE ASSET 
Computer Software 
Cost: 
Opening balance 
Addition during the year 

Amorrtzation: 
Opening balance 
For the year amortization 

Net book value 

Amortization rate 

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 
Unquoted - at cost 
Associated company 

Note 
2019 2018 

— Rupees In '000 — 

98,196 
32,798 

92,620 
5,576 

130,994 98,196 

55,786 
9,047 

45,415 
10,371 

64,833 55,786 

66,161 42,410 

20% 20% 

IL Bangla Limited 9,1 308,735 379,549 

Subsidiary company 
IL Apparel (Pvt) Limited 9.2 700,000 1,000 

1,008,735 380,549 
9.1 IL Bangla Limited 

Cost of investment 
Provision for impairment loss 

9.1.1 379,549 
(70,814) 

379,549 

308,735 379,549 

9.1.1 31.825 million (2018: 31.825 million) ordinary shares of BD Takas 10/- each amounting to BO Takas 318.250 million (2018: BD Takas 
318.250 million). Equity held 31.61% (2018; 43.75%). _ 

9.2 50 million (2018; 0.1 million) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 500 million (2018; Rs. 1 million) and Rs. 200 million as share 
deposit money. Equity held 100%. 



10. LONG TERM LOANS

Considered good - Secured

Loans to employees

Loan to director

10.1 Loans to employees

0pening balance

Add: disbursement made during the year

Lessr amount received during the year

Less: receivable within twelve months

Opening balance

Add: disbursement made during the year

Less: amount received during the year

Less: receivable within twelve months

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Considered good:

Security deposits - unsecured

Lease key money

STORES AND SPARES

Stores

Spares

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material

Work in process

Finished goods

TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Foreign
- Secured

- Unsecured

Local
- Unsecured

t4,l It includes receivables from following related parties;

20L9 2018
--- Rupees in'000 ---

43,LL2 60,747

22,650

__!lI_62 ____-- j9f3J_

roa,496 92,647
7A,A70 69,1.49

ta7 366 1-6L,796

(e0,s71) (53,300)

96,795 1 08,496
(s3,683) (47,74e)

________--43"JL2_ ___________S9l3l_

25,750
25,750

25,750
(3,1001

10.1
lo.2

10.1.1 These loans are given to employees as per approved policy ofthe Company and are secured against employees retirenent benefits.

10.2 Loan to director

10.1.1

ro.2.L

L4.t

3,730,440
597,562

1,954,089

3,r66,265

471,276

1-,484,177

zz,6so

10.2.1 This represents loan paid to an executive director of the Company as per house building finance policy of the Company. Under the policy, home

ownership grant of Rs. 2.5 million and mortgage assistance of Rs. 23.25 million is disbursed during the year. Tenure of both the home ownership grant

and mortgage assistance is for a period of six years. Mortgage assistance is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments along with mark up thereon.

II.

LZ.

2A,0t9 24,81-7

- 238

za,or9 25,055

233,322

654,337

185,234

593,964

aa7 ,659 779,798

" 6,242,49L 5,721,,71-8

L4.

6,964,108

3 2 8,900

IL Bangla Limited
Texlan Center (Pvt) Limited
Eurosox Plus BV

L4,2 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable due from related parties at the end of any month during
319.60 millionJ.

1{.g At June 30, 2019, trade debts due from related parties aggregating to Rs. 298.17 million (2018: Rs. 163.99 million) were past due but not impaired. The

ageing anallrsis of these trade debts is as follows:

Not yet due

Upto l nonth
More than 1 month L7A,7L6 55,457

a,247,740 7,293,008

44,?AO 40,366
352,636 44,944
293,422 1,1,2,5Ll

_____-----€9 !!- -___-_-----33lB3J-
the year was Rs. 1,052.51 million (2018; Rs.

392,L70
rLg,45Z

73,828
108,5 3 6

l---- 4zsosor I f------ 3ls4,rc I

I g,so+,oeg 
| | :,eog,:zs I

7,AL4,5A4

433,t56

_________99qi4- 

--_____4Le2J-

Note 
2019 2018 

— Rupees In'000 — 
10. LONG TERM LOANS 

Considered good • Secured 
Loans to employees 10.1 
Loan to director 10.2 

43,112 
22,650 

60,747 

05.702 60,747 

10.1 Loans to employees 
Opening balance 
Add: disbursement marie during the year 10.1.1 

108,496 
78,870 

92,647 
69,149 

Less: amount received during the year 
187,366 
(90,571) 

161,796 
(53,300) 

Less: receivable within twelve months 
90,795 

(53,683) 
108,496 
(47,749) 

43,112 60,747 

10.1.1 These loans are given to employees as per approved policy of the Company and are secured against employees retirement benefits. 
10.2 Loan to director 

Opening balance 
Add: disbursement made during the year 10.2.1 25,750 

- 

Less: amount received during the year 
25,750 ' 

Less: receivable within twelve months 
25,750 
(3,100) 
22,650 

10.2.2 This represents loan paid to an executive director of the Company as per house building finance, policy of the Company. Under the policy, home 
ownership grant of Rs. 2.5 million and mortgage assistance of Rs, 23.25 million is disbursed during the year. Tenure of both the home ownership grant 
and mortgage assistance is for a period of six years. Mortgage assistance is repayable In GO equal monthly installments along with mark up thereon. 

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 
Considered good: 
Security deposits - unsecured 
Lease key money 

28,019 24,817 
238 

28,019 25,055 

STORES AND SPARES 

Stores 
Spares 

233,322 
654,337 

185,234 
593,964 

887,659 779,198 

STOCK IN TRADE 
Raw material ; 
Work in process 
Finished goods 

3,730,840 
597,562 

1,954,089 

3,166,265 
471,276 

1,484,177 
6,282,491 5,121,718 

TRADE DEBTS 
Considered good: 

Foreign 
- Secured 14.1 
- Unsecured 

4,250,501 
3,564,083 

3.154,733 
3,809.375 

Local 
- Unsecured 

7,814,584 

433,156 

6,964,108 

328,900 
8,247,740 7,293,008 

X4.I It includes receivables from following related parties; 
IL Bangla Limited 
Texlan Center (Pvt) Limited 
Eurosox Plus BV 

44,280 
352,636 
293,422 

40,366 
84.944 

112.511 
690,338 237,821 

14.2 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 1,052,51 million (2018: Rs. 
319.60 millioiO- 

14.3 At June 30, 2019, trade debts due from related parties aggregating to Rs. 298,17 million (2018; Rs. 163.99 million) were past due but not impaired. The 
ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows: 
Not yet due 
Upta 1 month 
More than 1 month 

392,170 
119,452 
178,710 

73,828 
108,536 
SS.4S7 

690,338 237,821 
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Note --- Rupees in'000 ---

15" LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Loans
Current portion of loans to employees - Secured
Current portion of loan to director - Secured

Metis international (PftJ Limited - Secured
Advances

Advances to suppliers
Advances to employees

Deposit
L/C margin

Prepayment
Insurance premium

Other receivables . considered good;
Receivables from related parties
Accrued interest on loan to Metis International (Pvt) Limited
0thers

L6.l Receivables from related parties include receivables from:

IL Bangla Limited - Unquoted associate
IL Apparel (P!t) Limited - Unquoted subsidiary
Interloop Holdings (PvtJ Ltd - an associated undertaking
Interloop Welfare Trust
Interloop Limited ESOS Management Trust

10.1
L0.2
15.1

ts.2

53,683
3,100
9,560

989,598
7,401

7O334

40,226

83,980
IO,4_41,

47,749

33,4L4

5 3 6,580

_______-_!ps3 3!2_ ___9J1J-!3_
15,1 This loan was given in foreign currency amounting to US$ 275,000 at rate of 15%o per annum. Upon lapse of payment date, additional mark up at the rate

of2.5o/owill be charged on monthly mark up installment due for each day ofdelay upto a maximum of 200/o.The loan is secured through an irrevocable
Iien/charge on total assets ofthe Metis International (Pvt) Limited.

I5.Z Advances to employees are given to meet business expenses and are settled as and when expenses are incurred.

DEPOSIT, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25,1.67

86,7 60

2,401,

65.53 6

---------29!235-: -------Jl2 
BSI-

az,7-66

L,2L4

7 6,970
8,0L7
r,273

500
83,980

L6.2 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable ciue from related parties at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 83.98
million ).

16,3 At June 30, 2019, receivables aggregating to Rs. 83.98 million (2018r Rs. 86.76 million) were past due but not impaired. The

receivables is as followsr

86,760

million (2018: Rs. 86.76

ageing analysis of these

Upto l month
More than 1 month

Duty drawbacks
Sales tax refundable
Income tax refundable

18. SHORTTERMINVESTMENTS

Mutual Funds - Fair value through profit or loss:

Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund
Alfalah GHP Alfa Fund

Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund
Meezan Islamic Fund

Meezan Sovereign Fund
NAFA Islamic Energy Fund
NAFA Financial Sector lncome Fund
NAFA Stock Fund

NAFA Money Market Fund
UBL Growth And Income Fund
UBL Government Securities Fund

Term Deposit Receipts (TDRsl - Amortized cost:

The Bank of Punjab
National Bank of Pakistan

Sales Tax Refund Bonds - Amortized cost:

FBR Refund Settlement Company (Private) Limited

7,r53
76,427

5,274
81-,486

_____,_____q!fp9_ "________991_99-

L6.4 This represents balance receivable against payments made on behalf of IL Bangla Limited. Interest is charged at effective rate ol 7 .53o/o per annum.

17. TAXREFUNDSDUEFROMGOVERNMENT

646,446
40L,604

1-,054,370
532,070

a77,345 865,366

________J.2Ee2_ _______-_2$1399_

18.1 & 18.2

t--1s0,341
| 790,908 |

94L,235

135,100

t7,306
5A,944
34,795

7

909
L6,946

1,555

394
130,896

56,657
20,740

+5,978
7

24,040

3

747,425

18.4

________1]91a57_ 

-_-_--J 
47,48-

2019 2018 
Nolc — Rupees in'000 — 

LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Considered good: 
Loans 

Current portion of loans to employees • Secured 10.1 53,683 47,749 
Current portion of loan to director - Secured 10.2 3,100 - 
Metis international (Pvt] Limited - Secured 15.1 9,560 33,414 

Advances 
Advances to suppliers 989,590 536,580 
Advances to employees 15.2 7,401 

1,053,342 617,743 

IS.l This loan was given in foreign currency amounting to US$ 275,000 at rate of 15% per annum. Upon lapse of payment date, additional mark up at the rate 
of 2.5% will bo charged on monthly mark up installment due for each day of delay uplo a maximum of 20%. The loan is secured through an irrevocable 
lien/charge on total assets of the Metis International (Pvt) Limited. 

15.2 Advances to employees are given to meet business expenses and are settled as and when expenses are incurred. 

DEPOSIT, PUEPAVMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
Deposit 

L/C margin 70,338 - 
Prepayment 

Insurance premium 40,226 25,167 
Other receivables - considered good: 

Receivables from related parties 16.1 83,980 86,760 
Accrued interest on loan to Metis International (Pvt) Limited 10,441 2,401 
Others - 65,536 

204,985 179.864 
16.1 Receivables from related parlies include receivables from: 

IL Eangla Limited - Unquoted associate 16.4 82,766 76,970 
1L Apparel [Pvt] Limited - Unquoted subsidiary - 8,017 
Interloop Holdings {Pvt} Ltd - an associated undertaking 1,273 
Interloop Welfare Trust 1,214 
Interloop Limited ESOS Management Trust - 500 

83,980 86,760 

16.2 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable due from related parties at the end of any montii during the year was Rs, 83.98 million [2018: Rs. 86.76 
million ]. 

16,3 At |une 30, 2019, receivables aggregating to Rs. 83.98 million (2010; Rs. 86.76 million) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these 
receivables is as follows: 
Upto 1 month 7,153 5,274 
More than 1 month 76,827 81,486 

83,980 86,760 

16.4 This represents balance receivable against payments made on behalf of IL Gangla Limited. Interest is charged at effective rate of 7.53% per annum. 

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT 
Duty drawbacks '• 646.486 1,054,370 
Sales tax refundable 401,608 532,070 
Income tax refundable 877,345 865,366 

1,925.439 2,451,806 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 
Mutual Funds • Fair value through profit or loss: 18.1 & 18.2 
Alfalah CUP Income Multiplier Fund 56,657 
Alfaiah GHP Alfa Fund 17,306 20,740 
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund 58,944 - 
Meezan Islamic Fund 34,795 45,978 
Meezan Sovereign Fund 7 7 
NAFA Islamic Energy Fund - 24,0.40 
NAFA Financial Sector Income Fund 909 
NAFA Stock Fund 16,986 
NAFA Money Market Fund 1,555 - 
UBL Growth And Income Fund - 3 
UBL Government Securities Fund 394 - 

130,896 147,425 

Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) - Amortized cost; 18.3 
TheBankofPuniab 150,347 
National Bank of Pakistan 790,908 

941,255 - 
Sales Tax Refund Bonds - Amortized cost: 18.4 
FBR Refund Settlement Company (Private) Limited 135,100 - 

1,207,251 147,425 



18.1 Detail oflnvestment in Mutual Funds

No. ofunits '000

Name ofthe investee
Number of

shares / units
as at lune 30,2019

Alfalah GHP Alfa Fund

Alfalah GHP Sovereisn Fund

Meezan Islamic Fund

Meezan Sovereien Fund

NAFA Financial Sector Income Fund

NAFA Stock Fund

NAFA Money Market Fund

IBL Government Securities Fund

308.8077

554.0604

725.951,0

0.1377

85.50 28

!,476.47 47

157.5662

3.7222

1a ?a)

6r,221
45,978

7

924

19,307

1,5 63

+tI

t7,306
58,944

34,795

7

909

t6,986
1,555

394

(4,966

(2,277)

1 1,183'

15'
(2,327

f8'
17]

Total 3,253.2220 151,683 130,896 (20,787)

L8,2 Fair values of these investments are determined using quoted market / repurchase price.

18,3 Short term investment in TDRS earned interest at effective rate of 11.55% to 12.050/o per annum.

LA,4 By virtue of enactment of section 674 in the Sales Tax Act, 1990, Sales Tax Refunds claimant have been given option to receive their refunds in shape of
Sales Tax Refund Bonds which have been directly credited to the Corporate Investor Account maintained with CDC (Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited) .

The bonds so issued have a maturity period ofthree (3) years and shall bear simple profit at the rate of 100/0 per annum. The bonds are freely tradable in

Pakistan's secondary markets and shall be approved security for calculating the statutory liquidity reserve and shall be acceptable by the banks as

collateral security. After period of maturity, the Company shall return the bonds to the Board and the Board shall make the payment of amount due

under the bonds, along with profit due, to the bond holders.

The bonds shall be redeemable before maturity only at the option of the Board along with simple profit payable at the time of redemption in the light of
general or specific policy to be formulated by the Board.

The management intend to trade and redeem these bonds in near future, therefore, these are grouped in short term investnents.

20L9 ZOLA
--" Rupees in'000 ---

26353 12,051

L9, CASHANDBANKBALANCES

Cash in hand
Cash at banks

ln current accounts
In foreign currency accounts

ZO. AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

20t9 zoLa
Number ofshares in'000

965,000 265,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

35,000 35,000 Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs. L0 each

9,650,000 2,650,000

350,000 350,000

10,000,000 3,000,000____1499,099_ ____19!!!!_

2L. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

20t9

Number ofshares in '000

130,900

738,500

L,?66

1,531

Opening balance

Issued during the year

Closing balance

2018

21,400 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid

168,200 bonus shares

Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully
510 paid in cash

Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued

- as fully paid bonus shares

1,309,000

7,385,000

t2,662

15,313

274,O00

1,682,000

5,1 04

-_____ 
w_?_,LeJ_ ___u_q, 1u_

ZL.l Movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital

a,72L,975 1,901,104

Ordinary Shares of Rs, 10 each fully
paid in cash

Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
bonus shares

Note Voting

2L,400

109,500

Non-Voting Voting Non-Voting

168,200

570,3 0 0

510

756 1,5 31zL.L.7

130,900 r,266 738,500

l--T+4or4af--- Mslol
| 7L,264 ll 32,478 |

L,5l2,2lr
_______!53!,s_q4-

781,636

-------Jfie9l-

21,1.1 During the year the Company has issued 109 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in lnitial Public Offerings (lP0l. (Note. 1.2)

1,531

18.1 Detail of lovestmenl In Mutual Funds 

Name of the investee 
Number of 

shares / units 
as at (une 30,2019 

Average Cost 
as at June 30,2019 

Fair value 
as at June 30,2019 

Remeasuremeut 
toss 

as at June 30,2019 
No, of units'000 ......... Rupees in '000    

Alfalah GHP Alfa Fund 308.8077 22,272 17,306 (4.966} 
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund 554.0604 61,221 58,944 (2,277) 
Meezan Islamic Fund 725,9510 45,978 34,795 (11,183) 
Meezan Sovereign Fund 0.1371 7 7 
NAFA Financial Sector Income Fund 86.5028 924 909 (15) 
NAFA Stock Fund 1.416,4747 19,307 16,986 (2,321) 
NAFA Money Market Fund 157.5662 1,563 1,555 (8) 
OBL Government Securities Fund 3.7222 411 394 (17) 

Total 3,253.2220 151,683 130,896 (20,787) 

18.2 Fair values of those investmonts arc determined using quoted market / repurchase price. 

18.3 Short term investment in TDRs earned interest at effective rate of 1 l.S5% to 12.05% per annum. 

18.4 By virtue of enactment of section 67A in the Sales Tax Act, 1990, Sales Tax Refunds claimant have been given option to receive their refunds in shape of 
Sales Tax Refund Bonds which have been directly credited to the Corporate Investor Account maintained with CDC (Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited}. 
The bonds so Issued have a maturity period of three (3) years and shall bear simple profit at the rate of 10% per annum. The bonds are freely tradable in 
Pakistan's secondary markets and shall be approved security for calculating the statutory liquidity reserve and shall be acceptable by the banks as 
collateral security. After period of maturity, the Company shall return the bonds to tho Board and the Board shall make the payment of amount due 
under the bonds, along with profit due, to the bond holders. 
The bonds shall be redeemable before maturity only at the option of the Board along with simple profit payable at the time of redemption in the light of 
genera! or specific policy to be formulated by the Board. 

The management intend to trade and redeem these bonds In near future, therefore, these are grouped in short term investments. 

19. 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in '000 — 

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
Cash in hand 26,353 12,051 
Cash at banks 

In current accounts 1,440,947 149,213 
In foreign currency accounts 71,264 32,418 

1,512,211 101,636 
1.538.564 193,687 

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 
2019 2018 

Number of shares in '000 
965,000 265,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 9,650,000 2,650,000 

35,000 35,000 Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 350,000 350,000 
1,000,000 300,000 10,000,000 3,000,000 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL 

2019 2018 
Number of shares In '000 

130,900 21,400 Ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid in cash 1,309,000 214,000 
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid 

738,500 168,200 bonus shares 7,385,000 1,682.000 
Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each fully 

1,266 510 paid in cash 12,662 5,104 

1,531 Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued 
as fully paid bonus shares 15,313 

872,197 190,110 8,721,975 1,901,104 

21.1 Movement in Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 

paid in cash bonus shares 

Note Voting Non-Voting Voting Non-Voling 

Opening balance 21,400 510 168,200 - 

Issued during the year 21.1.1 109,500 756 570,300 1,531 

Closing balance 130,900 1,266 738,500 1,531 

21.1.1 During the year the Company has issued 109 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in Initial Public Offerings (IPO}, (Note. 1.2) 
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22,. RESERVES

Capital reserve

Share premium

Revenue reserve

Employee share option compensation reserve

Note

22.L

22.2

--- Rupees in'000 ---

3,79L,602 30,2 5 5

8,608

________-3 i72J&9?-_ __________-_lgE€_

22,L This represents premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to institutional investors, high net worth individuals and general

public through initial public offering (lPO) and employees ofthe Company through employees stock option scheme (ESOS). This reserve can be utilized
by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

22.2 EMPLOYEES SHARE OPTTON SCHEME (ESOS)

The shareholders ofthe Company has approved Interloop Limited - Employee Stock Options Scheme, 2016 ("the scheme") for grant ofoptions to certain

eligible employees to purchase ordinary shares (non-voting) of the Company, to be determined by the Compensation Comnittee constituted by the

Board of directors of the Company.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible employees selected by the Compensation Committee, from time to time, which shall not at

any time exceed 15%o of the paid up capital (ordinary and votingJ of the Company (as increased from time to time). The option entitles an employee to

purchase shares at an exercise price determined in accordance with the mechanism defined in the scheme at the date of grant. The aggregate number of
shares for all options to be granted under the scheme to any single eligible employee shall not, at any time, exceed 370 ofthe paid up capital (ordinary

and voting) of the Company (as increased from time to time]. Further the grant of options in any one calendar year exceeding 370 of the paid up capital

(ordinary and voting) shall require approval of the shareholders. However, once the nunber of shares issued under this scheme equal fifteen percent

(15%J of the paid up capital (ordinary and votingJ of the Company, the entitlement pool shall be exhausted and this Scheme shall cease to operate,

notwithstanding any subsequent increase in the paid up capital.

The options will have a vesting period of one year and an exercise period of one year from the date options are vested as laid down in the scheme. Option

price shall be payable by the employee on the exercise of options in full or part. The options will lapse after completion of one year from the date options

are vested if not exercised.

Shares issued in response to exercise of options shall be Non-Voting Ordinary Shares, hereinafter called "Class B Shares" and shall not;

(i) have voting rights or right to receive notice, attend and vote at the general meeting of the Company, except and otherwise provided by the

Companies Act, 2017; and

(ii) be entitled for right shares [Ordinary and Voting).

Shares issues under this scheme will convert into ordinary shares after 3 years from the date of listing of the Company or after completion of 3 years

from the date of issue, whichever is later. The Company will not be obliged to buy back the shares. However, if the employees wishes to sell the shares,

the Company may buy back the shares at the lesser of the prevailing price on the securities exchange or at the break up value of the shares determined

as per the latest audited financial statements ofthe Company.

Before listing of the Company fair value of the options was determined based on the break up value of shares and exercise price at the date of each grant

of options. Exercise price was determined based on latest available audited financial statements of the Company. After listing of the Company the

exercise price shall be the weighted average of the closing market price of shares of the Company for the last 30 days prior to the date of grant of

options.

Due to issuance of bonus shares of 300% of the existing paid up capital of the Company in current year and demerger of the investment segment of the

Company into Interloop Holdings (Pvtl Limited in last year, the break up value of the shares had been reduced to Rs. 11.91 per share. This necessitated

the repricing of the existing options outstanding during the year. Moreover, the existing exercise price of Rs. 76.04per share was also not attractive at

the moment due to the floor price of Rs. 45 per share set in the draft prospectus for the proposed IPO duly approved by the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) till date. Accordingly it was proposed to offer exercise price for outstanding

options at Rs. 35 per share to make it more lucrative for the proposed eligible employees.

The shareholders ofthe Company in their meeting held on March 5, 2019 resolved to reprice the options already granted and pending for exercise under

the Company's Employees Stock Option Scheme, from initial exercise price of Rs. 76.04 per share to the revised price of Rs. 35 per share, without any

change or modification in any other specific terms and conditions under which such options have been granted in accordance with rule 7(ii)of the Public

Companies (Employees Stock Option Scheme) Rules, 2001 read with sub clause 3 of clause 6 of Chapter III of the Guidelines for Structuring and Offering

of the Employees Stock Option Schemes approved by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Information about outstanding nunber of options at the end of the year is as follows:
z0l9 20La

--- Numbers in'000 ---

0ptions outstanding at the beginning of the year

0ptions granted during the year

0ptions declined/lapsed but subsequently offered

0ptions exercised during the year

Options expired/lapsed during the year

Options outstanding at the end of the year

L,3_99

426
(7eo)

r,341,

933

(772)

(46s) (703)

570 1-,399

The Company's management is of the view that no further options would be exercised from the outstanding balance as the same has already been

declined by the eligible employees and management does not intend to reoffer the same. Therefore, no further expense or employee share option

compensation reserve is created in these financial statements.

Further, it is pertinent to mention here that the scheme is.not in operation since listing ofthe Company on PSX primarily due to the fact that the terms of

the scheme require to be consistent with the increased legal compliance for a listed entity. The proposal for subject updation in the Existing schenle is

under review and pending approval from shareholders ofthe Company and SECP respectively.

2019 2018 
Note — Rupees in '000 — 

RESERVES 
Capital reserve 
Share premium 22,1 3,791,602 30.255 
Revenue reserve 
Employee share option compensation reserve 22.2   - 8.608 

 3,791,602 38,863 

22.1 This represents premium received over and above face value of the shares Issued to institutional investors, high net worth individuals and general 
public, through initial public offering (IPO) and employees of the Company through employees stock option scheme (ESOS). This reserve can be utilized 
by the Company only for the purposes specified I n section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017, 

22.2 EMPLOYEES SHARE OPTION SCHEME fESOS) 

The shareholders of the Company has approved interloop Limited - Employee Stock Options Scheme, 2016 ("the scheme") for grant of options to certain 
eligible employees to purchase ordinary shares (non-voting) of the Company, to be determined by the Compensation Committee constituted by the 
Board of directors of the Company. 

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible employees selected by the Compensation Committee, from time to time, which shall not at 
any time exceed 15% of the paid up capital (ordinary and voting) of the Company (as increased from time to time). The option entitles an employee to 
purchase shares at an exercise price determined in accordance with the mechanism defined in the scheme at the date of grant. The aggregate number of 
shares for all options to be granted under the scheme to any single eligible employee shall not, at any time, exceed 3% of the paid up capital (ordinary 
and voting] of the Company (as increased from time to time), Further the grant of options in any one calendar year exceeding 3% of the paid up capital 
(ordinary and voting) shall require approval of the shareholders. However, once the number of shares issued under this scheme equal fifteen percent 
(15%) of the paid up capital (ordinary and voting) of the Company, the entitlement pool shall be exhausted and this Scheme shall cease to operate, 
notwithstanding any subsequent increase in the paid up capital. 

The options will have a vesting period of one year and an exercise period of one year from the date options arc vested as laid down in the scheme. Option 
price shall be payable by the employee on the exercise of options in full or part. The options will lapse after completion of one year from the date options 
are vested if not exercised. 

Shares issued in response to exercise of options shall be Non-Voting Ordinary Shares, hereinafter called "Class B Shares" and shall not; 
(i) have voting l ights or right to receive notice, attend and vote at the general meeting of the Company, except and otherwise provided by the 

Companies Act, 2017; and 
(ii) be entitled for right shares (Ordinary and Voting). 

Shares issues under this scheme will convert into ordinary shares after 3 years from the date of fisting of the Company or after completion of 3 years 
from the date of issue, whichever is later. The Company will nor be obliged to buy back the shares. However, if the employees wishes to sell the shares, 
the Company may buy back the shares at the lesser of the prevailing price on the securities exchange or at the break up value of the shares determined 
as per the latest audited financial statements of tire Company. 

Before listing of the Company fair value of the options was determined based on the break up value of shares and exercise price at the date of each grant 
of options. Exercise price was determined based on latest available audited financial statements of the Company. After listing of the Company the 
exercise price shall be the weighted average of the closing market price of shares of the Company for the last 30 days prior to the date of gram of 
options. 

Due to issuance of bonus shares of 300% of the existing paid up capital of the Company in current year and demerger of the investment segment of the 
Company into Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited in last year, the break up value of the shares had been reduced to Rs. 11.91 per share. This necessitated 
the repricing of the existing options outstanding during the year, Moreover, the existing exercise price of Rs, 76.04 per share was also not attractive at 
the moment due to the floor price of Rs. 45 per share set in the draft prospectus for the proposed IPO duly approved by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) till date. Accordingly it was proposed to offer exercise price for outstanding 
options at Rs. 35 per share to make it more lucrative forthe proposed eligible employees. 

The shareholders of the Company in their meeting held on March 5. 2019 resolved to reprice the options already granted and pending for exercise under 
the Company's Employees Stock Option Scheme, from initial exercise price of Rs. 76.04 per share to the revised price of Rs. 35 per share, without any 
change or modification in any other specific terms and conditions under which such options have been granted in accordance with rule 7(li)of the Public 
Companies (Employees Stock Option Scheme) Rules. 200! read with sub clause 3 of clause 6 of Chapter III of the Guidelines for Structuring and Offering 
of the Employees Stock Option Schemes approved by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

Information about outstanding number of options at the end of the year is as follows: 
2019 2018 

-Numbers in'000 — 

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Opcions granted during the year 
Options declined/lapsed but subsequently offered 
Options exercised during the year 
Options expired/lapsed during the year 
Options outstanding at the end of the year 

The Company's management is of the view that no further options would be exercised from the outstanding balance as the same has already been 
declined by the eligible employees and management does not intend to reoffer the same. Therefore, no further expense or employee share option 
compensation reserve is created in these financial statements. 
Further, it is pertinent to mention here that the scheme Isnot in operation since listing of Che Company on PSX primarily due to the fact that the terms of 
Che scheme require to be consistent with the increased legal compliance for a listed entity. The proposal for subject updation in the Existing scheme is 
under review and pending approval from shareholders of the Company and SECP respectively. 

1,399 

426 
(790) 
(465) 

1.341 
933 

(1723 
(703) 

570 1,399 



20L9 20ra
Note

?3.r
23.2
23.3

23.5

--- Rupees in'000 ---

23. LONG TERM FINANCING

From financial institutions - secured

Diminishing musharika
Syndicated finance facility
Syndicated finance facility (BMRJ

Islamic long term finance facility - ILTFF

From related party - unsecured

lnterloop Holdings (PltJ Limited - associated company

Less: Current portion of long term financing

24. LIABILITIESAGAINSTASSETS
SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Future minimum lease payments
Lessi Un-amortized finance charges

Present value of future minimum lease payments

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

Future minimum lease payments

Less: Un-amortized finance charges

Present value offuture minimum lease payments

3,475,936 3,276,476

1,400,000

4,875,936 3,2L6,476
(L,247,reL) (968,5401

_________: 
j23l!L 

-lJlljlh--

23,1 These loans have been obtained under diminishing musharika arrangements and are repayable in quarterly installments. These are secured against 1st

joint pari passu charge - fPP of Rs. 6,468 million (2018:7,474 million) over fixed assets, specific/exclusive charge of Rs. 1,992 million (2018: 3,015

million) on fixed assets (plant and machinery) and ranking charge of Rs. 718 million (2018: 1,978 millionJ on fixed assets of the Company Mark up is

charged at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 0.10% to 0.500/o per annum (2018: 3 months KIBOR plus 0.10% to 0.75% per annum).

23.2 The company has entered into a syndicated long term finance facility arrangement for Rs. 1,900 million with a consoftium of local banks for acquisition

of certain assets from Kohinoor Mills Limited. The repayment of this loan is to be made in quarterly installments and the loan is secured against the 1st

specific charge of Rs. 2,933.34 million (2018: 2,933.34 million) over the fixed assets of lnterloop Limited (Hosiery Division lll). The Drark up is charged

at the fixed rate of 5%o per annum (2018: 50/o per annumJ.

Z?.3 The Company has also entered into syndicated long term finance facility arrangement for Rs. 300 million with a consoftium of local banks for Balancing,

Modernization and Replacement (BMR) ofassets purchased from Kohinoor Mills Limited. The repayment ofloan is to be made in quarterly installments

and securities are same as mentioned in note 23.2 above. Markup is charged at the rate of 03 months KIB0R plus 1.3% per annum (2018: 03 nronths

KIB0R plus 1.3%o per annum).

23,4 The Company has obtained Islamic Long Term Finance Facility - ILTFF of Rs. 1,500 million for purchase of plant and machinery for a period of 10 years

including 2 year grace period. Repayment ofloan is to be made in quarterly installments and is secured against lstJPP charge ofRs.3,734 million (2018:

nilJ over land, building and plant and machinery of the Company. This 1st JPP charge of Rs. 3,734 million is same on both ILTFF and diminishing

musharika facilities from HBL and is included in aggregate charge mentioned in note 23.1 above. Markup is charged at SBP ILTFF rate plus 0.75o/o per

annum (2018: nilJ.

23.5 The Company "lnterloop Limited" has entered into loan agreement with Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 million for period

of three years including one year grace period. Mark up is charged at the rate of 5% per annum and will be paid till 15th of every month, following the

end of every quarter. Upon lapse of payment date, the Company shall pay late payment charges equivalent to 20l0 of the monthly mark up installment due

for each day of late payment, which may be considered to waive off at the discretion of management of Interloop Holdings (PvtJ Limited. The loan is

unsecured but is made with full recourse against the Company and its successors.

20L9 20 1B
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--- Rupees in'000 ---

1,746
- (61)

- 1,085
. {470)

Later than one YearNot later thalr one
and not later than

vear
ive years

---i-,------------q]5-

Z4.l During the year the Company has paid off all its lease liability.

24,2 The amount offuture payments ofthe lease and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:

20ta

--- Rupees in'000 --.

519
49

627
T2

615470

z0L9 20LA
Note --- Rupees in'000 --'

25, DEFERREDLIABILITIES

Staff retirement gratuity 25.2 -------?492'623.- ---------122j83-
ZSJ Generaldescription

This represents an unfunded gratuity schene which provides termination benefits for all employees of the Company who attain the minimum qualifying

period. The latest actuarial valuation ofthe defined benefit plan was carried out as at June 30, 2019 using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Cost

Method. Details of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

LONG TERM FINANCING 
Nolo 

2019 2018 
— Rupees In "000 — 

From fmancial institutions - secured 
Diminishing musharika 23,1 2,140,117 2,263,222 
Syndicated finance facility 23.2 542,857 814.286 
Syndicated finance facility (BMR) 23,3 95,208 138,968 
Islamic long term finance facility - ILTFF 23.4 696,754 - 

3,475,936 3,216,476 
From related party - unsecured 
Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited - associated company 23.5 1,400,000 - 

4,875,936 3,216,476 
Less; Current portion of long term financing (1,247,191) (968,540) 

3.628,745 2,247,936 

23.1 These loans have been obtained under diminishing musharika arrangements and are repayable in quarterly installments. These are secured against 1st 
joint pan passu charge - [PP of Rs. 6,458 million (2018: 1,474 million) over fixed assets, specific/exclusive charge of Rs. 1,992 million {2013: 3.015 
million) on fixed assets (plant and machinery) and ranking charge of Rs. 718 million (2018; 1,978 million) on fixed assets of the Company. Mark up is 
charged at the rate of 3 months K1BOR plus 0.10% to 0.50% per annum (2018:3 months KIBOR plus 0.10% to 0-75% per annum). 

23.2 The company has entered into a syndicated long term finance facility arrangement for Rs. 1,900 million with a consortium of local banks for acquisition 
of certain assets from Kohinoor Mills Limited, The repayment of this loan is to be made in quarterly installments and the loan is secured against the 1st 
specific charge of Rs. 2,933.34 million (2018; 2.933,34 million) over the fixed assets of Interloop Limited (Hosiery Division III). The mark up is charged 
at the fixed rate of 5% per annum (2018: 5% per annum). 

23.3 The Company has also entered into syndicated long term finance facility arrangement for Rs. 300 million with a consortium of local banks for Balancing. 
Modernization and Replacement (BMR) of assets purchased from Kohinoor Mills Limited. The repayment ofloanistobo made in quarterly installments 
and securities are same as mentioned in note 23.2 above. Markup Is charged at the rate of 03 months KIBOR plus 1.3% per annum (2018; 03 months 
KIBOR plus 1.3% per annum). 

23.4 The Company has obtained Islamic Long Term Finance Facility • 1LTFF of Rs, 1,500 million for purchase of plant and machinery for a period of 10 years 
including 2 year grace period. Repayment of loan is to be made in quarterly installments and is secured against IstJPP charge of Rs. 3,734 million (2018: 
nil) over land, building and plant and machinery of the Company. This 1st JPP charge of Rs. 3,734 million is same on both ILTFF and diminishing 
musharika facilities from HBl and is included in aggregate charge mentioned in note 23.1 above. Markup is charged at SBP ILTFF rate pius.0.75% per 
annum (2018; nil). 

23.5 The Company "Interloop Limited" has entered into loan agreement with Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 million for period 
of three years including one year grace period. Mark up is charged at the rate of 5% per annum and will be paid till 1 Sth of every month, following the 
end of every quarter. Upon lapseof payment date, the Company sliall pay lace payment charges equivalent to 2% of the monthly markup installment due 
for each day of late payment, which may bo considered to waive off at the discretion of management of Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited. The loan is 
unsecured but is made with full recourse against the Company and its successors, 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in '000 — 

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS 
SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE 

Future minimum lease payments 
Less: Un-amortized finance charges 
Present value of future minimum lease payments 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 

1.146 
(") 

1,085 
(470) 
615 

24.1 During the year the Company has paid off all its lease liability. 
24.2 The amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows; 

2018 

Not later than one 
year 

Later than one year 
and not later than 

five years 

Future minimum lease payments 
Less; Un-amortized finance charges 
Present value of future minimum lease payments 

— Rupees in '000 — 

519 
49 

527 
12 

470 61S 

Note 

25.2 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in '000 — 

2,482.623 1,925,612 
DEFERRED LIABILITIES 
Staff retirement gratuity 
25.1 General description 

This represents an unfunded gratuity scheme which provides termination benefits for all employees of the Company who attain the minimum qualifying 
period. The latest actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan was carried out as at june 30,2019 using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Cost 
Method. Details of the defined benefit plan are as follows; 



2S.Z Movernent in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening balance

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or Ioss

Remeasurement of plan obligation chargeable

to olher comprehensive income

Balance transferred to Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited

Balance transferred to IL Apparel (Pvtl Limited
Paid during the year

Closing balance

ZS.3 Expenses recognized in tJre statement ofprofit or loss

Current service cost
Interest cost

25.4 Amounts charged in the statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Cost of sales

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

25.5 Total remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

25.6 Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate used for profit and loss charge
Discount rate for year end obligation

Salary increase used for year end obligation
Salary increase for FY 2019
Salary increase for FY 2020
Salary increase for FY 2021
Salary increase for FY 2022
Salary increase for FY 2023
Salary increase for FY 2024
Salary increase for FY 2025 onward

Demographic assumption
Mortality rates (for deaths in servicel

Accrued liabilities
Advances from customers
Other payables

Employees provident fund trust
Withholding tax payable
Workers' profit participation fund

Note

25.3

25.5

z0t9
--- Rupees in '000 "--

L,925,6t2

522,833

t92,425

(r7,rzo)
(10,s06J

(L3L,oZLJ

L,572,461-

4L4,543

9 1,3 05

(s03)

(L52,le4)

_______-JAB2,6Z3 __-___Jf25,6J3_

336,A23 29A,575
186,010 115,968
522,A33 +1+,543

Retirement assumption 60 years 60 vears

25,7 Theexpectedcontributiontodefinedbenefitobligationfortheyearendinglune30,2020will beRs 733.96million','

25,B Sensitivityanalysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The following table summarizes how the impact on the

defined benefit obligation atthe end ofthe reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result ofa change in respective assumptions by 100

bps

20L9 20la
--- Rupees in '000 ---

(2,232,532) (L,728,3e0)

2,7AL,A33 2,165,469
2,7a5,405 2,769,128

(z,zzs,oo7-) (1,721,6s9)

been performed using the sane calculation

440,739
L4364

352,125
17,498

67,726 50,920

_____--___s22$3- ________3138!3_

- (7s,s2t)
97,569 67,778
95,256. 99,048

792,A25 91,305

zotg 20la

10.00% 7.750/n
t4.\Oo/o 10.00%

N/A 9.250/o

t4.O0o/o 9.25o/o

L4.Ogo/o 9.ZS%

L4.ggo/o 9.Z5o/o

L4,OOo/o 9.ZSo/o

l4,O0o/o 9.25Vo

t4,ggo/o 9.25o/o

SLIC SLIC

2001-2005 2001-2005
Setback 1 year Setback 1 year

833,328
2,2L3,645

889,974
1,464,098

Discount rate + 100 bps
Discount rate - 100 bps
Salary change + 100 bps
Salaiy change - 100 bps

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions has

techniques as applied for calculation ofdefined benefit obligation reported in the balance sheet.

ZS,g The average duration of defined benefit obligation for the year ended 2 0 1 9 is 1 1 years [2 0 18: 1 1 yearsJ '

26. TRADEANDOTHERPAYABLES

Creditors
26.r

26.2
739A 13,510

L53,L25 127,402
5,020 4,315

78,A45 20,286

26.3 285,500 270,829

-------3ilSp9J- -------Jl-394!-

2019 2018 

25.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation 
Opening balance 
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
Remeasurement of plan obligation chargeabfe 
to other comprehensive Income 
Balance transferred to Intorloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited 
Balance transferred loll Apparel fPvt) Limited 
Paid during the year 
Closing balance 

25.3 Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 

25.4 Amounts charged in the statement of profit or loss are as follows; 
Cost of sales 
Distribution expenses 
Administrative expenses 

25.5 Total remeasurement chargeable to oilier comprehensive income 
Remeasurement of plan obligation: 
Actuarial gain from changes in demographic assumptions 
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 
Experience adjustments 

25.6 Principal actuarial assumptions used 

Discount rate used for profit and loss charge 
Discount rale for year end obligation 
Salary increase used for year end obligation 
Salary Increase for FY 2019 
Salary increase for FY 2020 
Salary increase for FY 2021 
Salary increase for FY 2022 
Salary increase for FY 2023 
Salary increase for FY 2024 
Salary increase for FY 202S onward 
Demographic assumption 
Mortality rates (for deaths in service) 

Note 

25,3 
25.5 

— Rupees in '000 — 

25.4 

1,925,612 1,572,461 
522,833 414,543 
192,825 91,305 

(17,120) (503) 
(10,506) - 

(131,021) (152,194) 
2,482,623 1.925.612 

336,823 298,575 
186,010 115,960 
522.833 414,543 

440,739 352,125 
14,368 11,498 
67,726 50.920 

522,833 414.543 

(75,521) 
97,569 67,778 
95,256. 99,048 

192.825 91.305 

2019 2018 

10.00% 7,75% 
14.50% 10,00% 

N/A 9.25% 
14.00% 9.25% 
14.00% 9,25% 
14,00% 9.25% 
14.00% 9.25% 
14.00% 9.25% 
14.00% 9.25% 

SL1C SLIC 
2001-2005 20O1-2OO5 

Setback X year Setback 1 year 

60 years 60 years 

25.7 

Retirement assumption 

The expected contribution to defined benefit obligation for the year ending June 30,2020 will be Rs. 733.96 niillion. 
25.8 Sensitivity analysis 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation Is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The following table summarizes how the impact on the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result of a change in respective assumptions by 100 
bps, 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in'000 — 

Discount rate + 100 bps 
Discount rate ■ 100 bps 
Salary change + 100 bps 
Salary change -100 bps 

(2,232,532) 
2,781,833 
2,785,405 

(2,225,007) 

(1,728,390) 
2,165,469 
2,169,128 

(1,721,659) 

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions has been performed using the same calculation 
techniques as applied for calculation of defined benefit obligation reported in the balance sheet, 

25.9 The average duration of defined benefit obligation for the year ended 2019 is 11 years (2010; 11 years). 

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABIES 
Creditors 
Accrued liabilities 
Advances from customers 
Other payables 
Employees provident fund trust 
Withholding tax payable 
Workers' profit participation fund 

833,328 889,974 
26.1 2,213,645 1,464,098 

7,398 13,510 
26.2 153,125 127,402 

5,020 4,315 
73,845 20,286 

26.3 285,500 210,329 
3,576.861 2.730.414 



26,L It includes an amount ofRs.209.85 million (2018: Rs. 188.22 millionJ relating to infrastructure cess payable.

Honourable Sindh High Court in its decision dated 17 September, 2008 declared the imposition of infrastructure cess before December 28, 2006 as void
and invalid. However, the Excise and Taxation Department filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. I'he Honourable Suprenre

court of Pakistan had disposed off the appeal with a joint statement of the parties that during the pendency of the appeal, another law i.e. fifth version
came into existence which was not the sublect matter of the appeal hence the case was refeued back to High Court of Sindh with right to appeal to
Supreme Court. On May 31,,2011, the High Court ofSindh had granted an interim reliefon an application ofpetitioners on certain terms iDcluding
discharge and return of bank guarantees / security furnished on consignment released up to December 27, 2006 and any bank guarantee ,/ security
furnished on consignment released after December 27 , 2006 shall be encashed to extent of 50yo of the guaranteed or secured amount only with balance

kept intact till the disposal of petition. In case the High Court upholds the applicability fifth version of law and its retrospective application, the

authorities are entitled to claim the amounts due under the said law with the right to appeal available to petitioner. ln the light of interim relief the

Company has paid 50% of the amount of Infrastructure cess. lmports of the Company are being released against 500/0 payment of Infrastructure ccss to

Excise and Taxation Department and fumishing of bank guarantee of balance amount.

The Government of Punjab imposed Punjab Infrastructure Development Levy in terms of the Punjab Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (the

Act) read with PRA Notification No.PM/IDC/ZO15 dated 16.05.2016 and PRA order No.PM/Orders.08/2015 dated 23.05.2016. The Company being

aggrievedfiledwritpetitionvideWPNo.24536of 2016beforeHonorableLahoreHighCourtchallengingtheconstitutionalityof theAct. TheLahore
High Court on 29.07.20L6 granted interim relief for clearance of goods subject to payment of 500/o ofthe disputed amount and upon furnishing of a bank

guarantee for the balance of 5070 ofthe amount.

Both the above referred cases are pending litigation before respective Honorable High Courts. The case of Sindh High Court is pending adjudication,

whereas case preferred before Honorable Lahore High Court has been fixed for 24.09.2019.

However the full amount of Infrastructure Cess forms component of cost of imported items and provision recorded in books. Bank guarantees furnished

ragarding imposition ofinfrastructure cess have been disclosed in note - 30.1 to these financial statements.

26.2 This includes amount of Rs. 338 thousand payable to ESOS Management Trust for payments received against issuance of shares to employees under

ESOS.

to11- 
*'0"u, i''ooo "1'ot8

26,3 Workers'profitparticipationfund

Opening balance

lnterest on funds utilized in the Company's business

Less: paid during the year

Add: allocation for the year
Closing balance

ACCRUED MARK UP

Mark up on:

Long term financing
Short term borrowings

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - Secured
Under mark up arrangements

ERF - II
FAPC - own source
Running finance

From related parties - Unsecured
Chief executive and directors

Mark up is charged as;

ERF. II

FAPC - own source

Running finance

CURRENT PORTION OF NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing
Liabilities against assets subject to finance Iease

zto,829 150,2 0 0

2L,425 6,172

232,254 1-56,372

(232,0691 (756,373)
185

285,315 210,830

___________z!58!q- __-----_---?1982e

t1l

27.

za.

46,259
64,224

36,228
t07,628

29.1 -:

______-_11!193_ -_--------J3lj56

LL,7Z6,AO0 11,021,000
- 2,750,000
- 1,263,364

146.573

_-_-__J!fzS p99_ ________J5,r99231-

28,L These are secured against first Joint Pari Passu (lPP) charge of Rs. 26,817.83 million (2018; 26,083.33 million) and ranking charge of Rs 2,632 million

(2018: NilJ by all the lending banks over all present and future current assets of the Company. The total limits available to the Company for short term

borrowings from all the banks are amounting to Rs. 24,950 million (2018: 19,562.5 millionJ.

SBP rate + 0.25 to 0.3 0% p.a (2018: SBP rate + 0.25o/o to 0.400/o p.a).

3 months Kibor + 0.25 to 0.50% p.a (2018: 3 to 6 months Kibor + 0.25 to 1.00% p.aJ

1 to 3 months Kibor r 0.20 to 1.00% p.a (2018: 1 to 3 months Kibor + 0.20 to 1.00% p.aJ

29.

23
24

r,247,t9t 968,540
470

L,247,l9l 969,010

26.1 it includes an amount of Rs. 209.85 million (2018; Rs. 188.22 million} relating to infrastructure cess payable. 

Honourable Sindh High Court in its decision dated 37 September, 2008 declared the imposition of infrastructure cess before December 28,2006 as void 
and invalid. However, the Excise and Taxation Department filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Honourable Supreme 
court of Pakistan had disposed off the appeal with a joint statement of the parties that during the pendency of the appeal, another law i.e. fifth version 
came into existence which was not the subject matter of the appeal hence the case was referred back to High Court of Sindh with right to appeal to 
Supreme Court, On May 31, 2011, the High Court of Sindh had grunted an interim relief on an application of petitioners on certain terms including 
discharge and return of bank guarantees / security furnished on consignment released up to December 27, 2006 and any bank guarantee / security 
furnished on consignment released after December 27,2006 shall be encashed to extent of 50% of the guaranteed or secured amount only with balance 
kept Intact till the disposal of petition. In case the High Court upholds the applicability fifth version of law and its retrospective application, the 
authorities are entitled to claim the amounts due under the said law with the right to appeal available to petitioner. In the light of interim relief the 
Company has paid 50% of the amount of Infrastructure cess. Imports of the Company are being released against 50% payment of Infrastructure cess to 
Excise and Taxation Department and furnishing of bank guarantee of balance amount. 

The Government of Punjab imposed Punjab Infrastructure Development Levy in terms of the Punjab Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (the 
Act) read with PRA Notification No.PRA/IDC/201S dated 16.05.2016 and PRA order No.PRA/Orders.08/Z01S dated 23.05.2016. The Company being 
aggrieved filed writ petition vide WP No.24536 of 2016 before Honorable Lahore High Court challenging the constitutionality of the Act. The Lahore 
High Court on 28,07.2016 granted interim relief for clearance of goods subject to payment of 50% of the disputed amount and upon furnishing of a bank 
guarantee for the balance of 50% of the amount. 

Both the above referred cases are pending litigation before respective Honorable High Courts. The case of Sindh Higli Court is pending adjudication, 
whereas case preferred before Honorable Lahore High Court has been fixed for 24.09.2019. 

However the full amount of Infrastructure Cess forms component of cost of imported items and provision recorded in books. Bank guarantees furnished 
ragarding imposition of infrastructure ccss have been disclosed in note - 30.1 to these financial statements. 

26.2 This includes amount of Rs. 333 thousand payable to ESOS Management Trust for payments received agaiiist issuance of shares to employees under 
ESOS. 

26.3 Workers' profit participation fund 
Opening balance 
Interest on funds utilised In the Company's business 

Less: paid during the year 

Add: allocation for the year 
Closing balance 

27. ACCRUED MARK UP 
Markup on; 

Long term financing 
Short term borrowings 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in '000 — 

210,829 
21,425 

150,200 
6,172 

232,254 156,372 
(232,069) (156,373) 

185 [15 
285,315 210.830 
285,500 210.829 

46,259 36,228 
64,224 101,628 

110,483 137,856 

28. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
From banking companies - Secured 
Under mark up arrangements 

ERF - II 
FAPC - own source 
Running finance 

From related parties - Unsecured 
Chief executive and directors 

28.1 
11,726,000 

11,726,000 

11,021,000 
2,750.000 
1,263,364 

146,573 
15,180,937 

28.1 These are secured against first joint Part Passu (jPP) charge of Rs. 26,817.83 million (2018: 26,083.33 million) and ranking charge of Rs. 2,632 million 
(2018: Nil) by all the lending banks over all present and future current assets of the Company. The total limits available to the Company for short term 
borrowings from all the banks are amounting to Rs. 24,9S0 million (2018; 19,562,5 million). 

Mark up is charged as; 
ERF-II 
FAPC - own source 
Running finance 

SEP rate ♦ 0.25 to 0.30% p.a (2018; SBP rate * 0,25% to 0.40% p.a). 
3 months Kibor + 0.25 to 0.50% p.a (2013:3 to 6 months Kibor * 0.25 to 1,00% p.a) 
1 to 3 months Kibor <-0.20 to 1.00% p.a (2018; I to 3 months Kibor + 0.20 to 1,00% p.a) 

29. CURRENT PORTION OF NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long term financing 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 

23 
24 

1,247,191 968,540 
470 

1,247,191 969,0 iU 



zot9 2018

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

30,1 Contingencies

30,1,1 Bank guarantees issued by various banks on behalf of the company in favour of:

Sui Nofthern Gas Pipelines limited against supply of gas.

The Director, Excise and Taxation, lGrachi against imposition of infrastructure cess

Faisalabad Electric Supply Cornpany (FESCOI against supply of electricity.

Punjab Revenue Authority

State Bank of Pakistan

Post dated cheoues issued in favour of custom authorities
30.1.2

for release of imported goods

30.1.3 Corporate guarantees given to banks on behalf of IL Apparel (Pvt) Ltd - a subsidiary company

30.2 Commitments

Under letters of credit for;

Capital expenditure
Raw material
Stores and spares

--- Rupees in '000 ---

547,069

1.97,853

70,4L4

8,033

L27,55r

3 86,804

70,474

4,335

2 5,000

_____-_--9Eqrzg._ __*-_---"--F!%!-q-

*_*_L.e97,613_ ______3ElW9:

:::__-laqq{!q-

I,275,725
L09,974
t36,399

747,706
209,206

3 7,15 3

_____1EU p23_ 
-_-_-___22![55_

31. SALES. NET

Export sales
Local sales

Less:

Sales discount
Sales tax

31.1 ItincludesexchangegainamountingtoRs.2,258.645million (2018: Rs.89062millionJ

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Knitting charges
Salaries, wages and benefits
Staff retirement gratuity
Fuel and power
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Depreciation
Rent, rate and taxes

Other nanufacturing costs

Work in process

0pening balance
Closing balance

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods

Opening balance

Closing balance

Duty drawback

32,L Raw material consumed

0pening balance
Purchases

Closing balance

3Z,Z Stores and spares consumed

Opening balance
Purchases

Closing balance

32,3 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 6.321

3L.L 33,94L,2L3
3,775,022

't7,5r8,696

3,84.6,865

37 ,716,235

15,654,924
854,199

TL,A97
5,529,513

440,739
2,261,243

LZg,L03
52,250

L,490,464
2s,676

235,444
26,688,59?

779,t94
962,660

13,312,629
8?4,473
19 2,13 5

5,037,474

r,B7 4,447
129,668

5 1,064
1,3 3 8,143

32,305
84,435

ac, L 40,o1o

31,3 65,561

l-- eo6?riitl-- (rGpstl
I tzt,rzzlll eo,nrl

(237,9L41 (226,82s)

_--____3!-AL9EZ1_ _!1eEl36

32.r

32.3
25.4

7.L.Z

---- 4?t,r?6lf 4so"a?E
I Fgz,soztll Wl,zTjl

uz6,za6l (20,5981

26,562,306 23,208,300

l-------t'484'uTlt- lJ ro,? l8 l
I (r,ss+,oegtll (r,,re,r,rzz)l

(46e,9r2) [363,4s9)
26,092,394 22,844,841

(s68,787) _ f8so,6o4)
25,523,607 21,99+,237

3,L66,265 1,994,485
L6,??2,599 14,+8+,+09

19,388,864 16,478,894
(3,730,840) (3,L66,26s)

75,65a,024 13,317,6?9

696,7 43

906,928

L,74\a5a 1,603,67r
(887,6591 1779,198)--- E54j9, Br4,4n:

million (2018: Rs.5.49 million) in respect ofthe provident fund contribution.

Note 
30. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

30.1 Contingencies 
30.1.1 Bank guarantees issued by various banks on bebalf of the company tit favour of: 

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines limited against supply of gas. 
The Director, Excise and Taxation. Karachi against imposition of infrastructure ccss 
Faisalabad Electric Supply Company (FESCO] against supply of electricity. 
Punjab Revenue Authority 
State Bank of Pakistan 

30.1.2 Post dated cheques issued in favour of custom authorities 
for release of imported goods 

30.1.3 Corporate guarantees given to banks on behalf of 11 Apparel [Pvt) Ltd - a subsidiary company 

30.2 Comniltments 
Under letters of credit for: 

Capital expenditure 
Raw material 
Stores and spares 

31. SALES-NET 
Export soles 
Local sales 

Less; 
Sales discount 
Sales tax 

31.1 It includes exchange gain amounting to Rs. 2,258.645 million (2010; Rs. 890.62 million). 

32. COST OF SALES 
Raw material consumed 
Stores and spares consumed 
Knitting charges 
Salaries, wages and benefits 
Staff retirement gratuity 
Fuel and power 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Depredarion 
Rent, rate and taxes 
Other manufacturing costs 

Work In process 
Opeiimg balance 
Closing balance 

Cost of goods manufactured 
Finished goods 

Opening balance 
Closing balance 

3l.l 

32.1 
32.2 

32.3 
25.4 

7.1.2 

Duty drawback 

32.1 Raw material consumed 
Opening balance 
Purchases 

Closing balance 

Stores and spares consumed 32.2 

32.3 

Opening balance 
Purchases 

Closing balance 

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 6.321 million {2018: Us, 5.49 millinn) in respect of (lie provident fund contribution. 

2019 2018 
— Rupees In '000 ■■■ 

547,069 386,804 
197,853 172,853 
70,414 70.4 H 

8,033 4,335 
127,551 25,000 
950,920 659,406 

3.291,613 2,643,166 

1,130.000 

1,275,725 747.706 
109,974 209,206 
136,399 37,153 

1,522,098 994,065 

33,941,213 27,518,696 
3,775,022 ' 3,816,865 

37,716.235 31,365,561 

{206,7921 (206.052) 
{31,1221 (20,773) 

(237,9141 (226,025) 
37.478,321 31,138.736 

15,658,024 13,312,629 
854,199 824,473 

11,897 192,135 
5,529,513 5,037,474 

440,739 352,125 
2,261,283 1,874,447 

329,103 129,668 
52,250 51,064 

1,490,464 1,338,143 
25,676 32,305 

235,444 84.435 
26.088.592 23,228.898 

471,276 450,678 
{597,502) 1171.276) 
(126,286] (20,598) 

25,562,306 23,208,300 

1,484,177 1,120,718 
(1,954,089) (1,484,177) 

(469,912) (363,459) 
20,092,394 22,844,841 

1568,7871 (850.604) 
25,523.607 21,994,237 

3,166,265 1,994,435 
16,222,599 14,484,409 
19,388,864 16,478.891 
(3,730,840) (3,166,265) 
15,558.024 13,312,629 

779,198 696.743 
962,660 906,928 

1,741,858 1,603,671 
(887,659) (779,198) 
854,199 824,473 



33. DISTRIBUTION COST

Sea and air freight
Shipping expenses
Selling commission
Export development surcharge
Marketing and advertisement
Staff salaries and benefits
Staff retirement gratuity
Others

34. ADMINISTRATIVEEXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits
Directors' remuneration
Staff retirement gratuity
Postage and communication
Electricity, gas and water
Rent, rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicles running and maintenance
Legal and professional charges
Repairs and maintenance
Auditors' remuneration
Insurance
Entertainment
Advertisement
Newspapers and periodicals
Depreciation
Amortization
0thers

34.4 Auditors'remuneration

Annual audit fee
Other certification
Half yearly review
0ut of pocket expenses

35. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Exchange loss - net
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Charity and donations
Workers' profit participation fund
Loss on mutual funds measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Provision for impairment loss on investment in IL Bangla Ltd.

35.1 Donations include the following in which a director or his spouse has an interest;

z0L9
--- Rupees in'000 ---

50,145 47,672
623,7A5 660,682

L,757,956 1,,621,,21,2

43,243 66,600
60,aL7 77,900

193,008 754,966
L436A 1.1.,498

397 483

______Jf 83J_U_ ___?f!J[13_
33.1 Staffsalaries and benefits include Rs, 0.961 million (2018: Rs. 0.715 million) in respect ofthe provident fund contribution.

33.1
25.4

7.L.2
8

34.t &34.2 1,057,2t2 826,274
96,362

25.4 67,726
38,675
22,L35

LL4,44a
23,446
73,942

r1-1-,470

50,9 2 0

34,5t3
14,607

r00,324
2 0,05 1

39,672

113,939 65,022

62,475 53,346

45,a70 49,716

34.4 2,A75 1,360

L7,951 17 ,21-3

5L,79L. 51,101
l7,s57 4,379
1,189 656

L50,779 733,392
I,O47 10377

16,359 73,417

________83!&92* ___*_____JE2JB9!-

34.f Staff salaries and benefits include Rs, 4.746 million (2018: Rs. 3.804 million) in respect of the provident fund contribution.

34.2 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs. 5.03 1 million (2 018: Rs. 4.188 millionJ in respect of employees' share option compensation expense,

34,3 The inv€stments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Conrpanies Act,20L7 and conditions

specified thereunder.

L,AZ5
400
500
150

950
260

150

_______---JE!- 

-__*--,1i6q-

Name of Director

Mr. Navid Fazal

Mr. Musadaq Zulqarnain
Mrs. Sheren Aftab
Mr. Jahanzeb Khan Banth
Mr. Muhammad Maqsood

,. 15,258
47,Ogt

3SO,L76
285,315

15,886
70,414

784,540

99,223

20,7A7

915

(5,816)

35.1
26.3

35.2
9.1

12,80 1

34,694
1,04,847
2 1 0,830

511,257

425,429

Name of Donee Interest in Donee

Interloop Welfare Trust Trustees

35.2 Loss on mutual funds measured at fair value through profit or loss;

Remeasurement Ioss on investment in mutual funds - fair value
through profit or loss

Realized loss on investment in mutual funds - fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income on investment in mutual funds - fair value through
profit or loss

I

-i

l

21,.7 66

10,908

49,1.77

(1,8281

18.1

15,886 58,257

2019 2018 
Note — Rupees in 000 ... 

DISTRIBUTION COST 
Sea and air freight SO,14S 47,672 
Shipping expenses 623,795 660,682 
Selling commission 1,757,956 1,521,212 
bxport development surcharge 83,243 66,600 
Marketing and advertisement 60,817 77,900 
Staff salaries and benefits 33.1 193,008 154,966 
Staff retirement gratuity 25.4 14,368 11,498 
Others 397 483 

2,783,719 2,641,013 
33.1 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs, 0.961 million (2018; Rs. 0.715 million) In respect of the provident fund contribution. 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
Staff salaries and benefits 34.1 & 34.2 1,057,212 826,274 
Directors' remuneration 96,362 111,470 
Staff retirement gratuity 25.4 57,726 50,920 
Postage and communication 38,675 34,513 
Electricity, gas and water 22,135 14,607 
Rene rates and taxes 113,939 65,022 
Printing and stationery 62,475 53,346 
Travelling and conveyance 114,448 100,324 
Vehicles running and maintenance 23,846 20,051 
Legal and professional charges 73,982 39,672 
Repairs and maintenance 45,070 49,716 
Auditors' remuneration 34.4 2,875 1,360 
Insurance 17,951 17.213 
Entertainment 51,791 51,101 
Advertisement 17,557' 4,379 
Newspapers and periodicals 1,189 656 
Depredation 7,1.2 150,77(1 133,392 
Amortization 8 9,047 10,371 
Others 16,359 13,417 

1,984,209 1,597,804 

34.1 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs. 4.746 million (2018: Rs, 3,804 million) in respect of the provident fund contribution, 
34.2 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs. 5.031 million (2018: Rs. 4.188 million) in respect of employees' share option compensation expense. 
34.3 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and conditions 

specified thereunder. 
34.4 Auditors' remuneration 

35. 

Annual audit fee 1,825 950 
Other certification 400 260 
Half yearly review 500 - 
Out of pocket expenses ISO ISO 

2,875 1.360 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
Exchange loss - net ... 15,258 12,801 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 47,091 38,094 
Charity and donations 35.1 350,176 104,847 
Workers' profit participation fund 26.3 285,315 210,830 
Loss on mutual funds measured at fair value through 
profit or loss 35.2 15,886 50,257 
Provision for impairment loss on investment in IL Bangla Ltd. 9.1 70,814 

784,540 425,429 

35.1 Donations include the following In which a director or his spouse has an interest; 

Name of Donee 

Interloop Welfare Trust 

Interest in Donee 

Trustees 

Name of Director 

r Mr. Navld Fazal 
Mr. Musadaq Zulqarnain 
Mrs. Shcrcn Aftab 
Mr. Jahanseb Khan Banth 
Mr. Muhammad Maqsood 

35.2 Loss on mutual funds measured at fair value through profit or loss; 
Remeasurement loss on investment in mutual funds - fair value 
through profit or loss 

Realized loss on investment in mutual funds - fair value through profit 
or loss 

Dividend income on investment In mutual funds - fair value through 
profit or loss 

18.1 

99,223 

20,787 

915 

(5,816) 
15,886 

21,766 

10,908 

49,177 

(1,828) 

58,257 



OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

lnterest on long term loan to SNGPL

Interest on loan to Metis lnternational (Pvt) Ltd
Profit on TDRs

Interest on receivables from IL Bangla Limited

FINANCE COST

Mark up on:

Short term borrowings
Long term financing

lnterest on workers' profit participation fund
Lease finance charges

Bank charges and commission

TAXATION

Current year
Prior year

EARNINGS PER SHARE . BASIC AND DILUTED

39,1 Earnings per share - Basic

Profit for the year (Rupees in '000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (Numbers in'000)
Add: Bonus shares issued after the reporting period (Numbers in'000)

Earnings per share - basic (RupeesJ

39.2 Earnings pershare - Diluted

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Short term investments - Term Deposit Receipts (TDRsJ

4L, RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES

zoLa
--- Rupees in'000 ---

7,Ztt
L,437
5,796

t4,444 9,164

1,6

8,923
225

37.

38.

552,483
3 15,73 0

2L,425
14

106,055
995,707

269,946
13 9,980

6,772
B2

67,434
483,6s4

38.1 226,2L6 1-20,1-97

- (243)

zolg 2018

____-___58!l_91- ---_-_!,895.q-q9-

_______2252!9_ _---------J.j 95!-
38,1 Provision for deferred tax is not required as the Company is chargeable to tax under section 154 and 169 of the Income Tax 0rdinance, 2001 and no

temporary differences are expected to arise in the foreseeable future. Reconciliation of tax expense and product of accounting profit multiplied by the

applicable tax rate is not required in view of presumptive taxation.

3A,Z Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposes tax at the rate of 50/o on every public company other than a scheduled bank or Modaraba, that
derives profits for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20% of accounting profit through cash dividend within six months of the end of said tax

year,

The Company has distributed sufficient cash dividend, for the year ended June 30,2018, which complies with the above stated requirements.

Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognized in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019.

77A,7-5O

___-_JJ3r5!-
6,6706

1 89,993
57 1,83 1

______J-9182!_

___=L!qq

40.

There is a dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, after taking into the effect of options granted on Company's shares to

employees ofthe Company under the Employee share option scheme (ESOSJ. Such dilution is based on the fair value ofthe Company's shares, which is

higher than the respective exercise price of options granted during the year.

Profit for the year ( Rupees in '0001

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (Numbers '000)

Add; Weighted average adjustment for assumed conversion of employees' share options (Numbers '000J

Add: Bonus shares issued after the repofting period (Numbers in '000)

Weighted average number of shares for determination of diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share - diluted (RupeesJ

___-___j&3rg_ _---3q$8!:-

6.6706 s.1003

20L9 20LA
--- Rupees in'000 ---Note

19
18

TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

t'*",;',;t.'"-'; mlNon Cash Changes ll Cash Flows

(2381

1,090,247
5,718,3 13

(21,62e)
6.786.693

774,750 189,993
-49

77a,750 761,873

1,538,564 1-93,687

947,255
2,479,At9 193,687

Long term financing
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Short term borrowings
Dividend to ordinary shareholders
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Share pre'mium net of transaction cost

3,216,476
1,085

15,180,937
475,276

. L,90L,t04
30,255

_____z_a,8qil!!-

1,659,460
(847)

(3,4s4,e37)
(1,434,5881

1,102,558

3,782,976

____-__Je'!,622_

4,875,936

rr,726,000
130,935

8,727,975
3,791,602

29,246,444

2019 2018 
Note — Rupees in '000 — 

36. OTHER INCOME 
Income from financial assets 
Interest on long term loan to SNGPL 16 
Interest on loan to Metis International (Pvt) Ltd 7,211 8,923 
Profit on TDRs 1,437 225 
Interest on receivables from IL Bangla Limited 5,798 

14,444 9,164 

37, FINANCE COST 

Mark up on: 
Short term borrowings 552,483 269,986 
Long term financing 315,730 139,900 

Interest on workers' profit participation fund 26,3 21,425 6,172 
Lease finance charges 14 82 
Bank charges and commission 106,055 67,434 

995,707 483,654 
38. TAXATION 

Current year 38,1 226,216 120,197 
Prior year (2431 

226,216 119.954 
38.1 Provision for deferred tax is not required as the Company Is chargeable to tax under section 154 and 169 of the income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and no 

temporary differences are expected to arise in the foreseeable future. Reconciliation of tax expense and product of accounting profit multiplied by the 
appiicable tax rate is not required in view of presumptive taxation. 

38.2 Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 Imposes tax at the rate of 5% on every public company other than a scheduled bank or Modaraba, that 
derives profits for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20% of accounting profit through cash dividend within six months of the end of said tax 
year. 
The Company has distributed sufficient cash dividend, for the year ended June 30, 2018, which complies with the above stated requirements. 
Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognized in the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2019. 

39. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2019 2018 

39.1 Earnings per share - Basic 
Profit for Che year (Rupees in 'ODOJ 5,194,767 3,385,809 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (Numbers in'000) 778,750 189,993 
Add; Bonus shares Issued after the reporting period (Numbers in '000J 571,831 

778,750 761,824 

Earnings per share - basic (Rupees) 6.6706 5.1007 

39.2 Earnings per share • Diluted 
There is a dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, after taking into the effect of options granted on Company's shares to 
employees of the Company under the Employee share option scheme (ESOS). Such dilution is based on the fair value of the Company's shares, which is 
higher than the respective exercise price of options granted during the year. 
Profit for the year (Rupees in '000) 5,194,767 3,885,809 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (Numbers '000) 778,750 109,993 
Add; Weighted average adjustment for assumed conversion of employees' share options (Numbers '000) - 49 
Add: Bonus shares issued after the reporting period (Numbers in '000) 571,831 
Weighted average number of shares for determination of diluted earnings per share 778,750 761,873 

Earnings per share - diluted (Rupees) 6.6706 5.1003 

2019 2018 
Note — Rupees In '000 — 

40. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and bank balances 19 1,538,564 193.687 
Short term investments - Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs] 18 941,255 

2,479,819 193.687 

41. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASK FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Balance Non Cash Changes Cash Flows Balance 
as on July 01,2018 as on June 30,2019 
 Rupees In 'OOO  

Long term financing 3,216,476 - 1,659,460 4,875,936 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease l.OSS (233) (847) - 
Short term borrowings 15,180,937 (3,454,937) 11,726,000 
Dividend to ordinary shareholders 475,276 1,090,247 (1,434,538) 130,935 
issued, subscribed and paid up capital • 1,901,104 5,718,313 1,102,558 8,721,975 
Share premium net of transaction cost 30,255 (21,629) 3,782,976 3,791,602 

20,805,133 6.786,693 1,654,622 29,246,448 



42. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial remuneration
Medical allowance
Bonus
Superannuation fund
Meetings fee
Staff retirement gratuity
Other allowances

Number of persons

Managerial remuneration
Medical aliowance
Bonus
Staff retirement gratuity
Other allowances

Number of persons

Iune 30,2019
Chief Executive Directors Executives

24,OOA

3,750

Rupees in'000

24,779

3,750
33,825

2,2_SO

232,O94
s,9tz

29,6_to

14,967
57,OtL

27,754 68,604 339,594

60

June 30,2018

Chief Executive I)irectors Executives

21-,450

3,400

72,870

1-3,7 50

137,527
3,589

15,0 65

L6,200
86,620 1 80,1 13

42

The chief executive officer and directors are provided with company maintained cars.

43. TMNSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include subsidiary company, associated companies and undertakings, entities under common directorship, directors, major shareholders, key

management personnel, employees benefit trust and post employment benefit plans. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions

with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under the relevant notes to the financial statements. Remuneration to directors
and key management personnel is disclosed in note 42. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

Name Nature oftransaction
zotg 2018

--- Rupees in'000 --'

lL Bangla Limited Sale of asset

Expenses paid on behalf of associate

Interest on receivables from IL Bangla Limited 5,796

7,225
7,452

lL Apparel (Pvt) Limited Expenses paid on behalf of subsidiary
Yarn dyeing services provided
Sale ofyarn and spare parts
Sale of assets
Investment in share capital
Share deposit money paid

342
4,433
4,L7t

499,000
200,000

8,017

lnterloop Holdings (Prt) Limited Expenses paid on behalf of associate

Finance management services received from Interloop
Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
Sale of assets
Loan obtained during the year
Loan repaid during the year
Mark up expense on loan from lnterloop Holdings (Prt)
Ltd

?oo

- 
7,500

22,323
3,000,000
1,600,000

83,651

1,295

Interloop Limited ESOS Management
Trust

Funds transfer for payment to withdrawal cases under
ESOS

Payment received on behalf of ES0S Management Trust -

net

500

838

Interloop Welfare Trust Sale of assets L,Zl4

Texlan Center IPvt] Limited Sale of assets
Sale of yarn

58,100
644,549

20,766
60,683

Global Veneer Trading Limited Selling commission aa4,27B 282,630

Eurosox Plus Bv Sale of socks
Reimbursement of exoenses

693,658
5,L29

15,863
3,234

Key management personnel and other
related parties

Sale of vehicle
House building finance loan

Mark up on house building finance loan

Repayment of loan

Issuance of bonus shares

Issuance of ordinary shares

Dividend paid

5,551
25,730

923
L46,573

s,sa7 323
3,000

L,400,733

42. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

June 30,2019 
Chief Executive Directors Executives 
  Rupees in '000 

Managerial remuneration 24,008 28,779 232,094 
Medical allowance 5,912 
Bonus 3,750 3,750 29,610 
Superannuation fund - 33,825 - 
Meetings fee • 2,250 - 
Staff retirement gratuity • 14,967 
Other allowances 57,011 

Number of persons 
27,758 68,604 339,594 

1 6 60 

June 30,2018 
Chief Exccullvc Directors Executives 

• Rupees in '000 — 

Managerial remuneration 23,4S0 72,870 137,527 
Medical allowance - - 3,589 
Bonus 3,400 13,750 15,055 
Staff retirement gratuity - - 7,732 
Other allowances  ; ; 16,200 

24,850 66,620 180,113 
Number of persons  l 9 42 

The chief executive officer and directors are provided with company maintained cars. 

43. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Related parties include subsidiary company, associated companies and undertakings, entities under common directorship, directors, major shareholders, key 
management personnel, employees benefit trust and post employment benefit plans. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under the relevant notes to the financial statements. Remuneration to directors 
and key management personnel is disclosed in note 42. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed 
elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows: 

Name Nature of transaction 
2019 2018 

— Rupees in '1)00 — 

IL Dangla Limited Sale of asset . 7,225 
Expenses paid on behalf of associate • 7,452 
Interest On receivabies from IL Bangla Limited 5,796 - 

!L Apparel fPvt) Limited Expenses paid on behalf of subsidiary 
Yarn dyeing services provided 
Sale of yarn and spare parts 
Sale of assets 
Investment in share capital 

382 
4,433 
4,171 

499,000 

8,017 

Share deposit money paid 200,000 

Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited Expenses paid on behalf of associate 200 1,295 
Finance management services received from Interloop 
Holdings (Pvt) Ltd 7,500 - 
Sale of assets 22,323 - 
Loan obtained during the year 3,000,000 - 
Loan repaid during the year 1,600,000 
Mark up expense on loan from Interloop Holdings (Pvt) 
Ltd 83,651 - 

interloop Limited ESOS Management 
Trust 

Funds transfer for payment to withdrawal cases under 
ESOS 
Payment received on behalf of ESOS Management Trust - 
net 838 

500 

Interloop Welfare Trust Sale of assets 1,214 • 

Texlan Center |Pvt) Limited Sale of assets 
Sale of yarn 

58,100 
644,549 

20,766 
60.683 

Global Veneer Trading Limited Seiting commission 884,278 282,630 

Eurosox Plus BV Sale of socks 
Reimbursement of expenses 

693,658 
5,129 

15,863 
3,234 

Key mauagementpersonncl and other 
related parties 

Sale of vehicle 
House building finance loan 
Mark up on house building finance loan 
Repayment of loan 
Issuance of bonus shares 
Issuance of ordinary shares 
Dividend paid 

5,551 
25,750 

923 
146,573 

5,587,323 
3,000 

1,400,733 



43.1 Following are the related parties with whom the company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place

Common DirectorshiP /
BasisofRelationship percentageofshareholding Address and Country of Incorporation

Company Name

IL Bangla Limited

IL Apparel (Pvt) Limited

Interloop Holdings (Pvtl Limited

Interloop Dairies Limited

Momentum Logistics (PvtJ Limited

Printkraft (Pvt) Limited

Texlan Center [Pvt) Limited

Global Veneer Trading Limited

Eurosox Plus BV

Interloop Welfare Trust

Interloop Limited ESOS Management Trust

Interloop Provident Fund Trust

Associate

Subsidiary

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

Trustee

Trustee

Trustee

3l.610/o

100.00%

Common Directors

Common Directors

Subsidiary of Associate

Subsidiary of Associate

Common Directors

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

House # 267, Road # 19, New DOHS

Mohakhali, Dhaka.

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Dagonna Road, Minuwangoda, sri lanka'

Bahnhofasteasse22, 63 00 Zug, Switzerland'

Constructieweg 1, 7451 PS Holten,

Netherlands

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, RailwaY Road,

Faisalabad, Pakistan

44.

45.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Average number of employees during the year

Number of employees at end ofthe year

UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company planned for setting up two new projects'

- A socks knitting unit in Khurrianwala, Faisalabad, "Hosiery Division - V"'

- A denim stitching unit in Lahore, "Denim Division"'

Estimated cost of these two proiects is as under;

Hosiery Division - V

Denim Division

Proceeds from lP0
Financing from banks

As on June 30,2019 progress ofboth the projects is as under;

912,1_23

2Ot9 ZOLA

1^6,402 75,373

t7.395 15'409

20L9
-- Rupees in'000 --

4,4S4,OOO
6,750,423

rt,zo4,4z3

7,413,736 412'708

265,892 40,744

426,445 10,168

13,159 68,251

- 

z.rts.ztz s3l'84-

These projects are financed through issuance of share capital to general public and financing from banks. For this purpo'", 
'i'" 

co-puty tarried out a successful

IpO during the year and have secired islamic long term finance-facilities from banks. Detail ofthe pioceeds from lPO and financing required from banks is as

under;
s,oz4'900
6,L79,523

LL,204,423

D""itn Diviti"n Hosiery Division'V

Outstanding LCs PRs/POs Issued AmountUtilized

Rupees in'000 -

Amount Utilized

Land and building
Plant and machinery

Power and utilities
Miscellaneous exPenses

Advances to supPliers

578,637
339,803

83,288
103,440
789,724

r,a94,292 912'LZ3

43.1 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place. 

Company Name Basis of Relationship 
Common Directorship / 

Percentage of shareholding 

IL Bangla Limited 

!L Apparel (Pvt) Limited 

Interloop Holdings (Pvt) Limited 

Interloop Dairies Limited 

Momentum Logistics (Pvt) Limited 

Printkraft (Pvt) Limited 

Texlan Center (Pvt) Limited 

Global Veneer Trading Limited 

Eurosox Plus BV 

Interloop WelfareTrust 

Interloop Limited ESOS Management Trust 

Interloop Provident Fund Trust 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Average number of employees during the year 
Number of employees at end of the year 

Associate 31,61% 

Subsidiary 100.00% 

Associate Common Directors 

Associate Common Directors 

Associate Subsidiary of Associate 

Associate Subsidiary of Associate 

Associate Common Directors 

Associate N/A 

Associate N/A 

Trustee N/A 

Trustee N/A 

Trustee N/A 

Address and Country of Incorporation 

House # 267, Road » 19, New DOHS 
Mohakhali, Dhaka, 
Al-Sadlq Plaza, P-157, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad. Pakistan 
Al-Sadlq Plaza, P-157, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad, Pakistan 
Al-Sadiq Plaza. P-157, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad, Pakistan 
Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad, Pakistan 
Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad, Pakistan 
Dagonna Road, Minowangoda, sri lanka, 

Bahnhofa3i€asse22,6300 Zug, Switzerland. 

Constructieweg 1,7451 PS Holten, 
Netherlands 
Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-157, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad, Pakistan 
Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-1S7, Railway Road, 
Faisalabad. Pakistan 
Al-Sadiq Plaza, P-357, Railway Road. 
Faisalabad, Pakistan 

2019 

16,402 

2018 

15,373 
17,395 15,409 

UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING 

The Company planned for setting up two new projects. 
- A socks knitting unit in Khurrianwala, Faisalabad. "Hosiery Division ■ V. 
- A demm stitching unit in Lahore, "Denim Division". 

Estimated cost of these two projects is as under; 
Hosiery Division - V 
Denim Division 

2019 
-- Rupees in '000- 

4,454,000 
  6,750,423 

11,204.423 

These projects are financed through issuance of share capital to general public and financing from banks. For this P^P0Se ,th^ 
IPO during the year and have secured islamic long term finance facilities from banks. Detail of the proceeds from IPO and fmancmg required 
under; 

5,024,900 
Proceeds from IPG 6,179,523 
Financing from banks 11204,423 

s on June 30,2019 progress of both the projects is as under: 

Land and building 
Plant and machinery 
Power and utilities 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Advances to suppliers 

Denim Division Hoslerv Division-V 

Amount Utilized Outstanding f.Cs PRs/POs Issued Amount Utilized 

578,637 
339,803 

83,288 
103,440 

912,123 
1,413,736 

265,892 
426,445 

412,708 
40,744 
10,168 

- 13,159 68,251 
789,124 - " 

1,894,292 912,123 2,119,232 531,871 
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47, PLANTCAPACITYANDACTUALPRODUCTION

Hosiery

Installed capacity - knitting
Actual production - knitting

Spinning

Installed capacity after conversion into 20/s
Actual production after conversion into 20 /s

Yarn Dyeing

lnstalled capacity
Actual production

luoMI

lDzNl

IDZNI

lrBsl
ILBSI

IKGs]
IKGs]

2019 zota
--- Figures in'000 ---

57,A7t 51.,289

43,242 45,935

29,949 29,949
26,630 27,21.9

4,92A 4,8L8
4.324 4,440

Active Wear

The plant capacity of this division is indeterminable due to multi product plans involving varying processes of manufacturing and run
length of order lots.

47,7 Reasons for shortfall

The short fall in actual production during the year when compared with capacity is mainly on account of:

- The actual production is planned to meet the internal demand and orders in hand.

48. FAIRVALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount for which an

asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.'

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement

to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange

dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the company to classify fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy tllat reflects the

significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 : Fair value measurements using quoted [unadjustedJ in active markets for identical asset or liability,

Level 2 : Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly [i.e. as pricesJ or indirectly (i.e. derived from pricesJ.

Level 3 : Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable

inputsl.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have

occurred.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values offinancial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the

carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

47. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION [ UOM 1 2019 20113 
— Figures in '000 --- 

Hosiery 

Installed capacity - knitting 
Actual production - knitting 

Spinning 

installed capacity after conversion into ZO/s 
Actual production after conversion into 20/s 

Yarn Dyeing 

installed capacity 
Actual production 

[DZN] 
[DZN] 

[LBS] 
[LBSJ 

[KGs] 
[KGs] 

57,871 
43,242 

29.949 
25,630 

4,928 
4,324 

51,289 
45,935 

29,949 
27,219 

4,810 
4,440 

Active Wear 

The plant capacity of this division is indeterminable due to multi product plans involving varying processes of manufacturing and run 
length of order iots. 

47.1 Reasons for shortfall 

The short fall in actual production during the year when compared with capacity Is mainly on account of: 

- The actual production is planned to meet the internal demand and orders in hand. 

48. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount for which an 
asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction." 

Fair value hierarchy 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. 

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement 
to cu rtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms. 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange 
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market 
transactions on an arm's length basis. 

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement" requires the company to classify fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted (unadjusted] In active markets for identical asset or liability. 

Level 2 : Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 : Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable 
inputs). 

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have 
occurred. 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair 
value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the 
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
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49. FINANCIAT RISK MANAGEMENT OB'ECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management ofworking capital with a view to maintain an appropriate
mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy and

maintains flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Market risks are managed by the Company through the adoption
of appropriate policies to cover currency risks and interest rate risks.

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Market risk
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk

49.t Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity risk. The sensitivity analysis in the following

sections relate to the position as at june 30, 2019 and 2018.

49.1.1 Interest rate risk:

lnterest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. Maiority ofthe interest rate exposure arises from investments in term deposit receipts, long term and short term loans,

short term borrowings, long term financing and liabilities against assets subject to finance lease.

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Fixed rate instruments

Short term investments [Rupees in '000]

Loan to Metis International [Pvt] Limited - Secured fRupees in'000]

Long term financing - Secured (Rupees in'000J

Variable rate instruments

Loan to director - Secured [Rupees in'000J
Effective interest rate in percentage

Receivables from IL Bangla Limited (Rupees in'000J
Effective interest rate in percentage

Long term financing from financial institutions - Secured [Rupees in '000]

Effective interest rate in percentage

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - Secured [Rupees in '000J

Effective interest rate in percentage

Short term borrowings from financial institutions - Secured (Rupees in '000J

Effective interest rate in percentage

2079

1,076,355

9,560

2,639,611

25,750
6.O7

B2,766
7.53

2,236,325
13,3 5

\L,726,OOO
2.30

20\a

33,41.4

B14,2B6

2,402,1,90

847
7.94

15,034,3 64
4.17

15,188

10

67,542

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profii or loss. Therefore, a change in

interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect statement of profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

lf interest rates on loan, receivables, long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease and short term borrowit]gs from

banks, at the year end date, fluctuate by 100 bps higher / lower with all other variables, in particularly foreign exchange rates held constant,

profit before taxation for the year 2019 and 2018 would have been affected as follows:
2079 20la

--- Rupees in'000 ---

144

786

14,696

81,834

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for loan to director

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for receivables from IL Bangla

Limited

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for long term financing

Effect on profit and loss ofan increase in interest rate for liabilities against assets subiect

to finance lease

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for short term borrowings

97,460 7 6,7 40

Decrease in interest rates at June 30 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. Sensitivity analysis has been prepared on

symmetric basis.

49,1,2 Currency risk / Foreign Exchange risk:

Currenly risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument, will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange

rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to foreign currency transactions.

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate 
mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy and 
maintains flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Market risks are managed by the Company through the adoption 
of appropriate policies to cover currency risks and interest rate risks. 

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments; 

Market risk 
Credit risk 
Liquidity risk 

49.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. 
Market risk comprises interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity risk. The sensitivity analysis in the following 
sections relate to the position as at June 30,2019 and 2018. 

49.J.1 Interest rate risk; 

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market Interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from investments in term deposit receipts, long term and short term loans, 
short term borrowings, long term financing and liabilities against assets subject to finance lease. 

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows: 

2019 2018 
Fixed rate instruments 
Short term investments (Rupees in '000} 

Loan to Metis International (Pvt) Limited - Secured (Rupees in '000} 
Long term financing - Secured (Rupees in '000} 

Variable rate instruments 
Loan to director - Secured (Rupees in "000) 
Effective interest rate in percentage 
Receivables from IL Bangla Limited (Rupees in "000} 
Effective Interest rate in percentage 
Long term financing from financial Institutions - Secured (Rupees in '000} 
Effective interest rate in percentage 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - Secured (Rupees in '000} 
Effective interest rate in percentage 
Short term borrowings from financial institutions - Secured (Rupees in '00f 
Effective interest rate in percentage 

1,076,355. 
9,560 

2,639,611 
33,414 

814,286 

25,750 
6.07 

82,766 
7.53 

2,236,325 
13.35 

11,726,000 
2.30 

2,402,190 
7.33 
847 
7.94 

15,034,364 
4.17 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in 
Interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect statement of profit or loss of the Company. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

if interest rates on loan, receivables, long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease and short term borrowings from 
banks, at the year end date, fluctuate by 100 bps higher / lower with all other variables, in particularly foreign exchange rates held constant, 
profit before taxation for the year 2019 and 2018 would have been affected as follows: 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in'000 — 

Effect on profit and loss of an increase In interest rate for loan to director 144 

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for receivables from IL Bangla 
Limited 786 

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for long term financing 14,696 15,188 

Effect on profit and loss of an increase in interest rate for liabilities against assets subject 
to finance lease • 10 

Effect on profit and toss of an increase in interest rate for short term borrowings 81,834 51,542 
97,460  76,740 

Decrease in interest rates at june 30 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. Sensitivity analysis has been prepared on 
symmetric basis. 

49.1.2 Currency risk / Foreign Exchange risk: 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument; will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 
rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to foreign currency transactions. 



Exposure to Currency Risk

The Company's exposure to currency risk
which are denominated in currency other
follows:

is restricted to the amounts receivable from/payable to the foreign entities and bank balances

than the functional currency of the Company. The Company's exposure to currency risk is as

20L9 20 18
Particulars Currency

Foreign currency bank

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Less: Payables - Creditors

0n Balance sheet Exposure

Under letter of credit

332.24
152.36

0.93
0.45

390.39
38.84

47,649.90

58.48

4,160.32
4,271.95

21,776.37
27.OO

[R U P E

142.70
163.85
183.80
t4s.o7

21.29
1.31

us$
EUR€

US$

US$

us$
EUR €

CNY

CHF

US$
EUR €
IPY Y
GBP €
CHF

57,364.98

27S.OO

32,418

6,964,708

33,474

239,357
7 48,650

3,402

2.656

Off Balance Sheet Exposure

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year :

Foreign Currency

US$
EUR €
GBP €
CHF

CNY

,PY Y

164,00
ta6s7
20a.4s
168.03
23.85

1.53

994,065

127.40
147.33
759.1.4

1.22.1.1

1.10

662,390
(1,r42)

t4l

sl lrr u P E E sl
1 13.10
1.30.62

747.78
115.8 3

1..O2

Currency rate sensitivity analysis

Ifthe functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened by 70o/o against the foreign currencies with
profit before taxation would have increased for the year 2019 and 2018 by the following amounts:

Foreign Currency

US$
EUR €

CNY

CHF

all other variables held constant, the

2019 2018
--- Rupees in'000 --
744,143

(2,019)
(2)

{7)

----J-42!5!- 
-----J!JAI-

A 10% strengthening ofthe functional currency against foreign currencies at June 30 would have had the equal but opposite effect ofthese

amounts.

Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. The analysis assumes that all other

variables remained constant.

49.1.3 Other price risk:

price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk], whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the

individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is

exposed to price risk, because ofthe investments held by the Company in money market mutual funds, and classified on the balance sheet as

fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio'

Short te-rm investments include fair value through profit and loss investments of Rs. 130.90 million (2018: Rs. 147.43 millionJ which were

subject to price risk.

l---- 64,0r+]|-- r6r-sslf----trnl
I z,zzs ll +tt I

7t,263

7,A!4,5A3

9,560

54,66t
2A,490

23
IJ

83,249
7,At2,r57

6A4373
79A,812

33,285
5,624

1,522,O98

f--- 46? A4a---- Eii 44-l| ';:: ll '':;: 
I

69,475

6,960,465

1.,971.64
5,297.77
3,100,00

21..7 5

2019 20r8

Average Rate
Reporting Date

Rate
Average Rate

Reporting Date
Rate

Exposure to Currency Bisk 

The Company's exposure to currency risk Is restricted to the amounts receivable from/payable to the foreign entities and bank balances 
which are denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The Company's exposure to currency risk is as 
follows; 

Z019 2018 
Particulars Currency F.Currcncy Rupees F.Currency Rupees 

Foreign currency bank US$ 390.39 64,024 261.55 31,752 
EUR € 38.84 7,239 4.71 666 

71,263 32,418 

Trade debts USS 47,649.90 7,814,583 57,364.98 6,964,108 

Loans and advances us$ 58.48 9,560 275.00 33,414 

Less: Payables - Creditors us$ 332.28 54,661 457.42 56,744 
EUR € 152.36 28,490 89.78 12,688 

CNY 0.93 23 - - 
CHF 0.45 75 0.35 43 

83,249 69,475 
On Balance sheet Exposure 7,812.157 6,960,465 

Under letter of credit US $ 4,160.32 684,373 1,971.64 239,357 
EUR € 4,271.95 798,812 5,297.17. 748,650 
(PY ¥ 21,776.31 33,285 3,100.00 3,402 
GBP £ 27.00 5,628 
CUP - - 21.75 2,656 

Off Balance Sheet Exposure 1,522,098 994,065 

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year: 

Foreign Currency 
2019 2018 

Average Rate Reporting Date 
Rale 

Average Rate Reporting Date 
Rate 

[R U P E E S] 

USS 142.70 
EUR € 163.85 
GBP £ 183,80 
CHF 145.07 
CNY 21.29 

JPY ¥ 1.31 

[R UP E S) 

164.00 113.10 121,40 
186.37 130.62 141.33 
208.45 147.78 159.14 
168.03 115.83 122.11 
23.85 - 

1.53 1.02 1.10 

Currency rate sensitivity analysis 

if the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened by 10% against the foreign currencies with all other variables held constant, the 
profit before taxation would have Increased for the year 2019 and 2013 by the following amounts: 

2019 2018 
Foreign Currency — Rupees in '000 — 

US $ 744,183 662,390 
EUR € (2,019) (1,142) 
CNY (2) 
GIF (7) (4) 

742,155  661,244 

A 10% strengthening of the functional currency against foreign currencies at June 30 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these 
amounts, 

Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. The analysis assumes that all oilier 
variables remained constant 

49.1.3 Other price risk: 

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market The Company is 
exposed to price risk, because of the investments held by the Company in money market mutual funds, and classified on the balance sheet as 
fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio. 

Short term investments include fair value through profit and loss investments of Rs. 130.90 million (2018: Rs. 147.43 million) which were 
subject to price risk. 



lfredemption price on mutual furds, at the year end date, fluctuate by 5olo higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for the year woulcl

have been Rs. 6.22 million (2018: 7 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result ofhigher / lower redemption price on units ofmutual funds.

49.2 Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk representing accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an

obligation or its failure to perform duties under the contracf as contracted. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in

similar busjness activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abiliq/ to meet contractual obligations that is susceptible to changes in

economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a

particular industry. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows :

20ts 2018
--- Rupees in'000 ---

Long term loans
Long term deposits
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Other receivables
Short term investments
Bank balances

---------:lJll-lg --------131:j3:-

Loans and advances consist of loans to employees & director and Metis International (Pvt) Ltd. Loans to employees and director are secured against their

retirement benefits and loan to Metis International is also secured through an irrevocable lien/charge on total assets of the Metls International (Pvt) Limited.

Therefore, Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on these loans.

Long term deposits have been mainly placed with suppliers of electricity, gas and telecommunication services. Considering the financial position and credit

qualiry ofthe institutions, Company's exposure to credit risk is not significant.

Trade debts amounting to Rs. 4,25 1 million out of total debts are secured against letters of credit and insured contract. Furthermore, credit quality of customers

is assessed taking into consideration their financial position and previous dealings and on that basis, individual credit limits are set. Moreover, the management

regularly monitors and reviews customers' credit exposure. Accordingly, the company is not exposed to any significant credit risk.

Other receivables constitute mainly receivables from the related parties and mark up subsidy from banks. Considering the financial position of related parties

and credit quality ofbanks and insurance company exposure to credit risk is not significant.

Short term investments are investments in mutual funds, TDRS and sales tax refund bonds. The credit risk on these investments is limited because counter

parties are fund management Companies, banks and Government with reasonably high credit ratings. The credit quality of mutual funds can be assessed by

reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counter party default rate.

65,7 62
2a,o19

a,247,740
66,343
94,42r

L,ZO7,ZsL
7,5r2,27L

60,7 47
24,817

7,293,008
B 1,1 63

154,697
L+7,425
r81,636

Al Meezan lnvestment Management Limited
NBP Fund Management Limited
Alfalah GHP lnvestment Management Limited
UBL Fund Managers Limited

Name of Bank

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Burj Bank Limited
Dubai lslamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited
MCB islamic Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan

Silk Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited

The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Limited

2019 2018
I Credit Ratings ]

AM1 AM1

AM1 AM1

AMZ+ AM2+

AM1 AM1

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default

Date Long term Shortterm Outlook AgencY

27 -lun-1-9

28-Jun-19

28-lun- 1 9

28-Jun-19

28-lun- 19

27 -lun-19

2B-Jun-19

27-lun-19
27-lu\'19
27 -Itn-1-9

2B-Jun-19

28-]un-19
27-lun-19
2 5 -Jun-1 9

2 B-lun- 1 I
28-lun-18

Stable

Srable

Stable

stable

Stablc

Stable

Stable

stable
Stable

srable

stable
Stable

Stable

stable

Stable

Stable

PACRA

PACRA

PACRA

PACRA

JCR-VIS
PACRA

JCR-VIS
PACRA

PACRA

PACRA

JCR-VIS

PACRA

ICR-VIS

PACRA

PACRA

JCR-VIS

AAA

AA+

AA+

A

AA

AAA

A

AA+

AAA

A-

AA

AAA

A1+

A1+
A1+

A1

A-1+
AL+
A-1+
41+
A1+
A1

A-1+
41r

A1+

A1+
A-1+

Due to Company's long standing relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does

not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the risk is minimal.

49.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient level of liquidity by holding highly liquid assets and the availability of funding through

an adequate amount of committed. credit facilities. At June 30,TOL, the Company has Rs.13,224 million (2018: Rs 4,381.56 million) unutilized borrowing Iimits

available from financial institutions and Rs. 1,538.56 million (2018: Rs. 193.69 million) cash and bank balances. The management believes that the company is

not exposed to any liquidity dsk.

The following are the contractual maturity analysis offinancial liabilities as at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

irrcdcmption price on mutual tunds, at the year cud dale, fluctuate by 5% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after lax for the year would 
have been Rs. 6.22 million (2018: 7 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower redemption price on units of mutual funds. 

49.2 Credit rlslc 
Credit risk is the risk representing accounting loss that would bo recognized at the reporting date if one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation or its failure to perform duties under the contract as contracted. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in 
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ahility to meet contractual obligations that Is susceptible to changes in 
economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk Indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's perlbrmancc to developments affecting a 
particular industry. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows: 

2019 2018 
— Hnpees in "000 — 

Long term loans 55.762 60,747 
Long term deposits 28,019 24,817 
Trade debts 8,247,740 7,293,008 
Loans and advances 66,343 01.163 
Other receivables 94,421 154,697 
Short term investments 1,207,251 147,425 
Bank balances 1,512,211 181.636 

11.221,747 7.943.493 

Loans and advances consist of loans to employees & director and Metis International (Pvt) Ltd. Loans to employees and director are secured against their 
retirement benefits and loan to Metis International is also secured through an irrevocable lien/charge on total assets of the Metis Inteniattonal (Pvt) Limited. 
Therefore, Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on those loans. 
Long term deposits have been mainly placed with suppliers of electricity, gas and telecommunication services. Considering the financial position and credit 
quality of the institutions, Company's exposure to credit risk is not significant 

Trade debts amounting to Rs. 4,251 million out of total debts are secured against letters of credit and insured contract Furthermore, credit quality of customers 
is assessed taking into consideration their financial position and previous dealings and on that basis, individual credit limits are set Moreover, the management 
regularly monitors and reviews customers' credit exposure. Accordingly, the company is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 
Other receivables constitute mainly receivables from the related parties and mark up subsidy from banks. Considering the financial position of related parties 
and credit quality of banks and insurance company exposure to credit risk is not significant 
Short term investments are investments in mutual funds, TDRs and sales tax refund bonds. The credit risk on these investments is limited because counter 
parties arc Rind management Companies, banks and Government with reasonably high credit ratings. The credit quality of mutual funds can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counter party default rate. 

2019 2018 
( Credit Ratings ] 

At Meezan Investment Management Limited 
KBP Fund Management Limited 
Alfalah CUP Investment Management Limited 
UBL fund Managers Limited 

AMI 
AMI 

AM2+ 
AM1 

AMI 
AMI 
AM2+ 
AMI 

The credit quailty of Company's bank balances can be assessed by reference lo external credit racings or to historical information about counterparty default 

Name of Batik Dace Long term Short term Outlook Agency 

Allied Bank Limited 27-Jun-19 AAA Al* Stable PACRA 
Askari Bank Limited 28-|Un-19 AAf AX* Stable CACRA 
Bank Alfalah Limited 28-)un-19 AA+ AX* Stable, PACRA 
Eurj Bank Limited 28-Jiin-19 A Al Stable PACRA 
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 28-|un-19 AA A-1+ Stable JCR-VIS 
Faysal Bank Limited 27-|un-19 AA A1 + Stable PACRA 
Kabfb Bank Limited 28-lun-19 AAA A-l< Stable JCR-VIS 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 27-Jun-I9 AA+ A1 + Stable PACRA 
MCB Bank Limited 27-lun-19 AAA A1+- Stable PACRA 
MCB Islamic Bank Umited 27-Iun-I9 A Al Stable PACRA 
Meezan Bank Limited 28-Iun-19 AA* A-1 + Stable JCR-VIS 
National Bank of Pakistan 28-Jun-19 AAA Alt Stable PACRA 
Silk Bank Limited 27-|un-19 A- A-2 Stable JCR-VIS 
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Limited 25-Jun-19 AAA A1 + Stable PACRA 
The Bank of Punjab 28-Jun-18 AA A1 + Stable PACRA 
United Bank Limited 2S-|un-18 AAA A-1 + Stable JCR-VIS 

Due Co Company's long standing relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does 
not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company, Accordingly, the risk is minimal. 

49.3 Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is Che risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities: 
The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient level of liquidity by holding highly liquid assets and the availability ot funding through 
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At June 30,2019 the Company has Rs. 13,224 million (2018: Rs 4,381.56 million) unutilized borrowing limits 
available from financial institutions and Rs, 1,538,56 million (2018: Rs. 193.69 million) cash and hank balances. The management believes that the company is 
not exposed to any liquidity risk. 

The following are the contractual maturity analysis of financial liabilities as at June 30.2019 and 2018: 



Contractual cash ll Within 6
flows ll months

Financial Liabilities :

Long term financing
Trade and other payables

Dividend payable

Accrued mark up
Short term borrowings

4,A75,936
3,20S,LLA

130,935
110,483

tt,726,ooo

5,764,4AA
3,2OSJLA

130,93 5

110,483
rt,atl,47a

677,4ZO
3,205,118

130,93 5

110,483
tr,aLr,47a

Financial Liabilities :

Long term financing
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Trade and other payables

Dividend payable

Accrued mark up

Short term borrowings

Long term financing
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Short term borrowings

Debts

Equily
Total capital (equiry + debt)

Gearing ratio (percentagel

50, EVENTAFTERTHE BALANCE SHEET DATE

3,652,002
1,1 6B

2,485,789
+75,276
r37,856

t5,329,L05

550,166
260

2,485,789
475,276
137,A56

L5,329,r0s

59+,099 2,507,737

519 389

________],!21,18]_ _____4p9J,125- __--__1821_9,4!2_ __-_____--__t2!e8_ _-_____J,s93,126

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark-up rates effeitive as at 30 June.

The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 23 and note 2B to these unconsolidated financial statements.

49.4 Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the company's abilify to continue as a going concern, maintain healthy capital ratios,

strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability offinance for its existing and potential investment projects, so tbat it can

continue to provide returns for shareholders thereby maximizing their wealth, benefits for other stakeholders and reduce the cost of capital

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, acljust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on the basis ofdebt to equify ratio, calculated on the basis oftotal debt to equity.

2019 2014
--- Rupees in'000 ---

4,A75,9_36

7L,726,OOO

3,216,476
847

1 5,1 B 0,937

16,607,936 18,398,260

t7 ,a7 I ,7 A4 9 ,082 ,537

_______J!e!129- _-_-21,439121-
" 48.15 66.95

51.

TheBoardofDirectorsintheirmeetingheldonSeptember23,2019haveproposedafinalcashdividendfortheyearendedJune30,2019ofRs 1.75persllare,

amounting to Rs. 1,526.34 million for approval ofthe members at the Annual General Meeting olthe Company.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

The financial statements were authorized for issue on 2

52, GENERAL

52.1 Corresponding figures

3 sEP 2019
----------- by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary lor the purpose of better presentation. Ilowever, during the year

following reclassifications are made in the corresponding figures.

Particulars Rupees in '000To

m*,r',*;;*h;]ffi*il;;;l
I 11qfplgl{Ll | "nu 

up to s v"".' I

934,605 4,L52,463

2O,O4a,472 Z[,O22,5OZ 15,935,434 934,605 . _::Jlt2t93:

201 A

t - 
- .---__ l t"-----,, 

"' 
., *-l f -"--;;;l ffi ;;J G - .n ", t r* I

I 
Larryrnsamount 

ll n"*t ll -ontr" ll anauptorye"r 
llanouptosyearsl

Rupees in'000

3,216,+76
447

2,485,789
475,276
1-37,856

t 5,180,937

Rupees in'000

0perating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

operating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

Freehold
Building on freehold Iand

Plant and machinery
Plant a[d machinery
Tools and equipments
Tools and equipments
Tools and equipments
Tools and equipments
Office equipments

Office equipments
Electric installations

Building on freehold land
Electric installations
Tools and equipments
Electric installations
Building on freehold land
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Electric installations
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Building on freehold land

t+3
1,290
1,680

22,157
4,249

14,782
2,729
+,877
6,225

11
( qqq

2019 

Carrying amount Contractual casli 
Hows 

Within 5 
months 

More than 6 months 
and up to 1 year 

More than 1 year 
and up to 5 years 

 Rupees In "000 —  
Financial Liabilities: 
Long term financing 4.875.936 5,764,488 677,420 934,605 4,152,463 
Trade and other payables 3,205,118 3,205,118 3,205,118 
Dividend payable 130,935 130,935 130,935 
Accrued mark up 110,483 110,483 110,483 
Short term borrowings 11,726,000 11,811,478 11.811,478 

20,048,472 21,022,502 15.935,434 934,605 4,152,463 

2018 

Carrying amount Contractual casli Within 6 More than 6 months More than 1 year 
flows monlhs and up to 1 year and up to S years 

Financial Liabilities: 
Long term financing 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
Trade and other payables 
Dividend payable 
Accrued mark up 
Short term borrowings 

3,216,476 
847 

2,485,789 
475,270 
137,856 

15,180,937 

3,652,002 
1,168 

2,485,789 
475.276 
137.856 

15,329,105 

- Rupees in '000 - 

550,166 
260 

2,485,789 
475,276 
137,855 

15,329,105 

594,099 
519 

2,507,737 
389 

21,497,181 22,081,196 18,978,452 594,818 2.508,126 

The contractual cash Hows relating to the above financial iiabiiities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark-up rates effec'clve as at 30 june. 
The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 23 and note 28 to these unconsolidatcd financial statements, 

49.4 Capital risk management 
Tile primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a going concern, maintain healthy capital ratios, 
strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and potential investment projects, so that it can 
continue to provide returns for shareholders thereby maximizing their wealth, benefits for other stakeholders and reduce the cost of capital. 

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio, calculated on the basis of total debt to equity. 

Long term financing 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
Short term borrowings 
Debts 
Equity 
Total capital {equity t debt) 
Gearing ratio (percentage) 

SO, EVENT AFTER THE DALANCE SHEET DATE 
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 23,2019 have proposed a finai cash dividend for the year ended June 30,2019 of Rs. 1.75 per share, 
amounting to Rs. 1,526.34 million for approval of the members at tlie Annual General Meeting of the Company, 

2019 2018 
— Rupees in '000 ... 

4,875,936 3.216,476 
- 847 

11,726,000 15,180,937 
16,601,936 18,398,260 
17,879,784 9,082,537 
34.481,720 27,430.797 

'"48.15 65.95 

51. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

The financial statements were authorized for issue on - 
2 3 SEP 201S ■— by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

52, GENERAL 
52,1 Corresponding figures 

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and rociassified wherever necessary for the purpose of better presentation. However, during the year 
following reclassifications are made in the corresponding figures. 

Particulars From To Rupees in'000 

Operating fixed assets - Cost Freehold Building on freehold land 143 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Building on freehold land Electric installations 1,290 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Plant and machinery Tools and equipments 1,680 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Plant and machinery Electric installations 22,157 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Tools and equipments Building on freehold land 4,249 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Tools and equipments Plant and machinery 14,782 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Tools and equipments Furniture and fixtures 2,729 
Operating fixed assets • Cost Tools and equipments Electric installations 4,871 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Office equipments Furniture and fixtures 6,225 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Office equipments Vehicles 11 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Electric installations Building on freehold land 5.999 



Particulars To Rupees in '000

0perating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

Operating fixed assets - Cost

0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
0perating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation expense

Advertisement expense

52.2 Rounding

Electric installations
Electric installations
Furniture and fixtures

Furniture and fixtures

Furniture and fixtures

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles
Building on freehold land

Plant and machinery
Tools and equipments
Tools and equipments
Tools and equipments
Tools and equipments
Office equipments
Office equipments
Electric installations
Electric installations

Furniture and fixtures
Furniture and fixtures
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Administrative expenses
Distribution cost

Tools and equipments
Plant and machinery
Building on freehold land
Tools and equipments
Electric installations
Plant and machinery
Tools and equipments
Electric installations
Tools and equipments
Building on freeliold land
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Electric installations
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Tools and equipments
Plantand machinery
Tools and equipments
Electric installations
PIant and machinery
Tools and equipments
Cost ofsales
Administrative expense

?.,894

105
2,731

r34,836
L0,339

1 02,8 13
5,376

474
l,+60

1,0,94t
161
312

4,831
11

2,326
2,644
1,659

54,925
1,562

74,003
17,470
4,379

Figures have been rounded offto the nearest thousand
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Particulars From To Rupees in 'ooo 

Operating fixed assets - Cost Electric installations Tools and equipments 2,894 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Electric installations Plant and machinery 2.529 
Operating fixed assets - Cost i'urniturc and fixtures Building on Freehold land 105 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Furniture and fixtures Tools and equipments 2.731 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Furniture and fixtures Electric Installations 134,836 
Operating fixed assets - Cost Furniture and fixtures Plant and machinery 10,339 
Operating fixed assets ■ Cost Vehicles Tools and equipments 102,813 
Operating fixed assets • Accumulated depreciatinn Building on freehold land Electric installations 5,316 
Operating fixed assets-Accumulated depreciation Plant and machinery Tools and equipments 474 
Operating fixed assets • Accumulated depreciation Tools and equipments Building on freehold land 1,460 
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation Tools and equipments Plant and machinery 10.941 
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation Tools and equipments Furniture and fixtures 161 
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation Tools and equipments Electric installations 312 
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation Office equipments Furniture and fixtures 4,831 
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation Olfice equipments Vehicles 11 
Operating fixed assets • Accumulated depreciation Electric Installations Tools and equipments 2,320 
Operating fixed assets • Accumulated depreciation Electric Installations Plant and machinery 2.644 
Operating fixed assets ■ Accumulated depreciation Furniture and fixtures Tools and equipments 1,659 
Operating fixed assets • Accumulated depreciation Furniture and fixtures Electric installations 54,925 
Operating fixed assets - Accumulated depreciation Furniture and fixtures Plant and machinery 1,562 
Operaang fixed assets-Accumulated depreciation Vehicles Tools and equipments 74,003 
Depredation expense Administrative expenses Cost of sales 17,470 
Advertisement expense Distribution cost Administrative expense 4,379 

SZ.Z Hounding 
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand. 
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